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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Director(s)”) of
Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
audited consolidated results of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2023 (“FY2023") to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

The Group’s revenue (including discontinued operation) for FY2023
was approximately HK$355.4 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$660.8 million or 65.0% from approximately
HK$1,016.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (“FY2022”).
The revenue from the property development for FY2023
was approximately HK$348.3 million (FY2022: approximately
HK$1,004.6 million).

The loss attributable to owners of the Company (including
discontinued operation) for FY2023 was approximately HK$428.3
million (FY2022: approximately HK$517.8 million), while the basic
and diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK31.54 cents (FY2022: HK38.13 cents).

During FY2022, Shanghai Baoxian Industrial Co., Ltd. (a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) (“Shanghai Baoxian”) acquired
the land use rights of a plot of land located at Plot 12A-01A,
Industrial Comprehensive Development Zone, Fengxian District, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (“Shanghai Fengxian Boill
e-Pharmaceutical Valley”), which is located at east to Shanghai-
Hangzhou Highway, west to Renjie Road, south to Fengpu Avenue
and north to Zhijiang Road (the “Land”) with a total site area of
approximately 63,481 square meters.

The Group intends to develop the Land into an innovative hub and
integrated industrial zone for companies, researchers and individuals
in the medical equipment, biomedical and medical beauty industry,
and such integrated zone, with an area for commercial facilities,
aims to attract customers for talent residence, catering and leisure,
Chinese medical and healthcare, cosmetics sales, fitness and
sports, personal image consulting and other businesses. The Group
plans to construct 30 buildings ranging from 1 to 18 storeys, with
a total estimated gross floor area of approximately 160,090 square
meters for education, scientific research and design use, and
739 carparking spaces in the basement. The construction on the
Land has commenced in September 2021 and is expected to be
completed by April 2024.



AEERRASEEXER(EE ] MERZEN
EREEE  EXERBBEEISAL -8B
T_-FHE EFERAREREZESRAX
RETEN EREE R | EXEYBEME

BEMEXERNREERMEXELRY
ExERBEELEYMBENBESMITENERRK

Bl AEEKREZ
RS —BME IBMNER - [— fJEﬂ © R
fREERFEFRT  BRE -  BRNFE - &8
EEEXBFERBABRAARESIERE -

BGEAREERER

[MEIN - BREE - RE - mE: &8/ K
g >§$‘ﬁi%ﬁ% EEEEERSARER
BENARE - ARG - B
ity EH%*W\ BE %ﬁ“ﬁﬁ ' E%E@J%ﬁi?z
TIBERM - KABR B - BE

G %E\E’J*‘”**&KF%I o Hif§

T %%7}&’] SHE  ERBER
BIRIMTE HARAEXRES &
SR - HINERBH ﬁﬁﬁ/\'T
EIEFERER

2 KERRAIERRFREZBREEER

A REERDERERS - BRSE
BRES RHEER - FekE  EX

BE - BREDFRMMAERRRABEL

MARAE - ERIESIE - REIEM -
MEIRET ERARE  MHITH  BE
EEAAZLRES  BEEXERER

AT ERBBR  ETREEHD -
JEfRF A EERE M

EHRREE
Chairman’s Statement

The Group considered that the development model of the industrial
zone (the “Park”) of the Group should change and industrial
development strategies should be upgraded in a timely manner.
Since 2023, the Board has considered to implement the “two-
wheel driven strategy” around the big health industry: i.e. focusing
on investment in and construction as well as professional operation
service of biomedical and medical equipment industrial zones, and
focusing on the industrial investment in biomedical and medical
equipment industries around zones.

To this regard, the Group will closely focus on the big health
industrial ecosystem, and promote the implementation of the
“One Core with Two Complements”. “One Core” refers to the
planning, an design, investment, construction and holding of big
health park, and this type of heavy asset business primarily relates
to the cooperation with third parties and large institutions. “Two
Complements” refer to the operation, service, brand of parks;
finance, investment, capital market empowerment, and this type
of light asset primarily relates to cultivation of self-development
capacity. Specifically, they consist of the following:

1. The Park will integrate advantageous resources in Shanghai,
focus on innovative medicines and medical devices, and
become an intelligent healthcare industrial park integrating
medical treatment, technology, precision manufacturing
and healthcare. It will create an influential medical-industrial
innovation platform integrating medicine, education, research
and production and industry-city integration, as well as a
healthcare industrial ecosystem by upgrading the cultivation
of the industry and operation services internally, and
exporting products and integrating resources externally;

2, Relying on the investment capability of the Company’s
substantial shareholder, Boill Holding Group Co. Ltd (“Boill
Holding”), the Park will increase its efforts in resource
integration, service construction, platform building, industry
cultivation, policy acquisition and other innovative ecosystem
construction, form six core Cq_mpe"téh@.igs of investment
introduction, planning and pos"i"tioning, planﬁi'ng and design,
project construction, marketing, and asset management, and
construct an overall solution service system for profesEi'oan
parks, exported light assets, and extend the value chain of ~
the platform; and

RE@FERAL AR A7) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 5
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3. The Park will further optimize the “Park + Operation +
Enabling” ecological system of innovation. By applying
the achievements made by Boill, the Park will utilize
cloud computing, artificial intelligence, robots and other
advanced technologies, integrate various offline vertical
service demands, and build an intelligent, platformized
and ecological operation and service platform to create
an intelligent operation ecosystem that integrates people,
space, organizations and services.

I would like to offer the Board’s sincere gratitude to the
management team and all the staff for their hard work and
dedication. Their commitments are of vital importance in enhancing
the Company’s sustainable development. Finally, | would like
to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders and all other
stakeholders for their continuous support to the Group.

Qiu Dongfang
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Board presents the audited consolidated results of the Group
for FY2023 to the valued Shareholders. The Group’s revenue
(including discontinued operation) for FY2023 was approximately
HK$355.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 65.0%
from approximately HK$1,016.2 million for FY2022. The revenue
from the property development for FY2023 was approximately
HK$348.3 million (FY2022: approximately HK$1,004.6 million).

The loss attributable to owners of the Company (including
discontinued operation) for FY2023 was approximately HK$428.3
million (FY2022: approximately HK$517.8 million), while the basic
and diluted loss per share attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK31.54 cents (FY2022: HK38.13 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property development

Residential property project

The Group has expanded its property development business in
October 2020 following completion of the acquisition of the entire
equity interest of Set Flourish Ventures Limited, which through
its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the development and
operation of a property project (the “Yangzhong Project”), which
is situated at No. 1 Yihe Road,
Road, south of Yihe Road, Sanmao Street, the central business
district of Yangzhong City, Zhenjiang City, Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. Under the Yangzhong Project, the Group plans to construct

located at the east of Xinyang

12 buildings ranging from 6 to 34 storeys, with a total estimated
gross floor area of approximately 173,457 square meters (exclusive
of the basement with an aggregate gross area of approximately
31,065 square meters) for residential and commercial use, and 1,223
carparking spaces in basement one and basement two.

Last year, the Group recorded revenue from Yangzhong Project
of approximately HK$1,002.7 million from the sales of 671
apartments and 14 shops with an aggregate gross floor area of
approximately 84,975 square meters and the accumulated sales
of 797 apartments and 14 shops Wlth an aggregate gross floor
area of approximately 100,626 square meters. The Group recorded
revenue from Yangzhong Project of approximately HK$169.5--miI|ion
from the sales of 159 apartments with an aggregate gross flb"or\...._
area of approximately 19,407 square meters for FY2023.

RE@FERAL AR A7) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 7
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The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the slowdown in
sales as a result of the adverse impact caused by the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic (the “Pandemic”).

Integrated industrial zone project

On 12 May 2021, Shanghai Baoxian succeeded in the bids of the
land use rights of the Land with a total site area of approximately
63,481 square meters through the listing-for-sale process held
by Shanghai Land Transaction Center. Completion of the Land
acquisition took place on 2 July 2021.

The Group intends to develop the Land into an innovative hub and
integrated industrial zone for companies, researchers and individuals
in the medical equipment, biomedical and medical beauty industry,
and such integrated zone, with an area for commercial facilities,
aims to attract customers for talent residence, catering and leisure,
chinese medical and healthcare, cosmetics sales, fitness and
sports, personal image consulting and other businesses. The Group
plans to construct 30 buildings ranging from 1 to 18 storeys, with
a total estimated gross floor area of approximately 160,090 square
meters for education, scientific research and design use, and 739
carparking spaces in the basement.

The construction on the Land has commenced in September
2021 and is expected to be completed by April 2024. The Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$178.6 million (FY2022: nil)
from sales of construction materials for FY2023. The Board and the
Group’s management will develop integrated industrial zones as a
principal business of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Continuing operations

Revenue

The revenue of the Group for FY2023 was approximately HK$348.3
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$656.3
million or 65.3% as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$1,004.6 million for FY2022.

The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in the
delivery of properties under the Yangzhong Project during FY2023.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for FY2023 was approximately
HK$0.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$109.4
million or 99.9% as compared to the gross profit of approximately
HK$109.5 million for FY2022.

The decrease in gross profit was mainly due to the decrease in the
delivery of properties under the Yangzhong Project.

Other income and gains or (losses), net

The other income and gains, net of the Group for FY2023 were
approximately HK$1.0 million (FY2022: loss of approximately
HK$0.5 million), which mainly comprised the government subsidy,
bank interest income and other miscellaneous income.

The change from losses, net to other income and gains, net was
mainly due to the non-recurring loss on disposal of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$1.4 million for FY2022.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$14.6 million for FY2022 to approximately HK$7.7
million for FY2023. The decrease was mainly due to the decreased
advertising costs and marketing staff costs following the declined
sales in property development business.

REEEIZR AR A F) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 9
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were approximately HK$22.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$10.1 million from approximately HK$32.4
million for FY2022. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease
in management charges and administrative expenses as a result
of the decrease in the sales and delivery of the properties in
Yangzhong Project and decrease in the exchange loss of balances
denominated in foreign currency.

Provision for loss on net realisable values of properties under
development and completed properties held for sales

During FY2023, in light of the adverse impact caused by the
Pandemic and the sluggish industry environments in mainland
China, the management reassess the provision for loss on net
realisable values of properties under development and completed
properties held for sales in respect of the Yangzhong Project.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the properties
under development and completed properties held for sales at
the lower of costs and net realisable value. Provision for loss
on net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sales of the Group for FY2023 was
approximately HK$159.1 million (FY2022: Nil), which was attributed
to the provision for loss on net realisable value in respect of
properties under development and completed properties held for
sales under Yangzhong Project.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group for FY2023 were approximately
HK$43.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$4.6
million from approximately HK$48.1 million for FY2022. The
decrease was due to the repayments of borrowings in FY2023.

Income tax expense

The income tax expense of the Group for FY2023 was
approximately HK$2.0 million representing a decrease of
approximately HK$6.9 million from approximately HK$8.9 million
for FY2022. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the
gross profit resulting in less tax expense being recognised.

Discontinued Operation

On 25 November 2022, Shanghai Jinshenglong Land Company
Limited* (E/B8&REEM AR A F]) (“Shanghai Jinshenglong”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Sunshine Life Insurance Corporation Limited*
(FZ ¢ ASREEHBRAR]) (the “Purchaser’), an independent
third party, pursuant to which Shanghai Jinshenglong conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase,
the healthcare holiday resort in Shanghai (the “Property”) at the
consideration of RMB1,185,000,000 in cash (the “Disposal”). On
19 December 2022, the Shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company passed the resolution to approve and
confirm the Sale and Purchase Ag_r___e__em’éﬁt ‘éhd\_‘_t_he transaction
contemplated thereunder. :

REBFERAL AR A7) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 11
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As at the date of this report, all conditions precedent set out in
the Sale and Purchase Agreement have been fulfilled. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 25 November 2022
and 19 December 2022, and the circular of the Company dated
30 November 2022 for further details. Upon the transfer of the
Property to the Purchaser on 28 February 2023, the healthcare
resort development and operation business was classified as
discontinued operation of the Group.

The Group recorded revenue from discontinued operation of
approximately HK$7.2 million for FY2023, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$4.4 million or 37.9% as compared to
approximately HK$11.6 million for FY2022.

Net loss

The net loss of the Group for FY2023 was approximately HK$527.6
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$228.1 million
from approximately HK$755.7 million for FY2022.

The Group’s overall performance for the FY2023 was unsatisfactory
as the Group recorded loss from discontinued operation and
the Group recorded provision for loss on net realisable value of
properties under development and completed properties held for
sales of approximately HK$159.1 million for FY2023 (FY2022: Nil)
from Yangzhong Project, as a result of the adverse impact caused
by the Pandemic and the sluggish industry environments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Original property development model and industrial strategic
upgrading and transformation

Following the outbreak of the Pandemic, economic development
has been hampered by pandemic prevention and control measures.
The prospects for global economic recovery are uncertain, which
have a material impact on the financial results and development
plan of industry enterprises including the Group. In terms of housing
control policies, the central government of the PRC implemented
strong measures to maintain the stability of property market, so as
to regulate the short-term overheating of real estate investments,
which in turn is conducive to achieving long-term control objectives
of “housing is for living, not for speculation” and “stabilising land
prices, housing prices and expectations”, and maintaining market
expectations. As the central government of the PRC is gradually
rolling out more measures to stabilise economic growth, housing
control policies for the real estate industry have slowly relaxed.
However, many property enterprises felt the pressures piling up
from external financing and internal operating cash flow.

The management of the Group expects that the development
model of the original industrial zone of the Group will face
challenges in 2023. It is necessary to timely transform and upgrade
the industrial development strategy, and implement the “two-wheel
drive strategy” closely around the health industry, focusing on the
investment, construction and professional operation services of
biomedical and medical device industrial zones, as well as industrial
investment in the biomedical and medical device industries around
ZOones.

Strategically focusing on the investment, construction and
professional operation services of biomedical and medical
device industrial zones

In line with the vigorous development trend of domestic strategic
emerging industries, and taking into account the advantages of
industrial resources that the Company’s substantlal shareholder,
Boill Holding, and its affiliated enterprlses have cultivated and
accumulated over the years, the Group has established the
strategic development direction for the development, construction
and operation services in integrated industrial zones focusing \(..)I”I“,_\_
the biomedical and medical device industries since 2023.
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In respect of the existing Shanghai Fengxian Boill e-Pharmaceutical
Valley, the Group will focus on strengthening the refinement
and high-quality service level and service capacity building of
construction carriers and industrial supporting operation for target
enterprise customers, and will integrate professional capabilities to
provide one-stop integrated services from professional investment
and post-investment empowerment to capital market exit, striving
to build a biomedical and medical device specialized zone with
leading comprehensive management and service levels in Shanghai.

In addition, the Group will seek opportunities to establish new
integrated industrial zones for biomedical and medical device in
the Yangtze River Delta region, strategically select areas that are
relatively mature and concentrated in biomedical and medical
device industries to implement new projects to replicate the
successful experience of Shanghai Fengxian Boill e-Pharmaceutical
Valley, and make every effort to promote the interaction of elements
and resource collaboration among specialized industrial parks, so
as to further enhance the Group’s asset-light service capabilities
in market positioning, product planning and design, investment
attraction for zones, operation and value-added services, etc., and
create greater economic and social value for enterprises in the
zones and local governments.

Strategically focusing on industrial investment in the
biomedical and medical device industries around zones

In line with the trend of sustained and vigorous development of the
global and Chinese health industry, and to closely align with the
Group’s development strategy focusing on biomedical and medical
device industrial zones, the Group has established the industrial
investment strategy since 2023 that focuses on the advantageous
resources of the biomedical and medical device industries to create
an ecosystem of zones. Through direct investment in enterprises
in the zone or investment and introduction, the Group not only
serves the investment attraction and operation of the zone, but
also promotes the development of enterprises in the zone. The
Group compensates for the shortcomings and empowers value-
added for enterprises in the zone, provides all services required
for connecting to the capital market, and shares the development
achievements.
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The Group has established a professional investment and post-
investment management team in the biomedical and medical
device industries, and plans to cooperate with domestic and
foreign biomedical and medical device professional investment
funds to implement strategic investments for enterprises and target
enterprises in the zone.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group
consisted of a loan from a related company of approximately
HK$24.0 million (as at 31 March 2022: approximately HK$24.0
million) and borrowings of approximately HK$1,147.1 million (as at
31 March 2022: approximately HK$1,541.0 million).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s borrowings of approximately
HK$1,147.1 million (as at 31 March 2022: approximately
HK$1,541.0 million) were secured by (i) investment properties with
carrying value of approximately HK$748.4 million; (ii) properties
under development with carrying value of approximately HK$486.7
million; (iii) personal guarantee given by each of Mr. Qiu Dongfang
(“Mr. Qiu”), a substantial shareholder and a director of the
Company, and his spouse, Ms. Huang Jian (“Ms. Huang”), and
corporate guarantees provided by the related companies controlled
by Mr. Qiu; (iv) share of an associate and interest in certain
subsidiaries held by the Group; and (v) pledge of 710,600,000
ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) held by the related
companies controlled by Mr. Qiu.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings
of approximately HK$365.9 million, (as at 31 March 2022:
approximately HK$807.0 million) were repayable within one year or
on demand and bearing interests at fixed rate ranging from 5% to
15% per annum (as at 31 March 2022: at fixed rate ranging from
5% to 15% per annum). The remaining interest-bearing borrowings
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$805.3 million, which
were repayable by June 2024 to October 2031 and bearing interest
at fixed rate ranging from 3.8% to 4. 15% pel> annum (as at 31
March 2022: at fixed rate ranging from 4.1% to 15% per annum).
Save as disclosed above, the Group did not pledge any assé'ts...._
to bank or other financial institutions nor did the Group have any
corporate guarantee given to any entity as at 31 March 2023.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had net current assets of

approximately HK$44.2 million (as at 31 March 2022: net current

liabilities of approximately HK$1,056.7 million) and cash and bank

deposits (excluding restricted bank deposits) of approximately
HK$40.6 million (as at 31 March 2022: approximately HK$46.5
million).

As at 31 March 2023, the gearing ratio of the Group (defined
as total interest-bearing borrowings divided by the Group’s total
equity) was 133.1 times (as at 31 March 2022: 623.1%).

The Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient

working capital for its present requirements, based on the cash

flow forecast of the Group covering a period up to 30 June 2024

after taking into account the following:

)

(i

(i)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group
further received proceeds of HK$129,676,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$148,090,000) from the disposal of
the healthcare holiday resort in Shanghai according to the
payment terms. The management expected that the remaining
proceeds would also be received on time;

In June 2021 a revised loan credit facility (the “Facility”),
which was originally entered into in June 2019, with its
controlling shareholder (a related party) and its beneficial
owner regarding the provision of a loan facility amounting
to RMB900,000,000, under which the beneficial owner
undertakes to provide an additional source of fund for the
purpose of enhancing his commitment to provide the credit
under the Facility. The Facility is unsecured, bearing interest
at the rate of 5% per annum and repayable within a period
of twenty-four months from drawdown date. The Group has
not made any drawdown from the Facility up to the date of
approval for issue of these consolidated financial statements;

The related companies to whom the Group owed
HK$298,733,000 as at 31 March 2023 undertook not to
demand repayment until the Group is in position to repay it;
and
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(iv)  The Group continued to sell the completed properties held for
sale and properties under development ready for pre-sale in
order to boost the liquidity of the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The majority of the Group’s assets and cash flows were
denominated in RMB, but major parts of the Group’s interest-
bearing borrowing were denominated in US dollar. During FY2023,
the steady depreciation of RMB against US dollar or HK$ had
a negative effect on translation as the reporting currency of the
Group was HK$. Apart from that, the management of the Company
viewed that the change in exchange rate of RMB against foreign
currencies had significant impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance during FY2023 given that the functional currency
of the Group was RMB. During FY2023, the Group did not engage
in any hedging activities and the Group has no intention to carry
out any hedging activities in the near future. The management of
the Group will continue to closely monitor the foreign currency
market and consider carrying out hedging activities when
necessary.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Group did not have
any significant capital commitments. [

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
The Group did not hold any significant investments during FY2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the Disposal, there was no other material acquisitions or
disposals of any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
FY2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at the date of approval of this report the Board had not
authorised any plans for material mvestments or‘addltlons of capital
assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March ;
2023.
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EMPLOYEE AND HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY
The Group had a total of 97 employees as at 31 March 2023, of
which 90 employees worked in the PRC and 7 worked in Hong
Kong. Total employee costs from continuing operations for FY2023
amounted to approximately HK$16.8 million (FY2022: approximately
HK$20.6 million).

The Group has established rules and procedures of recruitment,
etc. The
Group determines employees’ compensation packages on the basis

job promotion, compensation, benefits, leave, dismissal,

of work performance and the market standard of remuneration.

Employee remuneration packages are maintained at competitive
levels and employees are rewarded through the Group’s salary
and bonus system. The Group provides adequate job training to
employees to equip them with practical knowledge and skills.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
22 September 2013 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Board may
grant options to Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), employees of the Company
and any of its subsidiaries and associated companies, to subscribe
for shares of the Company. During FY2023, no options were
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for FY2023 (FY2022: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company or the
laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing Shareholders.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 31
December 2021.

On 31 December 2021, Boill International Co. Limited (“Boill
International”) and Liyao Investment Limited (“Liyao”), pledged
450,600,000 and 260,000,000 Shares (collectively, the “Pledged
Shares”) in favour of China Huarong International Holdings Limited
(the “Lender”) as security for a facility provided by the Lender to
the Company, as borrower, with an outstanding principal amount
of USD39,500,000. The Pledged Shares represent approximately
52.33% of the issued Shares as at the date of this report.

Boill International is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
wholly-owned by Boill Holding, which in turn is held as to 97.64%
and 2.36% by Mr. Qiu and Ms. Huang, respectively. Liyao is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-
owned by Mr. Qiu. Accordingly, Mr. Qiu is deemed to be interested
in the 450,600,000 Shares held by Boill International and the
260,000,000 Shares held by Liyao. As at the date of this report,
Mr. Qiu has an interest of approximately 52.33% in the total issued
Shares.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is not aware of
any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2023 and up to the date of approval of
this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during FY2023.

RERFEAE AR A7) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 19



EFAGREEREE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HITES
BREEE(REE]) 59% RW-T——
NANBREEAESESIE(XE)RNTE
£ —NN\RAFE—NNZF  BEETBHAN
ERCTREME  SEBREAES - —hh
SEE-ANEEF  RELEFLEHERE
TREBADNBEE - —hANWtEE-T—
AE  REAEFLESRE(EE)BERARD
TEREE BT AER  BELHE
EREZROEFRER  BENTETRE
BRI BNES - RALREMINTI ISR
(BT TRAE)  REBLEM - XE5
e o

REBRE(REE]D 465 R-_T—+F
NATHEEZERBITES - RELRKATF
B EXRERENTHEER - ARAEH
RARBIBMEREN - REERFHEXES
BTFER ERHWERRERLEENEE
BLERR  RERAREEREZEWMB AR
HMERREHERRARAARZAKRE - FRX
—NANOFEMBREER  R-AAEFEZ
Z—REFR - GEREERZRENB AR ZE
RE KERAEE  REEB-FT—AFRE
HEREERZEMNBARZES -

20  Annual Report 2023 &R

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qiu Dongfang (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 59, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and Executive Director with
effect from 9 September 2022. Mr. Qiu served at the Technical
Department of Ningbo Chemical Industry Bureau from 1985 to
1992 with his last position as director. From 1993 to 1997, Mr. Qiu
served as the general manager of Shanghai Shenbiao Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd.. From 1997 to 2015, Mr. Qiu served as the
chairman and president of Shanghai Boill (Group) Co., Ltd.. Since
2015, Mr. Qiu has been serving as the chairman and president of
Boill Holding, and he is currently also a director of Boill International
and Liyao. Mr. Qiu graduated from Zhejiang Institute of Technology
(currently known as Zhejiang University of Technology) with a
bachelor’s degree majoring in organic chemistry.

Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 46, was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 14 August 2017. Mr. Zhang
holds a business administration diploma from China University of
Geosciences and a business administration degree from Southwest
University of Science and Technology. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years
of experience in real estate industry and has extensive experience
in construction and management of real estate development. He is
currently the general manager of Nanchang Shenbiao Real Estate
Development Co., Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Boaill
Holding. He joined Boill Holding in 1994 and served as deputy
manager, manager and general manager for various subsidiaries of
Boill Holding during the period from 1994 to 2016. Mr. Zhang has
been a director for various subsidiaries of Boill Holding since 2016.
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Ms. Yu Yixing (“Ms. Yu”), aged 37, was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 9 September 2022. Ms. Yu

joined the Group and has been serving as the deputy general

manager of the Company since November 2019. Ms. Yu is
primarily responsible for the operation and management of the
Company. Ms. Yu is also responsible for the Company’s strategic
development and business, organising a management team and
reporting to the Board from time to time. Ms. Yu has over 13 years
of experience in financial investment. Prior to joining the Company,
Ms. Yu had successively worked at Credit Suisse Hong Kong Ltd.
and the Hong Kong branch of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Since February 2017, Ms. Yu has been serving as the deputy
general manager at Boill International, primarily responsible for the
investment and financing business of the fund segment. Ms. Yu
graduated from Shanghai Tongji University with a bachelor’s degree
in finance and obtained a master’s degree in finance from Imperial
College London.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”), aged 56, has been appointed
as a non-executive Director with effect from 6 March 2015. He has
over 25 years of experience in financial management, accounting
and auditing fields.

Mr. Chui has been appointed as an executive director of Yuk Wing
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1536) since 4 June 2021 and
a non-executive director of Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1718) since 7 January 2021, both being companies whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, and an executive director
of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock
code: 8085, the securities of which had been listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange until 14 September 2020) since 30 November
2009.

Mr. Chui had been an independent non-executive director of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148) from 17 March
2010 to 16 March 2016, an exeouhve dlrectoT of China Energy
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) from 5 October
2005 to 30 June 2016 and a non-executive director of DeTai New
Energy Group Limited (stock code: 559) from 1 December 2015 to.
19 March 2020.
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Mr. Chui was an executive director of Ming Lam Holdings Limited
(“Ming Lam Hidgs”) (former stock code: 1106) from 17 July 2019
to 14 August 2020. Mr. Chui was informed that Ming Lam Hidgs
was ordered to be wound up by the High Court of Hong Kong on
31 August 2020.

Mr. Chui was a non-executive director of Hsin Chong Group
Holdings Limited (“HCGH”) (former stock code: 404) from 23 May
2015 to 29 March 2019 whose securities were listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange until 31 December 2019. HCGH
was wound up by an order of the Supreme Court of Bermuda
dated 20 January 2020. On 11 April 2022, the Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange issued a statement in relation to, among
other things, public criticism of certain former members of the
board of HCGH, details in respect of Mr. Chui (as a former non-
executive director of such company) are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 April 2022.

Mr. Qiu Bin, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive director
with effect from 9 September 2022. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the City University of Macau. He has
over 30 years of experience in investment management and worked
at various enterprises in Beijing, Shanghai and Shenzhen where he
was responsible for project investment and assets restructuring.
From January 2009 to October 2011,
manager of China Technology Education Trust Association. He

he served as the general

also served various positions in companies the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange, including as the chief executive
officer of Sun Century Property Group Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Suncity Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1383) (“Sun City”) in November 2011 and an executive director
of Sun City from June 2012 to July 2015; an executive director
and the chief executive officer of Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited
(stock code: 851) from July 2017 to January 2020; an executive
director, chairman of the board and the chief executive officer of
HongDa Financial Holding Limited (currently known as China Wood
International Holding Co., Limited) (stock code: 1822) (“China
Wood”) from March 2020 to December 2020; and an executive
director of China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (stock
code: 8158) from May 2020 to December 2020. He has served as
the chairman of Pacific Assets Alliance Limited since January 2013.



EFREREEREE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

BYEHITES

IREETERE]D 625 R-ZT—tFN
ATHBREZAABIUIENTES  RERNA
MURERE BREIREEET26( - KA —
ZHERD c BALSMEMBSRITERSW
ER - LECRMEBMSEIBEEREPELK
RITRHDBERAF (RGN - 6818) 2 HMEDEE
FE-B-ANRAFNLAR  FEREERFEFEA
RIBTHAERERER - FESEMEQRFEYIF
DEEIB R BEEE - RERITARIINSTEITE
PREBAAFEBLEE SRS FME
i  BEREREZECUR EDEHERERR
TROEBERAG(EROR EBZFSFRZ AL
M BRZEAES : 600000) 2B EE o

BEMEE(REE]) 495 R=_T—+F
+T—A+REARZEABUERNITES F B
RBEBRZEARE BB BELEEN - HA
EEBTARSTMASTEREE - BAER
Eix > LR RMEEEHEEAB20FLR ©
®ARGHEEEEAR AR RAOMRIR : 1039)
ZHMBRE RRMERBEERERZ— -8 —
ANNEF+—_BRE_FT—AFHA ' FREE
BEEBTE15F « MEBREREBA AT
wet - g EENMFE-—HAE_TTN\FH -
REREELEEERERAR(FIBEEES
BARIREALRERAFR - BRI : 8155)
EEESEERSFRIRARME -

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Zhe (“Mr. Wang”),
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 14
August 2017. He graduated from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economic with a master’s degree in Business

aged 62, has been appointed

Administration. He is an economist and currently the secretary
general for Association of Shanghai Internet Financial Industry,
the vice chairman for Shanghai Financial Association and external
supervisor of China Everbright Bank Company Limited (stock
code: 6818). Since September 1985, Mr. Wang has served as the
deputy section chief for the General Office of the People’s Bank
of China, manager and general manager for the Shenzhen Branch
of China Gold Coin Incorporation, vice president for the Shenzhen
Branch of China CITIC Bank, deputy general manager for China
Gold Coin Incorporation, general manager, director-general and
party secretary for Shanghai Gold Exchange and the independent
director of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. (a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code: 600000).

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy (“Mr. Chan”), aged 49, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2017. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist
University with an Honours Degree with major in Accountin'g.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. He is the financial controller,
company secretary, and one of the authorised representatives
of Changyou Alliance Group Limited (stock code 1039). He had
worked in South China Media Group for 15 years from December
1999 to May 2015 and his latest position was the deputy financial
controller. He had worked in South China Assets Holdings
Limited (formerly named as South China Land Limited and Capital
Publications Limited, stock code 8155) from January 2004 to June
2008 as the qualified accountant and company secretary.
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Mr. Yi Baxian (“Mr. Yi”), aged 57, was appointed as a
independent non-executive director with effect from 9 September
2022. Mr. Yi served as the general manager of the research and
development department of Sinopharm Holding Co., Ltd. and
the general manager of Sinopharm Holding Shenzhen Chinese
Medicine Co., Ltd. during the period from October 2002 to
September 2007. From September 2007 to December 2010,
Mr. Yi served as the director at Sichuan Industrial Institute of
Antibiotics. From December 2010 to July 2015, he served as the
vice president of China State Institute of Pharmaceutical Industry.
From October 2013 to September 2015, Mr. Yi served as the
chairman of Shanghai Yingkelong Pharmaceutical Development
Co., Ltd.. From December 2013 to September 2015, he served as
an executive director at National (Shanghai) New Medicine Safety
Evaluation Center. From September 2015 to December 2021, he
served as an independent director of Shanghai Medicilon Inc.,
a company the shares of which are since October 2019 listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 688202). Since
2015, Mr. Yi has been serving as the managing partner and vice
president of Shanghai Pudong Technology Investment Co., Ltd..
Mr. Yi graduated China Pharmaceutical University with a bachelor’s
degree in pharmacy, and subsequently obtained a master’s degree
from Shaanxi Master of Business Administration Institute and a
doctoral degree in social and management pharmacy from China
Pharmaceutical University.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Kam Ming (“Mr. Ng”), aged 38, has been appointed
as the financial controller, company secretary and authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 1 August 2019.
Mr. Ng is responsible for advising on strategic development
and corporate governance from the financial perspective of the
Company. Mr. Ng has over 12 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Ng had worked for Ernst & Young providing
assurance services from 2015 to 2018. Mr. Ng graduated from
The Open University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in
Accounting and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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INTRODUCTION

Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are pleased to present this
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report. Prepared
in accordance with the requirements set forth in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), this report presents the major ESG policies, initiatives and
performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the
“ESG Reporting Year”).

STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

The year that just passed has been an extraordinary one as
our economy and society were impacted with major regulatory
reforms, heightened geopolitical tensions and the novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic. We are proud that despite
these challenging times, our staff were able to uphold the core
value of providing the best quality service and products to our
customers. We are grateful to all our staff as well as partners for
their continuous commitment in giving back to the community
and supporting our clients. In the ESG Reporting Year, the Group
furthered reinforced the principle of sustainable development for
all business lines. This was achieved through enhancing ESG
internal controls, strengthening corporate governance and adopting
ESG risk management in several key areas, namely, COVID-19
and climate change. The Board has reviewed progress made
against ESG-related goals towards the end of the year through
presentations and meetings with the senior management and ESG
team.

With the advent of vaccines and temporary lockdowns, COVID-19
has been lingering in the society for a period of time and the safety
of our work-force remains our utmost priority. The management
of the Group has assisted the Group in navigating through the
pandemic. Every period, the management communicates with
employees of different business Iir}_es-"t'b"' enéﬁre___that there are
sufficient protection measures in each business division. The
pandemic related contingency measures, health guidelines._and
safety measures in the working environment are periodicéi'ly»..._
reviewed and updated according to the staff’'s feedback and the
development of COVID-19 situation. This ensures that there will be
minimal disruptions in the business operations.
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The Group has furthered the initiative to manage climate-related
risk which is instrumental for the Group’s sustainable business
development. In order to contribute to China and Hong Kong’s
goal to transform into a net-zero economy, the Group has devised
a green environmental strategy that spans across all the business
segments. The incorporation of green measures into key metrics
has allowed the Group to gauge the effectiveness of our current
environmental policies and to identify areas for improvements. The
Group also works closely with partners and other stakeholders to
influence them to become more environmentally friendly.

Going forward, the Group will focus on the green environmental
strategy, protection of our staff from the COVID-19 and new ESG
opportunities. The Group looks forward to playing a leading role in
building a brighter and a sustainable future for the community.

ESG REPORTING BOUNDARY

The ESG reporting boundary of this ESG Report shall cover the
operational activities of the Group. The Group is principally engaged
in property development. Our presentation covers the operation in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group’s approach to stakeholder engagement is designed
to help define current and future sustainability strategies by
ensuring the stakeholders’ perspectives and expectations are fully
understood.

The Group will continue effective communications with our key
stakeholder groups in various ways in order to address their
concerns and feedback timely. We believe that the interests of
all stakeholders must be taken into account in order to maintain
the long-term relationships with our shareholders and investors,
employees, customers, suppliers, government authorities and
the public community. The areas of concerns considered by the
stakeholders are listed below:
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TEBERE

Major Communication Channels

FTEFEIER
Major Concerns

BRMEE

Shareholders and Investors

)
il

Employees

zP
Customers
HER
Suppliers

R RitE

Community and Society

B & EE

Government and
supervisory institutions

s FE - MHIRFERE

s REIAFAE

o NEINERIEHK

o FE

e Annual, interim and quarterly reports

e Annual general meetings

e Corporate announcements and circulars
® Press releases

s XEgmLBENE

o BEREHH KRB

® Eiiﬁﬂl

o BEEE

e Business meetings and briefings

e Performance appraisals and evaluations
e Staff trainings

e Team building activities

o BRI

o BRI

e Customer complaint hotlines

* Meetings and correspondences
s REER

e B g BETHM  BEER
e Procurement meetings

e Phone calls, conferences, emails, site visits
s RERBHEH

o tEHF)

» ESGH

e Charitable and donation activities
e Community interactions

e ESG Reporting

o REVERRBE

o g

o EEHKE

o HIBER

e Major meetings and policies

e Consultations

e Information disclosures

e |nstitutional visits

o EFIgE
o UBREME
o EEBRELERE

e Profitability

e Financial stability

¢ |nformation disclosure and
transparency

s BEERIIEIIKE

o M KAz A

o BERKMZEHTIERE

o AABBRFRERZ DM

e Career development and training
opportunities

e Compensation and benefits

e Health & safety work environment

e Personal data protection and
security

o TLERE

o BEEm MRS

e Privacy protection

e Quality products and services

o RTAE

. B

e Cooperation on fair terms

e Integrity

s HBRIREREZRD

s PEMEET

e Community investment and
charitable activities

e Corporate social responsibilities

o SHEE

o BEER

o IRIGIRE

e Compliance operation
* Corporate governance
* Environmental protection
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Quantitative: In accordance with the “key performance indicators”
of the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules, the Group disclosed quantitative indicators in the
“environment” category. Quantitative indicators of the “society”
category were disclosed to the greatest extent, and will be fully
disclosed in the future after the statistical process is gradually
optimized.

Balance: This report strives to achieve objective, fair and truthful
disclosure and reflection of the Group’s achievements and
practices in the environment and social dimensions in FY2023, and
also the dilemmas encountered and improvement measures with a
sense of responsibility.

Consistency: This report follows a consistent range of statistics and
the statistics scope of FY2023 corresponds with that of FY2022.

Materiality: ESG issues that will affect a stakeholder or an investor’s

judgement shall be disclosed. This will be determined by the Board

and through the materiality assessment.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Following the discussion with our senior management and
operational staff, the Group has identified the ESG issues which are
relevant to the Group. The identified issues have been assessed
by considering their importance to our stakeholders as well as the
Group. The ESG issues considered to be material are listed below:

B R A

Areas of concerns

A RIE

A. Environmental

A1 BERY)

A1 Emissions

A2 BIR(ER

A2 Use of resources

A3 IRIE R RAEIR

A3 The environment and natural resources
A4 BIREb

A4 Climate Change

B. #&

B. Social

B1 {&1%

B1 Employment

B2 f2RREAL &

B2 Health and safety

B3 & K5I

B3 Development and training
B4 & T 48|

B4 Labour standards

B5 HEHEE R

B5 Supply chain management
B6 EmEAE

B6 Product responsibility

B7 R&m

B7 Anti-corruption

B8 it EKE&E

B8 Community investment

HREERR

Carbon emissions

B RIKER

Electricity and water consumption

WA IRIR BN

Measures in reducing environmental impact
B E R KA AR

Physical risk and Transition risk

BITEY

LLabour practices

TESMERERZ S

Workplace health and safety

8 TER &IF

Staff development and training

B ZE T Ksa |25 T

Anti-child and forced labour

HrEmER

Supplier management

EmERBEEE EE2RE  EPRE  cHRERERRE

Product and service responsibility, quality assurance,
customer service, complaint handling"'é-hd feedback

RESHE ;

Anti-corruption policy S

HE2E

Community involvement
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STAKEHOLDER’S FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its ESG approach
and performance. You are welcomed to provide your suggestions
or share your views with the Group through any channel below to
help the Group improve its ESG performance:

Email: ir@boill.com

Website:  https://www.boillhealthcare.com.hk

Address: Room 2101, 21/F, Wing On Centre, No. 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Phone: +852 2796 2511

The following sections provide more information about the Group’s
practices in the areas of the environment, employees’ engagement
and development, good operating practices and our contribution to
the community.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

a.

Policy

The Group aims to generate revenue for investors but
not at the expense of the environment. Our senior
management is dedicated to cultivating a green,
healthy and safe culture through the joint efforts of all
staff, and to promoting an environmental, healthy and
safe culture in the workplace in order to:

° ensure compliance with all applicable
legislations;
° reduce quantities of waste and pollutants

emitted into the sea, land and atmosphere;

o promote awareness on environmental
protection and safety among staff through
training, workshops and programmes;

o provide a green, healthy and safe workspace
for staff, visitors and contractors;

o optimise energy use efficiency; and
o improve performance and environmental
protection and safety.

Due to the nature and the regional coverage of
the Group’s business, it is important to manage
the environmental impacts attributable to its local
operational activities to minimise these impacts if
possible. The identified environmental issues that the
Group had been involved in during the ESG Reporting
Year were mainly related to its consumption of
electricity, water, petroleum, paper and natural gas.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws that have
Significant Impact

The Group’s business involves property development
and construction piling, and thus causes certain
impacts on the environment. The Group manages
air, water, or land impact carefully, and during the
ESG Reporting Year, the Group is unaware of any
non-compliance with relevant Hong Kong and PRC
environmental laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC ((HZEARKEMBEIRIFIRZEL)), the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC ({/
#E= ARIEMBE AR5 E8%)), the Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC ({(FF#E AR
HMBEAKS87%)), the Prevention and Control
of Solid Waste Pollution of the PRC ({H 2 A R
N = [E 8 RE )5 IR IB G VAYA D), the Noise Control
Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter
358 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The measures we have taken to ensure our
compliance with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations in the PRC include (i) strictly
supervising the process of construction through the
supervision unit and (i) applying for review by the
relevant government authorities in a timely manner
after the project is completed.

In addition, the Group’s internal environmental
protection awareness programme consistently
reminds and encourages the Group’s employees and
clients to improve on environmental performance
together.
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Al.

Emissions

Air Emission (KPI A1.1)

The Group has taken the initiative to examine the
issue of air emission across its operation. We
outsource the construction operation to the relevant
partnering company and work diligently with them
to ensure the operation complied with the relevant
air emission laws and regulations, such as the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of
the PRC (R ZE AR HEMBEIKRE)5278E)).

The Group will continue monitoring its operation
to ensure its air emission keeps compliant with all
relevant laws and regulations.

In the Group’s production and operating activities,
the air pollutants emitted primarily consist of Nitrogen
Oxide (NOx), Sulphur Oxide (SOx) and Particulate
Matters (PM) from the burning of fossil fuels and
business use vehicle exhausts. GHG emission data
are calculated with reference to, including but not
limited to, the reporting requirements of “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the
Stock Exchange.
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RESGHREFER E—E®RESF During the ESG Reporting Year and the previous
B ASENERERIEAER reporting year, the Group emitted the following
BIRERBDOHEAOT ¢ quantities of air emissions and greenhouse gas

emissions (“GHG”):

Hinig
(Bf)Emee —B-=pE —Z-§F
CECCHE CToCEE O HOLES R PR

Percentage
Increase (+) or
Decrease (-
of the type of FY2023 FY2022
HRNEE(Ef) Type of Emissions (unit) FY2023 FY2002  emissions (uni) *Intensity “Intensity
RELN(TR) NOx (kg) 1,60 2 -28% <0.01 Q01
REN(Tz) 80« (kg) < < -20% <0.01 Q01
BIENN(TR) PM (kg) <1 <1 -16% <0.01 <0.01
HE-S(REE(HE-) (M) Direct COz¢ (Scope 1) (Tonnes) 8 9 -19% 0.02 0.01
BE-S(REE(EHEZ)(H) Indirect CO2¢ (Scope 2) (Tonnes) 240 37 -36% 0.70 042
M-S BES(SE=)(M)  Indirect COz. (Scope 3) (Tonnes) < < +9% <0.01 <0.01
¥ ZENERER NS E BB TR b The intensities are calculated by dividing the emission
WAGTHE - amount by the total revenue per million Hong Kong dollars.
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Greenhouse Gas Emission (KPI A1.2)

In addition to the efforts made in monitoring air
pollutant emission, the Group performs careful
assessment on its overall carbon footprint and
explores measures to reduce its carbon emission.
The Group estimated its carbon dioxide equivalent
(CO2¢) for the ESG Reporting Year through calculation
with relevant methodology, and with data available
on diesel, electricity, natural gas and petroleum
consumption and emission factor from invoices and
references to third parties documents (information
related to electricity consumption and carbon
intensity factor that are available on the electricity bill
and the sustainability report from electricity provider
respectively).

In summary, the carbon footprint of the Group in the
ESG Reporting Year is approximately 249 tonnes
of COze (FY2022: approximately 387 tonnes), and
the carbon footprint of the ESG Reporting Year
is 36% less than the previous reporting year. The
Group looks to perform analysis on the consolidated
figures, and to work with employees and external
stakeholders on minimising carbon footprint. To
reduce the carbon footprint, the Group plans to
reduce the level of CO2e emission by 5% in 2030
with 2020 as the base year.
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Results Achieved on Mitigating Emission (KPI
A1.5)

Through internal staff training and closely monitoring
on air emission and greenhouse gas emission, the
environmental awareness among staff have been
strengthened in the operation process.

The primary reason for the decrease in air emission
and greenhouse gas emission was that the
development of property project was completed
during the ESG Reporting Year, which led to a
decrease in petrol, electricity and water consumption
and consequently in air emission and greenhouse
gas emission. With the aim of further developing
emission reduction targets in the future, the Group
will continue assessing and monitoring the GHG
emissions and other relevant environmental data
regularly.

Waste Management (KPI A1.3) (KPI A1.4) (KPI
A1.6)

With the aim of achieving Hong Kong net zero
emission goal in the future, the Group strives to
reduce waste generated in its operation activities.
Waste management guidelines and procedures are in
place in all areas of its production where hazardous
and non-hazardous waste are generated. To ensure
all wastes are properly treated, the Group specifies
separate treatments and procedures for different
categories of wastes generated from different
business activities.

Non-hazardous wastes as a result of the Group’s
operation were mainly produced from construction
and daily activities. In the ESG Reporting Year, the
Group did not generate any hazardous waste, while
200m® non-hazardous waste (FY2022: Nil) was
recorded generated from the Group’s activities.
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A2.

In summary, the Group will continue devoting effort
to waste management, ensuring the safety of its
employees and the compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations. During the ESG Reporting
Year, there was no major accident encountered in
the Group’s operation, and the Group had been
complying with all applicable waste related Hong
Kong and PRC laws and regulations. The Group will
continue monitoring closely and working diligently to
ensure the proper treatment of hazardous waste in
the future. The Group plan to install recycling bins
around our office and buildings by 2025 to reduce
the amount of waste sent to the landfill by 5% in
2030 with 2020 as the base year.

Use of Resources

As an environmentally friendly company, the Group
actively promotes the culture of “Green Office”
among its staff, and maintains an environmentally
friendly and efficient consumption practice throughout
the operation. Various measures have been adopted
to reduce energy and other resources use, minimise
wastes and increase recycling, and promote
environmental protection in its supply chain and
workplace. Initiatives such as energy conservation
and efficiency policy, and green practices in offices
were successfully implemented throughout the ESG
Reporting Year, the details of which are set out
below.

The Environment and Natural Resources

With the aim of achieving Hong Kong net zero
emission goal in the future, the Group understands
the consumption of a fair amount of natural resources
may lead to significant impact on the environment,
and our Group has implemented a diligent resource
management programr_r_]_e,----'ei'ri'd {‘Hé-xg\rimary focus in
the operation are the followings: :
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Electricity (KPI A2.3)

In line with its “Green Office” directive, the Group
actively promotes the concept of smart usage of
electricity in its premises. Notices on energy saving
are issued to raise the awareness of the staff on
energy conservation. As electricity is the key resource
used in business reporting, the Group targets to
reduce the electricity consumption by 5% in 2030
with 2020 as the base year by implementing the
following initiatives:

o Adjusting air conditioners’ temperature setting
to 25.5 T ;

o Switching off all electronic devices during
lunch hours and when leaving office;

° Replacing fluorescent tubes with LED lighting
systems;

o Setting computers on energy saving modes,

and others; and

o Encourage teleconferences and internet-
meeting practices to avoid unnecessary
business travel.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group consumed
a total of 394,140 kWh of electricity (FY2022:
468,916 kWh). For electricity consumption, the total
amount was 16% less than the previous reporting
year. For diesel consumption, the total amount
was the same as the previous reporting year. For
petroleum, the total amount was 19% less than the
previous reporting year. For natural gas, the total
amount was 592% more than the previous reporting
year.
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Water (KPI A2.4)
The Group did not have any significant issue on
sourcing water for operation.

In addition to its effort into energy conservation, the
Group has been working with its employees on water
conservation measures. The Group plans to reduce
the water consumption by 5% in 2030 with 2020 as
the base year by adopting the following measures.

° Control water flow at the tap to avoid over
usage;

o Turn off the tap when applying soap;

o Avoid unnecessary flushes;

° Conduct regular maintenance of water taps;
and

° Avoid wasting water in upflow water
dispensers.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the total water
consumption was 1% more than the previous
reporting year, which again demonstrates the
effectiveness of our conservation measures and
practices. [

In summary, a consolidated data table on the
Group’s resource consumption for the ESG Reporting
Year and the previous reporting year is set out below:
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B ZE-=HE —ZT-§F
ZECCSRE CToCBF HOQEMY BB HE
Percentage

Increase (+) or FY2023 FY2022

HAEEE (Bf1) Consumption item (unit) FY2023 FY2022  Decrease (-) *Intensity *Intensity

BEE(TRE) Electricity Consumption (kwh) 394,140 468,916 -16% 1.13 0.52

BKE(IFX) Water Consumption (m®) 712 703 +1% <0.01 <0.01

Kh-BEER(GH) Diesel — Machine Use (L) 0 0 T@fn/a  Ti#fn/a TR/

AAR(LFR) Natural Gas (m?) 67,538 9,754 +592% 0.2 0.01

B(H) Petroleum (L) 2,850 3,504 -19% <0.01 <0.01
* BEAG—THETHRAGE - The intensities are calculated on the basis of the amount of

BREREBHRBENGEIZE
(BHEENRR) B A& M
(RERFE  HEREARRSE -
fier— : RIBABREBIERRS
EaDMHmEER - AEEKE
BERLEHRRMERHER - &
BB — 2 INea A A A B
RAMKERNES - (KPI A2.1)
(KPI A2.2)
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revenue per thousand Hong Kong dollars.

GHG emission data are calculated with reference

to, including but not limited to, the reporting

requirements of “How to prepare an ESG Report —

Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on Environmental

KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange. The Group will

continue to monitor resource consumption throughout

its operation. Further enhancement initiatives on

efficient use of energy and water will be implemented
as and when appropriate. (KP1 A2.1)(KPIl A2.2)
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Packaging Material for Finished Products and Use
of Other Resources (KPI A2.5)

Owing to our business nature, there are minimal
packaging materials involved in the construction sites
of the Group, whereby finished products are mainly
building construction items. In other operations of
the Group, packaging materials for finished products
do not pose a significant impact. In sourcing our
packaging materials in our other operations, the
Group abides by the criteria that they must fit our
purpose of sourcing them in the first place and
meet our requirements of their configurations. Non-
toxicity and environmental friendliness are in fact our
keen concern. These issues are under the constant
attention and review of the various end users of
the Group. Due to the insignificance of packaging
material used in the operations of the Group, the key
performance indicator A2.5 as set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide is not applicable to the Group.

Paper Consumption (KPI A3.1)

In the context of today’s complex construction
industry, it is inevitable to use paper due to the
nature of works, whereby we need to print drawings,
details, etc. for site supervision purposes. In addition,
daily hardcopies of documents need to be kept
on site, such as daily tool box meeting records,
inspection forms, progress reports and claims, etc.
The Company keeps a record of the amount of
papers used. For cost saving and environmental
protection purposes, the Company has encouraged
the employees to reduce the use of paper by
electronic means. During the ESG Reporting Year,
the Group used a total of 0.008 tons of paper, same
as the previous reporting year, which was mainly due
to a decrease in the number of building construction
projects. The intensity o__f__pab’é'i'. u‘é‘e‘d\\_i‘n term of million
Hong Kong dollars of revenue generéted during the
ESG Reporting Year was 0.000023, which was_less
than 0.000112 of the previous reporting year. I
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A4.

To strengthen the Group’s management of resources
consumption, the Group intends to create a
paperless working environment by reducing paper
usage, facilitating information sharing via online
networks, and simplifying documentation procedures.
In addition, employees are recommended to use
duplex printing and copying, which has become
a norm within the Group. Paper consumption is
reduced.

Climate Change

As COP27 (2022 United Nations Climate Change
Conference of the Parties) has laid out the new
building blocks to accelerate the implementation of
the Paris Agreement, every nation has stepped up
and advanced towards a carbon neutral economy
to address climate threats. Similarly, the Group has
been assessing the climate related risk as well as
opportunities, and has allocated sufficient resources
to mitigate any potential negative impact. The
Group’s approach to address climate threats covers
two main dimensions, namely, physical risk and the
transition risk, which will be further elaborated in the
section below.

Physical risk

Acute: Acute physical risk is event-driven which
encompasses typhoons, floods and cyclones. These
events may damage the physical assets of the Group.
Employees may also be unable to meet clients or
travel to office in severe weather events. Temporary
business disruption may take place on such
occasions. Ultimately, this may affect the relationship
of the Group and clients. Contingency plans have
been developed to mitigate the potential impact of
various weather events to lower the resilient risk.
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Chronic: The changes in weather patterns such as
the rise in the average temperature or the increase
in precipitation, may affect transportation, electricity,
water and internet. To mitigate the relevant risk, the
Group has established contingency measures that
encompasses a variety of weather-related events to
minimise the impact to its business operation brought
on by climate-related risk.

Transition risk

Policy and Legal risk: At the United Nations General
Assembly in 2020, President Xi Jinping announced
that the PRC will strive to achieve carbon neutrality
by 2060. China unveiled a master working guideline
on 24 Oct 2021 which aims to elevate energy
efficiency to an advanced international level and lift
non-fossil energy consumption to over 80 percent of
the whole by 2060. Attributed to such commitments,
it is anticipated that more stringent policies and
initiatives will be implemented by the government
to meet the net-zero carbon emission ambition,
thus higher operating costs may be incurred by the
Group to replace tools and equipment with models of
higher efficiency to ensure future compliance with the
regulations.

Technology risk: Technology does not play a major
role in the Groups business and the risk is regarded
as relatively low. In the ESG Reporting Year, there
was no major downtime of the Group’s information
technology system. The Group will periodically review
the Group’s system to ensure the stable operation of
business.
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Market Risk: There has not been a shift in the market
sentiment towards environmental products. The
market risk is relatively low.

Reputational risk: Since the policy and legal, market
risk and technology risks are relatively low, the
impact of climate change on our reputation is also
considered at a minimal level.

Overall, the climate risk to the Group is relatively low,
and the Group will continue to monitor the impact of
climate change on the Group’s business operation.

SOCIAL

The Group believes that employees are the most valuable
assets for its business and strives to provide the best
working environment and benefits to retain talents.
Throughout the ESG Reporting Year, the Group complied
with all applicable employment and labour related laws
and regulations. The Group will continue doing better and
growing sustainably in a socially responsible manner. For
those business units in mainland China, minors below age
16 are prohibited from employment pursuant to article 15
of the PRC Labour Law ((F#EARKFMELEE)). The
Group adheres to the laws of the PRC for its operations in
mainland China.
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B1. Employment

a.

Policy

Employees are the Group’s most precious
asset. The Group understands a motivated and
balanced workforce is crucial to the success
and sustainable growth of business, and it is
dedicated to providing a safe, equal-working
and fair environment throughout its operation.
The Group’s remuneration policy states
clearly that employees will be compensated
in a fair and equitable manner, and provided
with the opportunity to grow and excel with
the Group through continuous learning at all
levels. The Group’s senior management keeps
communication with employees, ensuring this
culture can be implemented across all levels
of the Group.

We believe that working in a diverse and
harmonious environment are the building
blocks of attaining our corporate goal — to
deliver the best services in terms of cost,
quality and products to our customers. The
Group will keep working on gender diversity
across different positions and levels.
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RESGHREFER - A%
ERE THEREFHIR
THEITZXET - BEIBRE
FREHBET - JMAIRME 97 employees. The workforce consists of
Bl FERAER - I E S all full-time employees. The distribution of
BT M our workforce by gender, age group and
geographical region are as follows:

At the end of the ESG Reporting Year, the
Group decreased the size of workforce by
7% compared with the previous year to

EEAH(EAL)
Number of Employees (Percentage)
“ROZHE Sl 2 BAE

Percentage
BE Category FY2023 FY2022 Change
5 Gender
-5t - Male 55 (57%) 57 (55%) -4%
-k - Female 42 (43%) 47 (45%) -11%
FHAER Age Group
— 305U T - Below 30 23 (24%) 20 (19%) +15%
— 3152405 - Between 31 - 40 38 (39%) 47 (45%) -19%
— MERE5055 - Between 41 - 50 17 (17%) 15 (15%) +13%
) - Above 50 19 (20%) 22 (21%) -14%
biiho Geographical Region
— - PRC 90 (93%) 98 (94%) -8%
—& - Hong Kong 7 (7%) 6 (6%) +17%
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In order to attract and retain talents, the
Group rewards its employees with competitive
remuneration (including performance bonus),
along with promotional opportunities,
compensation and benefits packages. Employee
remuneration packages are maintained at
competitive levels and employees are rewarded
through the Group’s salary and bonus system.
Remuneration is determined with reference to
the prevailing market condition as well as the
competency, qualifications and experience of
individual employees. Performance bonus will
be paid to the employees as a recognition of
their contributions to the Group.
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Employee Turnover

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group’s
overall employee turnover rate was approximately
23%. A relatively high turmover rate was recorded
due to the expansion of the business in Mainland
China. The composition of employee was
relatively unstable.

The table below shows the employee turnover
rate by (i) gender, (ii) age group and (iii)

MR

geographical region:

“BICHE Sl 53 BALE

Percentage
BE Category FY2023 FY2022 Change
5 Gender
-5k - Male 23% 38% -39%
- - Female 24% 26% 7%
FERAR Age Group
— 30T - Below 30 35% 100% -65%
— 31REA0R - Between 31 - 40 13% 20% -35%
— 41 E505% ~ Between 41 - 50 35% 33% +6%
— BOBRMAE - Above 50 21% 0% TERN/A
133 Geographical Region
— -PRC 26% 33% -21%
—&k - Hong Kong 20% 0% NEBN/A

BMTETBERIRF
ERERMINES - BRI
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BRERBTETRNIEG
ML - MMERRBRRE

T

We do not dismiss our employees unnecessarily
or unfairly, unless the employee fails to comply
with our company policies and has committed
an act of misconduct where, after serious
consideration, termination is the disciplinary
action.
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Employment Policy

The emolument policy regarding the
employees of the Group should be based on
their merit, qualifications and competence.
The emoluments of the executive Directors
are reviewed and determined by the
remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”), having
regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and prevailing market
condition. The emoluments of the Directors
are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and the emolument of senior management
are determined by the Board. No Director or
any of his or her associates was involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

Compliance with Relevant Laws that Have
Significant Impact

For Hong Kong business units, employees
are entitled to Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, medical
and life insurance programme. For PRC
business units, the Group has offered the
employees social insurance benefits, as well
as various leaves and holidays in accordance
with the Provisions on Minimum Wages,
the Regulations on Paid Annual Leave for
Employees, the Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurance and the Special Rules on the
Labour Protection of Female Employees of the
PRC. The Labour Law of the PRC is strictly
complied with by the Group in handling the
dismissal of employees. Statutory holidays and
different types of paid leave including annual
leave, sick leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave, compensation leave, compassionate
leave and injury leave are also offered as parts
of the benefits for all levels of the Group. In
addition, policies on remuneration, benefits,
training and occupational health and safety
are regularly reviewed, and disciplinary action
would be taken if an employee has committed
an act of serious misconduct.
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Remuneration Committee

To ensure the Group’s remuneration scheme
stays competitive, the Company has
established the Remuneration Committee,
with its roles and functions set out in specific
written terms of reference in accordance with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee will meet
regularly to review the remuneration policy
of the Company, assess the performance,
and recommend remuneration packages
of Directors and senior management of the
Company.

Retirement Benefit Scheme

The Group participates in MPF scheme and
such contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the Group’s profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. [

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs, depending on the location
of the subsidiaries, to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the
Group’s profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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Equal Opportunities, Diversity and Anti-
Discrimination

Equal opportunities are given to employees
in respect of recruitment, promotion,
training and development, job advancement,
compensation and benefits and all other
aspects of employment practices. The Group
has been relocating its principal operations
to mainland China. By virtue of article 12 of
the PRC Labour Law ({ & & A R £ #1F 4
&% )), discriminations on ethnic, race, sex
and religions are prohibited. The diversity of
employees provides the Group with a valuable
mix of perspectives, skills, experience and
knowledge for addressing contemporary
business issues. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such
opportunities on the grounds of gender,
ethnic background, religion, colour, sexua
orientation, age, marital status, family status,
retirement, disability, pregnancy or any other
grounds of discrimination prohibited by
applicable laws. The Group appreciates the
importance of cultural diversity, and it has no
tolerance of any form of sexual harassment
and discrimination behaviour. Employees found
to have committed such acts are subject to
internal disciplinary actions.
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B2. Health and Safety

a.

Policy

Operational health and safety is treated as
one of the top priorities in the Group, and the
Group strives to maintain a high occupational
safety and health standard, ensuring a safe
and comfortable working environment for
its employees. To support and maintain the
culture of work-life balance, the Group actively
provides a variety of staff activities with
employees. All these activities help strengthen
relationships among employees, and foster a
healthy and harmonious working environment.

Compliance with Relevant Laws that have
Significant Impact

Compliance of the relevant statutory provision
of the law is the concern and has the topmost
priority in our business goals. The Group
has taken out the required insurance for all
qualified employees in accordance with the
statutory requirements.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group
had no material non-compliance with relevant
standards, rules and regulations, and did not
encounter major accidents in its operation.
The Group is pleased to report that there was
no work-related injury cases or fatalities in the
ESG Reporting Year. (KPI B2.1) (KPI B2.2)
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B3.

Employees were provided with a clear
occupational safety guideline for daily
operation practices, recommending the
appropriate conduct or the use of safety
equipment during operation. Notices were
posted in the common area as reminders for
employees to raise awareness of and minimise
occupational related injury. In addition, every
case of injury (if any) is required to be reported
to the Group and to be individually assessed
under the internal guideline procedures. (KPI
B2.3)

Development and Training

Given the wide range of business activities, the
Group places great emphasis on employee training
and development, and this topic is included as
an important part of the Group’s human capital
management strategy. The Group supports its
directors and employees to develop and enhance
their knowledge, and holds tailor-made training
annually to improve employees’ work-related soft and
hard skills, and to develop skills necessary for career
advancement. The Group encourages directors
and employees at all levels to pursue training
opportunities that facilitate personal growth and
professional development.
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During the ESG Reporting Year, 36 directors and
employees representing 37% of the total workforce

were provided with training. The distribution of the
37% trained directors and employees by gender and
employee category are as follows:

BEJNEER
BT AH(%)
Number of
Directors and

Employees
EE Category Trained (%)
14 5l Gender
— 5% - Male 56%
— 2 - Female 44%
EEEH Employee category
—BREEBAE — Senior management 28%
—HHEEAE — Middle management 17%
—EmET — General employees 55%

BEREIEZHNIHEIHH
B36/NEF c IRMERI N B THERIE
DHFHEIISET

Directors and employees received on average of 36

training hours and the average training hours for the

gender and employee category are as follows:

T
Average

EE Category Training Hour
31 Gender

— 5 - Male 20
— - Female 16
EBEER Employee category

—=2REEBAE — Senior management 10
—HREEAR — Middle management 6
—E@mET — General employees 20

RERFEIAL AR A7) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 53



RiZ

54

B4.

HEREARE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

TR

a.

BFE
AEBRBEEREER
B B (R o K 4m ) B &% (K 25

IR o REFBNHAE
REZEFHEE T oA

BTHEBERRERED -
SN - REE IR B &
R BRAEREINEE
BEREENHEST -

FiE K& W /BT BE Y
HREREEFSE  HER
BEE  2FTERERHEH
BEFHAXME - UHERE
K &ié%k o (KPI B4.1)

BFEEAZENEH %
#
REE D KET BEAKES
E) ABHEREIRKR
EEER) REBEOF
57TE(BIRIGHDF LR R
R HERENSETE
BHIE - EPERELER
AEBREKERAAE
AEIRRELT - BE
FEREMABRMNZE R

ERBINEARE RE
TERRE  UEERE
MREEE - TEEEAN

BEEMABRERF o KR
HEXRS D ERANEIEE
A EBIEERE - i3
REEAERERERK
REMNER - AGRE& L
HRES -

Annual Report 2023 3§

B4.

Labour Standards

a.

Policy

The Group adopts the statutory standard as its
minimum labour standard on labour protection
and welfare. The Group is committed to
ensuring its full compliance with relevant laws
and regulations relating to child and forced
labour. In addition, the Group adopts a serious
view and attaches great importance to the
compliance of statutory duties and obligations
as an employer.

All job applicants are required to submit their
credentials such as academic qualifications,
professional skill certificates, references
and identity card for verification and record
purposes during recruitment. (KPI B4.1)

Compliance with Relevant Laws that have
Significant Impact

The Group has developed its labour
management system in accordance with laws
and regulations such as the Labour Law (%5
3L )), the Labour Contract Law (( & & &
[R’A)) and the Work Safety Law ({(Z &4 E
7&)) of the PRC, and Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Child
labour or forced labour is strictly prohibited
from taking any positions in the Group and its
members. The candidate information is strictly
verified. Candidates will be permitted to admit
into registration and on-boarding procedures
only if identity cards verification and checks
on residence registration have not detected
any abnormal issues. Candidates who cannot
provide valid certificates of identity will not be
qualified for employment. If any information is
found to be in violation of employment laws
or standards, the recruitment will be instantly
terminated.
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B5.

The Group strictly adheres to the laws on
labour protection to ensure employee health,
safety and welfare during their employment.
The Group also pays wages and salaries,
benefits, compensation payments and
insurance on time within the prescribed period.

The Group honours all of its obligations
towards staff and no disputes or litigations
on labour matters were reported for the ESG
Reporting Year.

Supply Chain Management
The Group maintains good relationships with
suppliers and meet the customers’ needs in an
effective and efficient manner.

The Group values mutually beneficial and
longstanding relationships with its suppliers. The
Group works closely with a number of suppliers in
order to provide high quality services. The selection
of suppliers is based on criteria such as price, quality
of products, customer service team responsiveness,
capability and experience, with preference given
to potential suppliers that demonstrate their
commitment to the environment. During the
background investigation process, suppliers that have
green certification and show strong background of
corporate social responsibility will be given priority
in the selection process. During the ESG Reporting
Period, the Group implemented its supply chain
practices to all the suppliers. The management is
responsible for monitoring and implementation of the
selection process.
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As the Group prefers selecting suppliers who share
the same environmental, social and ethical values
with us, the Group also pays attention to the supplier’
past environmental compliance record as well as their
commitment to social responsibility part from the
products and services quality. In FY2023, the Group
partnered with 64 suppliers in total, all of which were
located in PRC.

The Group promotes environmentally preferred
products and services by offering training to
employees on different aspects and to highlight key
green market trends and best practices. Incentives
are also offered to suppliers to provide materials
that are certified with green certificates. The Group
also takes in suggestions from senior management
and advice from industry seminars on environmental
products and services.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group was
not aware of any suppliers that had any actions or
practices which had caused significant negative
impacts on business ethics, environmental protection,
labour practices and human rights.
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B6.

Product Responsibility and Customer Service
(KPI B6.1, B6.2 and B6.4)

The Group’s end products are mainly finished
buildings or properties which are subject to stringent
government control and independent consultant
supervision and inspection during the planning,
design and construction stages. Most of the risks
regarding defaulted end products (whether on health
and safety issues or deviation from specifications)
are detected in a timely manner. Such risks are
reasonably minimised by the existing industry
checking practices and our internal supervision plans.

The Group is committed to providing high quality
end products as we realise that the quality and
consistency of our products are critical to our ability
to maintain our professionalism and to expand market
shares. Great importance is attached to the safety
standard of our products. The Group maintains close
contact with our business peers in the trade to keep
abreast of the latest building construction technology
and knowledge.

The Group adheres to the laws of the PRC regarding
product responsibility and customer service such
as the Urban Real Estate Administration Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({F#E A R LMBE T E
HEEIEE)), Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests ({#
EARLMBIEE E = RE)L)) and Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({fFZE AR
MEEEE)).

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group did not
have records of quality claims on our products and
services which had material a_d\verse impact on our
business.

The Group values its customers: There were no-major
complaints in the ESG Reporting Year. By regulé'rty\____
reviewing the feedback from clients, all disputes
and complaints are fairly investigated and resolved
promptly. As a result, the Group has earned trusted
relationships with its broad customer base through
providing excellent customer services.
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The Group has also set up a complaint hotline,
company website, complaint mailbox and other
channels to receive customers’ opinions and
suggestions. The Group also believes effective
communication should include a timely and accurate
information disclosure. Not only does it bring valuable
information to Shareholders and investors, it also
invites constructive feedback for perfecting the
Group’s operation. The Group will continue its open
communication approach, and sustain a successful
long-term working relationship with its stakeholders in
the future.

Protection of Intellectual Property (KPI B6.3)

The Group protects its intellectual property rights
by prolonged use and registration of domain names
and various trademarks. The Group has registered
trademarks in various classes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. In addition, the Group’s trademarks and
domain names are constantly monitored and renewed
upon their expiration.

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group was
not involved in any action of non-compliance with
legal regulations and laws relating to protection of
intellectual property.
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Privacy (KPI B6.5)

The Group’s property development construction
business involves private, confidential and sensitive
information of the customers and projects such as
design, costs and commercial terms of contracts. We
also have confidential information on our business
partners, sub-contractors and employees. These
types of information are extremely sensitive and
important, and pursuant to applicable laws, we have
to cautiously keep and safeguard them. During the
ESG Reporting Period, the Group had complied with
the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and guidelines that are
announced by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner
for Personal Data in Hong Kong.

The Group is fully aware of our obligations, and
has taken measures to ensure safe keeping of the
information. The leakage and loss of the information
to outsiders mainly result from (i) internal negligence
and theft, and (ii) external theft through hacking
of the information system. For the former, the
Group has cautioned our employees not to access
information without approvals, not to leak confidential
information and to handle confidential information
carefully. Legal actions will be taken on any violation.
For the latter, to act against external theft, the Group
has authorised the IT Department to continuously
monitor, maintain and update hardware, software and
security systems to prevent hacking attacks at any
times. No privacy information leakage was reported
in ESG Reporting Year.
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B7.

Anti-Corruption

The Group values employees’ business conduct,
integrity, ethics and discipline. The Group will
continue to explore training opportunities on anti-
corruption and relevant employees are encouraged
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
any matter related to the Group such as misconduct
and malpractice. The Group has provided a set of
training documents, PowerPoint, latest article to the
Directors and staff which are taken from various
regulatory sources and international bodies, including
but not limited to Independent Commission Against
Corruption. Disciplinary actions would be taken by the
Group if any employee is found guilty of corruptive
acts. Such policy can be found in the Employee
Handbook. For business units in mainland China,
corruption is subject to penalty and/or imprisonment
according to the PRC Anti- Corruption and Bribery
Law P A RAFE R B85 8EEE)).

During the ESG Reporting Year, the Group was not
involved in any action of non-compliance with legal
regulations and laws relating to corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

The Group has established a set of comprehensive
whistleblowing policy, which enables employees to
directly inform senior management of corruption,
bribery or other issues through a confidential
platform. Employees will be protected from any form
of retaliation and encouraged to report any issues
in order to maintain a safe working environment.
(KPI B7.2). Every period, the senior management
and Board will monitor whistle blowing cases and
remediate these issue in an effective and timely
manner.
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B8.

Community Investment

The Group understands the importance of generating
and bringing profit to the Shareholders, and being
socially responsible to care, serve and give back to
the community wherever it is needed at the same
time. The Group is committed to creating sustainable
prosperity that brings long-term social and economic
benefits to all stakeholders, particularly to maintain
the relationship with interest groups which are
relevant to business operation, such as providing
employment and business opportunities that indirectly
build wealth in the local community. The Group will
continue upholding the principle of being responsible
for its shareholders and investors, employees,
customers, suppliers, government authorities and
public community, and will seek further development
opportunities to maintain a harmonious relationship
with its stakeholders. This year, the Group focused
on environmental related initiatives, and encouraged
the staffs to go green and support organizations
promoting this cause. Due to the lingering effects of
Covid-19, there were no donations made to charity
organizations. However, the Group had encouraged
staffs to take part in community events and to give
back to the community. (KPI B8.1) (KPI B8.2)
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The Board recognises the importance of sound corporate
governance to the long-term and continuing success of the Group.
The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate standards
and procedures for the best interests of the Shareholders. The
Board will continue to review its corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that the Group complies with the
statutory requirements and the CG Code and aligns with the latest
developments.

COMPLIANCEWITHTHE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had
complied with the applicable code provisions (“Code Provisions”)
of the CG Code in force during the year, except for the deviation
from Code Provision C.2.1 as explained below:

Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Qiu Dongfang, an
executive Director, currently acts as the Chairman of the Board
and the Company does not have any offices with the title of “Chief
Executive Officer”. Mr. Qiu Dongfang, together with other Directors,
are responsible for the overall business strategy and development
and management of the Group’s business. The Board meets
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of the
Group. The Board considers that this structure does not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company. However, the Board will also review
regularly the board composition and appoint a chief executive

officer if a suitable person is identified.

Code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code stipulates that independent
non-executive Directors and other non-executive Directors shall
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of Shareholders of the Company. Due to other business
arrangements, Mr. Wang Zhe, the independent non-executive
Director, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 9 September 2022.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Board takes decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.
All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Group as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each of the Director to perform their responsibilities
to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation are delegated to the
senior management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qiu Dongfang (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai

Ms. Yu Yixing

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau
Mr. Qiu Bin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy

Mr. Wang Zhe

Mr. Yi Baxian

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound board level experience and expertise relevant to the
business operations and development of the Group.

Pursuant to article 108 of the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company (“Articles”), one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
and every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

All the non-executive Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors, are appointed for a term of three years, which
is automatically renewable for successive term of one year upon
the expiry of the said term and subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received annual confirmation of independence from all the
independent non-executive Directors. Based on the confirmations
received, the Company is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent under the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among members of the Board and senior management
of the Company.
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Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group. The Directors
are given adequate notice to attend such regular Board meetings
or other Board meetings.

Directors may participate either in person or through electronic
means of communications. Draft and final versions of minutes are
circulated to all Directors for comments and records respectively,
within reasonable time after Board meetings are held. Final versions
of minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Directors.

The Company held 14 Board meetings during the year ended 31
March 2023.

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings,
Board committee meetings and general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 March 2023 is set out below:

Number of megtings attended/held

i/ Bredny
Board Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination  Annual General  Extraordinary
Meeting  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting  General Meeting
E3883 BHZRE  FMZEE  ReZEE RREEAE  RRNAAE
YiEs Executive Directors
RN ENANBEERR) M. Qiu Dongfang (appointed on 9 September 2022) 66 NAT@ER NARER - NATER NATER 1
E-BAt(R-E--ENANREER) Ms. Yu Yixing (appointed on 9 September 2022) 66  NATER NARER  NATER NATER 11
REaLE Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai 1414 NANER NAMER  NATER 1 1
BRTEE(R-E-ENANBER) Mr. Dai Dong Xing (retirect on 9 September 202) 98 NATER NATR R 20 11 NARER
FHUTES Non-Executive Director
NS Mr. Chui Kwong Kau 1414+ NATER NARER  NATER 10 1
Bt (R-E-—ENANBERR) M. Qiu Bin (appointed on 9 September 2022) 6/6 11 NARER  NATER NATEE 1
BUiuES Independent Non-Executive Directors
THEE Mr. Weng Zhe 14114 38 22 ) S | i
SNBRE(N=Z-ENRNREES) Mr. Yi Baxian (appointed on 9 September 2029) 66  NATER NATSER - NATER NAREE 1
Rshtt Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Bily 14/14 3 2% 2 " il
TRERER-EZZEAANBERR) Mr..Xu Liang We (retred on 9 September 2022) 8/8 202 2 NAFER 1h NRER

ROTE-=BF  EFSTFMEEBIIEH  During FY2023, the Chairman of the Board held 1 meeting with all

TEFRT - RNRBEMESTHRENEGZ -

the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
the other Directors.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that their
compliance with the Model Code and the code of conduct
throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every newly appointed Director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of
the operations and business of the Group as well as his or her
responsibilities and obligations under Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Company acknowledges the importance of adequate and
ample continuing professional development for the Directors to a
sound and effective internal control system and good corporate
In this regard, the Company has always
encouraged the Directors to attend relevant training courses

governance practice.

to receive the latest news and knowledge regarding corporate
governance.

The Company updates Directors on the latest developments and
changes to the Listing Rules and the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements concerning good corporate governance practices.
Reading materials on regulatory updates were also provided to the
Directors for updating their knowledge on the relevant issues. The
Company will, if necessary, provide timely and regular trainings
to the Directors to ensure that they keep abreast of the current
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company has also
adopted a policy to reimburse the Directors for any relevant training
costs and expenses incurred concerning corporate governance and
internal control.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with Code Provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code on directors’ training. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, all Directors had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/in-house briefing
and reading materials on the followings topics to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, and provided their records of
training to the Company as follows:
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Attending
courses/

seminars/ Reading books/
Director conferences journals/articles

HERE EEE
BE TN B, X'
HITES Executive Directors
ERGEE Mr. Qiu Dongfang v v/
E—EXZ+ Ms. Yu Yixing v/ v
RAEB A Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai v/ v/
FHITES Non-Executive Directors
ENIRIEAE Mr. Chui Kwong Kau v v
BB XH 55 4 Mr. Qiu Bin v v
BAFHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
Tk AE Mr. Wang Zhe v v/
HN\BRE Mr. Yi Baxian v v
PR 58 5T A Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy v v/
EEXZET BOARD COMMITTEES
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The Board has three board committees, namely, the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to the
Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the
Listing Rules and principle D.3 of the C(_B___.Gode-..\]:he primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to assis"t""'the Board\by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control procedures and risk management sygt'ems
of the Group, to oversee the audit process and the relationship with"
external auditors, to review arrangements enabling employees of
the Group to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Group and to
perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
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As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy, an
independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mr. Qiu Bin, a non-executive Director, and Mr. Wang
Zhe, an independent non-executive Director, are members of the
Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee had
held 3 meetings and the attendance records of the members are
set out on page 65 of this annual report. The Audit Committee
had reviewed the annual results of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2022 and the interim results of the Company for
the six months ended 30 September 2022, significant issues on
the financial reporting process, internal control procedures, risk
management systems, internal audit function, scope of work and
appointment of external auditors and arrangements for employees
to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has engaged
an external consultant to assist the Audit Committee to assess the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management of the
Group and the compliance procedures.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice for the
year ended 31 March 2023 without the presence of the executive
Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26
of the Listing Rules and Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration, to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management and to review and approve performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time. The Remuneration
Committee also reviews and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Yi Baxian, an independent
non-executive Director, is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Ms. Yu Yixing, an executive Director, and Mr. Wang
Zhe, an independent non-executive Director, are members of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings to review the policy for the
remuneration of Directors, assess the performance of Directors and
had recommended to the Board on the approval of the Directors
and senior management remuneration packages. The attendance
records of members are set out on page 65 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision
B.3.1 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the issuer’s corporate strategy, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships and to assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

Selection of Board candidates will be based on merits and
contributions that the candidates will bring to the Board, having
due regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board without focusing
on a single diversity aspect.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Qiu Dongfang, the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director, is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wang Zhe and Mr. Yi Baxian,
both independent non-executive Directors, are members of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Nominaiion Committee
held 2 meetings to consider the Board composition and-make
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors;.
and to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. The attendance records of members of the Nomination
Committee are set out on page 65 of this annual report.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in relation to the
nomination and appointment of Directors. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. In recommending candidates for
appointment to the Board, the Nomination Committee will consider
the measurable objectives it has set (if any) for implementing the
board diversity policy, and a number of factors relating to the
candidates, including but not limited to their gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience and
knowledge.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the current Board
composition and diversity, currently with one female Director out of
eight Directors, and consider that gender diversity of the Board has
been achieved. The Board targets to maintain at least the current
level of female representation and is committed to improving its
gender diversity. The Nomination Committee will continue to search
for and identify suitably qualified candidates and make nomination
recommendations to the Board.

The Group is well aware of the importance of nurturing talents
and supporting the development of employees, and the Group is
committed to achieving gender diversity in the workforce level. As
at 31 March 2023, the Group’s total workforce (including senior
management) is comprised of approximately 56% male and 44%
female employees. The Board believes that the gender diversity
of all employees in the Group is balanced currently and the
gender diversity in the workforce level will be maintained. During
the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board was not aware of any
mitigating factors or circumstances which make achieving gender
diversity across the workforce (including senior management)
more challenging or less relevant. The Company will also ensure
that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior
level in the future and the Company is committed to provide
career development opportunities for female staff with a view to
developing a pipeline of potential successors to the Board for
maintaining gender diversity. Details of the gender ratio of the
Group together with relevant data can be found in the ESG Report
of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will review the composition of the Board
under diversity perspectives and will monitor the implementation of
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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Independent views available to the Board

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent

views and input are available to the Board. A summary of these

mechanisms is set out below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Composition

The Board ensures the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one-third
of its members being independent non-executive Directors
(or such higher threshold as may be required by the Listing
Rules from time to time), with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Further, independent non-executive Directors will
be appointed to Board committees as required under the
Listing Rules and as far as practicable to ensure independent
views are available. The presence of three independent non-
executive Directors, representing more than one-third of the
Board, provides the Group with diversified expertise and
experience. Their views and participation in the Board and
committee meetings bring independent judgment and advice
to the Board on issues relating to the Group’s strategies,
performance and management process.

Independence Assessment

The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
director nomination policy of the Company with regard
to the nomination and appointment of independent non-
executive Directors, and is mandated to assess annually
the independence of independent non-executive Directors
to ensure that they can continually exercise independent
judgement.

Remuneration

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive
Directors as this may lead to __bias""i"r”\ t‘H‘éir\\_‘deCision-making
and compromise their objectivity and indepehdence.
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(d)

(e)

Board Decision Making

Independent non-executive Directors are entitled to seek
further information from the management on the matters
to be discussed at Board meetings and, where necessary,
independent advice from external professional advisers at
the Company’s expense. A Director (including independent
non-executive Director) who has a material interest in a
contract, transaction or arrangement shall not vote or be
counted in the quorum on any Board resolution approving
the same.

Meetings with senior management

All independent non-executive Directors can share their
views and opinions through regular/ad hoc meetings with
senior management. Presentation on business performance
would be arranged from time to time or upon request for
independent non-executive Directors, providing opportunities
for them to express their independent views and inputs on
management process and business performance.

The Company has received confirmation in writing of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, in respect of their independence for the year
ended 31 March 2023 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee reviewed and concluded
that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent parties in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and free of any
relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgements.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the above mechanisms on an annual basis
and considered the same effective in ensuring availability of
independent views and inputs to the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the

selection criteria and procedures to nominate Board candidates.

When making recommendations to the Board on the appointment

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for

Directors, the Nomination Committee would consider a number

of factors in assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate,

including but not limited to:
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(@) reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the property
development, healthcare holiday resort development and
operation, foundation piling, investment securities industries
and/or other related industries;

(c) commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention to the
Group’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge;

(e) the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Group’s success;

(f) compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment or
re-appointment of independent non-executive Directors; and

(9) any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.

Appointment of any proposed candidates to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing members of the Board shall be made
in accordance with the Articles and other applicable rules and
regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During FY2023, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance functions, including but not limited to the Company’s
corporate governance policies and prachces training and
continuous professional development ofthe D‘rectors and senior
management, compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
Directors’ compliance with the Model Code and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporéte____
Governance Report.

RERFEIAL AR A7) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 73



LERELIHRE
Corporate Governance Report

BREEAS ZHMH
ERRNTARAGREREAB(BERES
EENaMEEBAR) 2HMIRERNE D 27
BHEN T

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Details of remuneration payable to members of senior management
of the Company, including those members of senior management
who are also Directors, are shown in the following table by band:
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1

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the total fees paid/payable,
excluding disbursements, in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by BDO Limited (including any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally
or internationally) were approximately HK$1,300,000 and HK$1,180,000,
respectively. The fees paid for non-audit services included approximately
HK$200,000 and HK$980,000 for review of interim results and other
professional services in respect of the Disposal, respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appointed Mr. Ng Kam Ming as the Company Secretary
in accordance with the Articles and in compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules on 1 August 2019. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, the Company Secretary had taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective internal control and risk managements systems, including
but not limited to evaluating and determining the nature and level of
risk tolerance of the Company, establishing and maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and
overseeing and reviewing the design, implementation and monitoring
of such risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing
basis, so as to safeguard Shareholders’ interest and protect the
Company’s assets against unauthorised use or disposal. The Board
is also responsible for ensuring maintenance of proper accounting
records to provide reliable financial information and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. The effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems will be reviewed and
evaluated by the Audit Committee and the Board at least annually.
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The risk management and internal control systems established by
the Group are aimed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses
caused by judgment in decision making process, human error,
fraud or other irregularities.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
comprise a defined management structure, where designated
management in each department of the Group are responsible for
identifying, assessing and managing significant risks that occur
in the Group’s operations. The designated management report
directly to the Board of any material internal control defects in
order to make necessary modifications to the systems, and to
ensure that the Group’s activities are effectively controlled so
that management’s risk responses and policies are carried out
as planned towards the achievement of the Group’s strategic,
operational, compliance and reporting objectives.

The Group has established an internal audit function to evaluate
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems independently. The Group’s internal audit function
is responsible for carrying out analysis and appraisal of the Group’s
risk management and internal controls systems, and reports directly
to the Audit Committee.

The Company has also formulated policies on handling and
dissemination of inside information by reference to the Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission, which set out procedures in handling inside
information in a secure and proper manner as well as those aimed
to avoid mishandling of inside information of the Group.

During FY2023, the Board has discussed and reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems covering material controls (inoluding__financial, operational
and compliance controls) at entity e_l__r__ld -"(")’b'erz‘a\ﬁ‘ona__l levels. Based
on the outcome of the review performed by [the Cdmpany‘s Audit
Committee, administrative management and the independent
auditor, the Directors considered and were of the opinion that the._
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and internal
audit function are effective and adequate.
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Whistleblowing Policy

The Company aims at all times to act ethically and with integrity,
and to implant this behavior in all its employees. During the year,
the Company has revised the Whistleblowing Policy. Through the
Whistleblowing Policy, all relevant persons (including Directors,
employees and those who deal with the Group) are encouraged
to report, in a confidential manner, any concerns about suspected
malpractice, fraud, bribery or irregularities relating to the Group.
Case(s) can be submitted by way of email (email address:
ask@boill.com), telephone or mail correspondence, addressed to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Group’s risk management department. According
to the existing Whistleblowing Policy, the Group’s risk management
department is responsible for investigating and handing reported
cases in accordance with relevant systems. The Group’s risk
management department reports to the Audit Committee the
overall situation and results regarding the reported cases twice a
year during the reporting period.

Anti-fraud and Anti-bribery Policy

The Company has revised the Anti-fraud and Anti-bribery Policy
and also posted it on the Company’s website. Our Anti-fraud
and Anti-bribery Policy provides that all Directors and employees
are strictly prohibited from any forms of fraud, bribery, money
laundering and financing of terrorism in all business transactions.
Report any cases in accordance with the Whistleblowing Policy in a
timely manner if they become aware of or reasonably suspect that
individuals or enterprises engaged in business transactions with the
Group which might involve in fraud or bribery.

During the year, the Group’s risk management department and the
risk management departments of the subsidiaries have provided
anti-fraud and anti-bribery training to the staff.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) is
currently in force and was in force during the year ended 31 March
2023 for the benefit of the Directors.
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DIRECTOR AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibilities in
preparing the financial statements and ensuring that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared to reflect the true and fair
view of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group
and are in compliance with the relevant accounting standards and
principles, applicable laws and disclosure provisions as required
under the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that the
financial statements of the Group for each financial year have been
prepared on these bases.

The Directors are aware that the Group incurred a loss of
approximately HK$226,634,000 for FY2023 and, as of that
date, the Group’s had current liabilities of approximately
HK$1,599,745,000 including amount due to related companies of
approximately HK$329,235,000, and bank and other borrowings of
approximately HK$341,858,000 that were repayable on demand or
due for repayment within one year from 31 March 2023, while the
Group only had cash and cash equivalents of HK$40,638,000 as at
31 March 2028.

These events or conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability )
continue as a going concern and, therefore, that the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

The Directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient
working capital for its present requirements, based on the cash
flow forecast of the Group covering a period up to 30 June 2024
after taking into account the following:

(i) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group
further received proceeds of HK$129,676,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$148,090,000) from the disposal of
the healthcare holiday reso[t..-i-n""éhaﬁ‘é'ha\i_ according to
the payment terms. The management expected that the

remaining proceeds would also be received on time; .
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(i) In June 2021 a revised loan credit facility (the “Facility”),
which was originally entered into in June 2019, with its
controlling shareholder (a related party) and its beneficial
owner regarding the provision of a loan facility amounting
to RMB900,000,000, under which the beneficial owner
undertakes to provide an additional source of fund for the
purpose of enhancing his commitment to provide the credit
under the Facility. The Facility is unsecured, bearing interest
at the rate of 5% per annum and repayable within a period
of twenty-four months from drawdown date. The Group has
not made any drawdown from the Facility up to the date of
approval for issue of these consolidated financial statements;

(i) The related companies to whom the Group owed
HK$298,733,000 as at 31 March 2023 undertook not to
demand repayment until the Group is in position to repay it;
and

(iv) The Group continued to sell the completed properties held
for sale and properties under development ready for pre-
sale in order to boost the liquidity of the Group.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Based on the information provided by management of the Group
and the steps taken to improve the financial position of the Group,
including but not limited to the receipt of proceeds from disposal
of the healthcare holiday resort and pre-sales and sales proceeds
from of property sales as mentioned above, the Audit Committee
has reviewed and agreed with the Board’s basis for the going
concern basis adopted in preparing the financial statements and
such basis has also been disclosed in the section headed “Note
3 — Basis of preparation — (b) Basis of measurement and going
concern assumption” set out on pages 120 to 121 of this annual
report.

Statement of the responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor
for preparing the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The executive Directors closely monitor the Group’s business
and corporate developments and events so that potential inside
information would be identified promptly. The Company regulates
the handling and dissemination of inside information by restricting
access to inside information to a limited number of employees and
parties on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in possession
of inside information are conversant with their obligations to
preserve confidentiality. External parties, such as financial printer,
are required to sign confidentiality agreement or non-disclosure
agreement. Inside information remains confidential until the
disclosure of such information is appropriately approved and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently
made. Inside information shall be disseminated via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock Exchange before the
information is released via other channels, such as the press or
posting on the Company’s website.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) is a forum in
which the Board and the Shareholders can communicate directly
and exchange views concerning the affairs and overall performance
of the Group, and its future developments, etc. At the AGIVI,
the Directors are available to attend to questions raised by the
Shareholders. The external auditor of the Company is also invited to
be present at the AGM to address the queries of the Shareholders
concerning the audit procedures and the auditor’s report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting on Requisition by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (“‘EGM”). EGM shall also be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The written requisition shall be deposited at the place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong (Room 2101, 21/F Wing On Centre,
No. 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.) or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such place of business, the registered
office of the Company (Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands). The requisition
must state clearly the name of the requisitionist(s), his/her/their
shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene the
EGM, the agenda proposed to be included and the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the EGM and signed by
the requisitionist(s).

Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of Directors

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a retiring
Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting,
unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his or her
willingness to be elected have been lodged with the head office or at
the registration office of the Company. The period for lodgment of the
notices required under the Articles will commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may direct their enquiries concerning their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars. Shareholders
may also make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent that such information has been made publicly available by
the Company. All written enquiries or requests may be forwarded
to the Company’s head office or by email to ir@boill.com or by
fax to (852) 3914 7530. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There is no provision under the Articles for the Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at a general meeting of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may, however,
request the Company to convene an EGM in accordance with the
procedures set out in the above paragraph headed “Convening of
Extraordinary General Meeting on Requisition by Shareholders”.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to Code Provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). Subject to
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles, the
Company may from time to time declare dividends in any currency
to be paid to the members of the Company but no dividend shall
be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.
The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of the
Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company. Declaration of dividends
is subject to the discretion of the Board, taking into consideration
of, among others, (i) the Group’s financial performance; (i) the
Group’s capital requirements and debt level; (iii) the Group’s
liquidity position; (iv) retained earnings and distributable reserves of
the Group; (v) the Group’s business operations, business strategies
and future development needs; (vi) any contractual, statutory and
regulatory restrictions; and (vii) the general economic conditions
and other factors that may have an impact on the performance
and position of the Group. The Bo__@_r.d""\'/\'}i.ll ‘r‘é‘vie‘yv the dividend
policy from time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute
discretion to update, amend and/or modify the dividend policy at
any time as it deems fit and necessary. I
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy.
To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to investors,
the Group delivers corporate development information to the
public through various channels, including general meetings, public
announcements, interim reports and annual reports. The investors
have access to the latest news and information of the Group via its
website (https://www.boillhealthcare.com.hk).

In order to maintain good and effective communication, the
Company together with the Board extend their invitation to all
Shareholders and encourage them to attend the forthcoming AGM
and all future general meetings of the Company.

The Shareholders may also forward their enquiries and suggestions
in writing to the Company to the followings:

Address:

Room 2101, 21/F, Wing On Centre
No. 111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Email: ir@boill.com

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has
maintained sufficient contact details for Shareholders to put
forward enquiries to the Board. In addition, the Company held
an annual general meeting on 9 September 2022 at which
Shareholders were able to communicate their views with the
Chairman of the Board. Corporate communications were published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a
timely manner. Based on the above, the Board considers that
the shareholders’ communication policy of the Company and
its existing communication channels with its Shareholders and
investors are effective in facilitating ongoing communication and
dialogue between Shareholders and the Company. In line with
the Company’s commitment to transparency and accountability,
the Board will continue to review and improve its communication
policies and practices to ensure that the shareholders’ interests are
safeguarded and their voices are heard.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the adoption of a new
set of amended memorandum and articles of association of the
Company was approved by the shareholders at the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 9 September 2022. A copy of the
latest version of the Articles is available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in property development, healthcare
holiday resort development and operation, foundation piling, and
investment securities during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 105 to 106.

DIVIDEND
The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of final
dividend to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2023.

As at the date of approval of this annual report, there was no
arrangement under which a Shareholder had waived or agreed to
waive any dividends.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on pages 243 to 244.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group as required by Schedule 5 of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), including financial key performance indicators, a fair
review of the Company’s business, a description of principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Company and future development in
the Company’s business, can be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

RERFEAL AR A7) Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 83



EFEERE
Directors’ Report

RIRBR R EEF 0 & NRE

AEBRNBEITHELRRE 2GR - §H
AEERFRRARBEUALEERES - EF K
HEBNEZARZFE  RAFHNF226E
B1EZIRE @ MNEARMETRE -

PLESGHREFE - AR A BTKESGHREHE
SIAE R NE TR ER - AEEH T
BAEREER  UEBERAREXRBEZES
EieEMmEERER

BT HEBERERER

AEEERMBER T BETHARERELE
ERBARENHBERNER - BE_T
ZHEZAZTHLFE  A5EHREREE
REABTEREEIEROBER

ME -~ BERRE
AEEYE  BEARBRBE-_ZE-_=F=

A=Z+—BIEFEZEBFBFHAREKREWHRE
BEE16 °
BEYHE

AEEREMERBE_T_=F=A=+—H

IEEEZBHFBHRNEA M BRRMEET -
o) PN

ARRIRNZB=F=A=+—HAZIENER
A2 FHBEEN A B MRS

84  Annual Report 2023 R

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND RELATIONSHIP
WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to building an eco-friendly corporation.
Details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance and
its key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers are
disclosed in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on
pages 25 to 61 of this annual report.

For the ESG Reporting Year, the Company has complied with the
“comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.
The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time
and consider implementing further measures and practices in the
operation of the Group’s business.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has complied in all material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 March
2023, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance with,
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 20283 are set out in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements of the investment properties of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2023 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
The Company’s total issued share capital as at 31 March 2023
was 1,358,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVE AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the reserves of the Group and the Company are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 109
respectively.

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company did not
have distributable reserves to the Shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (“Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution of the Shareholders passed on 22
September 20183 as to attract and retain the best available
personnel and to provide additional incentive to the eligible
participants under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the Directors may at their absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Scheme, grant options to any
employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants or advisor
of the Group, or any substantial shareholders, or any distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners or
service providers of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the
Company subject to such conditions as the Board may think fit (e.g.
vesting period as may be determined by the Board). The eligibility
of any participants to the grant of any options shall be determined
by the Directors from time to time on the basis of the Directors’
opinion as to their contribution to thg_.-de'{/'élop‘r'ﬁent_\_ and growth of
the Group.
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During the AGM of the Company held on 29 September 2017,
the then existing scheme mandate limit in respect of granting of
options to subscribe for shares of the Company under the Scheme
was refreshed and renewed provided that the total number of
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of approval of
the refreshed limit, that is 90,740,000 shares of the Company (as
adjusted by the consolidation of every ten (10) shares of HK$0.025
each into one (1) share of HK$0.25 each pursuant to the share
consolidation approved by the Shareholders at the EGM held on
14 September 2020), representing approximately 6.68% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.
Subject to the approval of the Shareholders, the aggregate number
of the Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Scheme or any other share
options schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to
date of grant must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being. Where any further grant of options
to a participant under the Scheme would result in the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such participant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the shares in issue, such further grant must be separately approved
by the Shareholders in general meeting with such participant and
his associates abstaining from voting.
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Share options granted to Directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders, or any of their respective associates must be
approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Directors who are the grantee).
Where any share options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors, or any of their respective
associates would result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to such
person in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue and having an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Shareholders
where all connected persons of the Company shall abstain from
voting (except where any connected person intend to vote against
the proposed grant).

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted in writing
within 7 days inclusive of the day on which the offer is made.
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period (including the minimum
period, if any, for which an option must be held before it could be
exercised) as the Directors may determine which shall not exceed
ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option with a remittance in favour of
the Company within such time as may be specified in the offer (which
shall not be later than 7 days from the date of the offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined by the
Directors and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the option; (ii) the average closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s gl{:_lily quotations sheets
for the 5 business days immediately _p_)___r_ecéd'ing\'t'he\Qate of grant of
the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Compény’s share on
the date of grant of the option. ;
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The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on 22 September 2013 and up to 21 September
2023, subject to early termination provisions contained in the
Scheme. As at the date of this annual report, the remaining life of
the Scheme is approximately two months and twenty five days.

The number of options available for grant under the scheme
mandate as at 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 was 90,740,000
and 90,740,000, respectively.

No share option was granted since the adoption of the Scheme
and there was no share option outstanding as at 31 March 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Scheme as disclosed above, no other equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year ended 31 March
2023 or subsisted as at 31 March 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Qiu Dongfang (Chairman) (appointed on 9 September 2022)

Ms. Yu Yixing (appointed on 9 September 2022)
Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai
Mr. Dai Dong Xing (retired on 9 September 2022)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau
Mr. Qiu Bin (appointed on 9 September 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy

Mr. Wang Zhe

Mr. Yi Baxian (appointed on 9 September 2022)
Mr. Xu Liang Wei (retired on 9 September 2022)



RIBANFE108K  REERRABAFAEL 5
B=nz2ERZEFAEmMEE HER
EXEASLB=QFWnERE X  REE=S
BRTaBREEEE - REBELE - BENRIRE
ERIHEAEHNEERRBF NS LHER
- HEZTAINEEEREFAELAER
BEEERES -

RIBABRISE1081K - NABAITRBRRAE LER
EENEMREESHER - REBEAMAIE112
- ARRHETHRBIRAES EUEBERE
RN AEREMALTETESR UEMER =R
ERFBES -

RAAREEESBIIIFRTESRE EMRAE
A3 H s BE—_E—_=F=A=+—HItF
EZFEBIUHERE - ARARRASEILE
WITEEHABL -

EERBEN

MEANEERRBFAS LEEETZESR]
BARKE AR —FARMNEECEERERIN)
ML ZRIFEH °

BERTESNARESHBIEAL r ©HEAES
REBE(ETFRR)EFEARRRANEEEER
BIRREE @ YhHFMEZESES -

EFEERE
Directors’ Report

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles, at each AGM one-
third of the Directors for the time being, shall retire from office
by rotation and provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three (3) years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election. Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai,
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau and Mr. Wang Zhe will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming AGM. Each of them, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles, the Company at the
general meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated
office. In accordance with article 112 of the Articles, the Company
may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors for the year ended 31 March
20283. The Company considers each of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Each of the executive Directors shall also be entitled to discretional
bonus to be determined by the Board based on, among other
things, the performance of the individual Director and the
overall financial position of the Group and is subject to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2023, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which (i) were required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO;
or (i) were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

AR R RE
#E &t #/ %R RO #E BAEDE
Approximate
percentage of
Long/short Number of  shareholding in
Name Capacity position Shares held the Company
(Ktiz2)
(Note 2)
Mr. Qiu Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) Long position 710,600,000 52.33%
A R A B (fit1) HE
Bt Notes:
il T EEZREREMALTRAQRRMD RAERBK 1. Such interest in Shares was held by Mr. Qiu as described in note 2 under the
Mz | — o - ZERDERHELE section headed “Interests of substantial shareholders and other persons in
BE Shares and underlying Shares of the Company” below.
2 RZT-=F=A=+—H B¥TKRHBEERE 2 As at 31 March 2023, the total number of issued Shares was 1,358,000,000

1,358,000,000/% B AREI{E0.25/8 TT Y & 3BAR ©
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ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the

SFO:
EARQERAE
BABRDL
BRREE,/ 2 5/ BRME #/ %R PR 8 B (Bt1)
Approximate
percentage of
Long/short No. of  shareholding in
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest position Shares held the Company
(Note 1)
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Person having a security interest in shares  Long position 710,600,000 52.33%
Ltd.* (“China Huarong Asset”) (Note 3)
FEEREEEERNBRAT RGP EEREERNAL(H23) HE
([hEHEREE])
China Huarong International Holdings Ltd. Person having a security interest in shares  Long position 710,600,000 52.33%
(“China Huarong International’) :
REERERERERAR R EEREEROAL HE
([hEZERER])
Boill International Co., Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) Long position 450,600,000 33.18%
(“Boill International’)
REERARD A ([REER]) BHBEAAM22) HE
Shanghai Jiafu Investment Co., Ltd.* Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) Long position 450,600,000 33.18%
(“Shanghai Jiafu”)
HEEEREERARA( LSEE]) Rt EEER (f22) HE
Boill Holding Group Co., Ltd.* Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) Long position 450,600,000 33.18%
(“Boill Holding”)
REAREEERRA([REER]) Rt EEER(f2) HE
Liyao Investment Limited (“Liyao”) Beneficial owner (Note 2) Long position --"2"6'(-).,000,000 19.15%
VEREBRAR(TALE]) BHBEA A (H22) HE
Mr. Cai Weijie Beneficial owner Long position 83,238,000 6.13"%
ZEftsE BHBEAA HE

' EE5)

*

for information purpose only
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Notes:

As at 31 March 2023, the total number of issued shares of the Company was
1,358,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each.

Boill International is wholly-owned by Boill Holding, which in turn is held as to
10.95%, 1.22% and 87.83% by Mr. Qiu, Ms. Huang, and Shanghai Jiafu, an
entity held as to 98.70% and 1.30% by Mr. Qiu and Ms. Huang, respectively.
Ms. Huang is the spouse of Mr. Qiu. Liyao is wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu.
Accordingly, Mr. Qiu was deemed to be interested in 450,600,000 Shares
held by Boill International and 260,000,000 Shares held by Liyao.

China Huarong International is controlled as to 15.16% by Huarong Zhiyuan
Investment & Management Co., Ltd., a 100%-controlled entity of China
Huarong Asset, and 84.84% by China Huarong Asset. Accordingly, China
Huarong Asset is also deemed to be interested in the Shares as China
Huarong International is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Company
had not been notified of any other persons (other than a Director

and chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short

position in the shares and underlying shares in the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 49.6% (2022: 1.6%) of the
total revenue of the Group and the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 21.4% (2022: 0.4%) of the total
revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers during the year ended
31 March 2028.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 82.1% (2022: 89.9%) of the total purchases
of the Group and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
50.4% (2022: 41.5%) of the total purchases.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers during the year ended
31 March 2023. [

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance was entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
March 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding company or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or any entity connected with a Director had
a material interest directly or indirectly stbsisted-at the end of the
reporting period or at any time during the year ended 31 March
2023. SRS
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No management contracts concerning the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the Scheme as disclosed above, at no time during
the year ended 31 March 2023 were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective associates or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2023, there were no related party transactions
or continuing related party transactions set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements which fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” and
were subject to the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 191 of the Articles, the Director, Company
Secretary and other officers for the time being of the Company
for the time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the
Company, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they may incur or
sustain by reasons of any act or execution of their duties to the
Company.

Such provision was in force during the course of the financial year
ended 31 March 2023 and remained in force as of the date of
this annual report. The Company has taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance throughout the year,
which provides appropriate cover for the Directors, Company
Secretary and officers.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all Directors and senior management, having regard to their duties
and responsibilities, individual performance, the Group’s operating
results and prevailing marketing conditions. No Director or any of
his or her associates should be involved in deciding his or her own
remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that neither themselves nor their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest
in any businesses or companies that compete or likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules up to the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of approval of this annual report, the Board was not
aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken
place subsequent to 31 March 2023.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 and met with the
auditors of the Company without the presence of the executive
Directors. In addition, the Audit Committee has also discussed
auditing, risk management and internal control, and financial
reporting matters including the review of the accounting practices
and principles adopted by the Group with senior management of
the Group.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited (“BDO”) has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 22 February 2019. There has been no
change in the auditors of the Company in any of the preceding
three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023 have been audited by BDO, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited
Qiu Dongfang

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BOILL HEALTHCARE
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Boaill
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 105 to 242, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 20283, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(b) in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss
of HK$226,634,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023.
This condition along with other matters set forth in note 3(b) to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

Valuation of investment properties

(refer to note 4(e) on the significant accounting policies and note
17 to the consolidated financial statements)

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) to be
HK$766,978,000 at 31 March 2023, with a net fair value gain of
HK$6,516,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023 recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Independent external valuations were obtained for the
investment properties in order to support management’s estimates.
The valuation methods of different investment properties includes
direct comparison approach and replacement cost approach. The
valuations are dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement, including fair market prices of
similar properties.



FEREETEE®
REMEMLE(R)

BHRRENELEHGAVBERRBEARNE
EREMNEN A BRI REREEEHE -
BB REMEGEEI SARESFSE -

H 189 o
BfIs R ES FHEATORF B

o HEBUSMBREESZER
Bt -

EEHRE

. RAZ 3P 59 2617 5 /0 FN A8 AT 1 (R (E B
FrE AT AR BERRERAEE 1

. ZEAMANABEEZS KB HFIEE
KRB ERMABRBRRAEEE &

. ZH TR A A BUR 2 BRI R AR T
IARERFTE -

AR MEREER ZIFEHEEYENTE
BFE

(BB EZ RN 4N KR40 R AR S BT
AN E20521)

RZZEZ=F=H=+—H r E&YWERE%
B2 FESHE W % 458 5881,398,000/8 7T * 14
EEBEEXZ% - HERDEREERZHF
TESHEYE IR AR Z R FENREETIR -

BAHEERBETRYERD ERZFHEHEY X
MR ERFENAEERBERESFTE /A
REEREFMEREERZHEHENENA
BRFEILHEE  AHHEERR MK
R RN AN R G S AR

55 3L 1% BU B 3R
Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Valuation of investment properties (continued)

We identified valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the significant management judgements involved in
the determination of the fair value of the investment properties.

Our Response
Our procedures in relation to this key audit matter included:

o Evaluation of the independent external valuer’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o Assessing the methodologies used by the valuer and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the property industry;

o Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the key
inputs used in the valuation; and

o Checking the accuracy and relevance of the input data used
and the resultant calculations. '

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

(refer to notes 4(h) and 4(i) on the significant accounting policies
and notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements)

At 31 March 2023, properties under development and completed
properties held for sale totalled HK$881,398,000 and accounted for
approximately 36% of the Group’s total assets. Properties under
development and completed properties held for sale are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

We identified the net realisable value-"é'é-éessméh“tn\of the Group’s
properties under development and completed properties held
for sale as a key audit matter because the determination‘"bi._n_et
realisable values of properties under development and Completéd“---\.
properties held for sale involved critical accounting estimates on
the selling price, variable selling expenses and estimated costs to
completion of properties under development.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale (continued)

Our Response
Our procedures in relation to this key audit matter included:

o Evaluation of the independent external valuer’'s competence,
capacity and objectivity;

o Assessing the valuation methodologies used, and
challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions,
specifically including future market value, estimated costs to
completion, intended use and current market environment,
based on our knowledge of the Group’s business and
property industry;

° Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assist us
evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of key inputs
used in the valuation; and

o Reconciling, on a sample basis, the input data used
as supporting evidence, such as approved budgets
of the project and most recent transaction prices of
comparable properties in the market, and considering their
reasonableness.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control;

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relatiQ_nships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 6‘r‘1'--o__u_r
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate ™
threats or safeguards applied.
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BREMHMB RS BHRERAIENSTE AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
(%) AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

WEEEEBNEED > RAETXEEEY  From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
RNEF A M ERENBFRBEE - AMMERK  those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
R ETEE - AP EZEMBREFHLEL consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
I BRIFEBRER T AT ARABEIELE therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
H o EBRGERNBERT - WRAEIEEIAE  auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
BPREPERELSEERNEBMEERBBEL  about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
NARFZ @ BFPRETEEREFEBRZSE  determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
g o because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BRI CEREHMEEMERAT BDO Limited

HEZE AN Certified Public Accountants

MT= Lam Tsz Ka

HEE EMRITP06838 Practising Certificate Number PO6838
BB Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HEZZT-_=F=-A=+—ALFE

For the year ended 31 March 2023

—E-=F
2023
FAET
HK$’000

—— —

=

2022
TET

HK$’'000
(&=75)
(RENEIED))

FEREXRK CONTINUING OPERATIONS
W as Revenue 7 348,271 1,004,596
SHERA Cost of sales (348,161) (895,093)
E7 Gross profit 110 109,503
H A R dzs sk (518 ) F 58 Other income and gains or (losses), net 8 1,027 (524)
HERDERY Selling and distribution expenses (7,747) (14,634)
THREMARZ Administrative and other expenses (22,309) (32,439)
BER R EHEMEN Provision for loss on net realisable values of
B FEBERE completed properties held for sales 20 (53,598) =
R ER T EIE Provision for loss on net realisable values of
FEEERE properties under development 21 (105,484) -
BEYME 2 AR EWEFEE Fair value gain on investment properties, net 6,516 3,357
BARTEZAR{EWRE(EE)  Fair value gain/(loss) on equity instruments, net
FEE 319 (1,850)
DME—RBE AR ¥E Share of result from an associate - (17,721)
BF SR AR Finance costs 9 (43,470) (48,083)
BBt Al &5 18 LOSS BEFORE TAX 10 (224,636) (2,391)
B iha Income tax expense 13 (1,998) (8,947)
REFEREXBNFRESR LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (226,634) (11,338)
DRIEREEK DISCONTINUED OPERATION
KEDRIEREEBH/FAN  Loss for the period/year from discontinued
BB operation 42 (300,941) (744,397)
FREE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (527,575) (755,735)
Htt2E Kz OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HiZHBRA g EHM o EEEE 2 Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
BH - in the subsequent periods:
HEE2H|EBELZIENE5E  Exchange differences arising on translation to
presentation currency (48,233) 41,564
DME—FHBE AR 2 Share of other comprehensive income of an
Hi2E e associate - (16)
FRHEMREKE - NHRBE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (48,233) 41,548
FREAWEEEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR (575,808) (714,187)
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Consolldated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
E-T-=F=HA=+—HIFE Fortheyear ended 31 March 2023

—E-=F
2023
FAET
HK$’000

—— —

=

2022
TET

HK$’'000
(&=75)
(RENEIED))

KRR R AEEFEABIE LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY:
—RHEREER — Continuing operations (223,615) (11,608)
— BRI ER - Discontinued operation (204,640) (506,190)
(428,255) (5617,798)
iR G AR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS:
—RHELE XK - Continuing operations (3,019) 270
— BRI EER — Discontinued operation (96,301) (238,207)
(99,320) (237,937)
RATEE ANEEEERSE%: TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY:
—BEREER — Continuing operations (238,873) 30,080
—BRIEEEER — Discontinued operation (218,604) (507,234)
(457,477) (477,154)
FEREREEE M REEE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS:
—RBEREER - Continuing operations (3,597) 306
— BRI SR ER — Discontinued operation (114,734) (237,339)
(118,331) (237,033)

AREEAAEEERER

—EAREE
—BEEEER

—EREEERR

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
- BASIC AND DILUTED
- Continuing operations

- Discontinued operation

15

42

HK16.47 cents
=2 1]
HK15.07 cents
L

HKO0.86 cents
Al

HK87.27 cents
ey il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
MRZE-_=F=F=+—H Asat31 March 2023

—EBo=5F
2023
F& T

HK$’000

—E-—F
2022

TAT
HK$’000

-

FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M - BB KRB Property, plant and equipment 16 4,709 465,643
WE Y Investment properties 17 766,978 1,602,793
FREEE Right-of-use assets 19 573 572
EREBEELE Total non-current assets 772,260 2,069,008
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
BRI EHE M Completed properties held for sale 20 49,479 62,978
BERERPYE Properties under development 21 831,919 1,122,003
=) e Trade receivables 22 8,384 -
B AR A Contract costs 23 3,518 3,797
GBREE Contract assets 30 - 510
TA IR -~ Re REAM Prepayments, deposits and other

JEWRIA receivables 24 670,364 142,103
RAnBEEREBERYKR2 Equity instruments at fair value through

AT A profit or loss 25 647 328
FE W — R 8 A B 5IE Due from a related company 29 29 31
A eI Tax recoverable 1,208 776
ZMREIRE Restricted cash 26 37,771 46,702
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 40,638 46,516
BB EEE Total current assets 1,643,957 1,425,744
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B SN FIR Trade payables 27 250,226 292,390
aHaE Contract liabilities 30 348,369 304,307
E e IR R IERTE A Other payables and accruals 28 205,919 304,322
JETRRE N RIRIE Due to related companies 29 329,235 783,934
e —BEEKIE Due to a director 29 264 285
B8 Borrowings 31 341,858 783,022
HEBE Lease liabilities 19 638 673
ANETAE Tax payables 123,236 13,538
mEEEER Total current liabilities 1,599,745 2,482,471
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REMBERAE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZE-_=F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2023

—E-=F —E-—F
2023 2022
FHT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
RBEE(BE)FE NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 44,212 (1,056,727)
EEABERRBARE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 816,472 1,012,281
FREEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BE Borrowings 31 805,258 757,984
EERIAAE Deferred tax liabilities 32 2,416 3,128
EmB B EERE Total non-current liabilities 807,674 761,112
EERE NET ASSETS 8,798 251,169
Ex EQUITY
RRATEE AEGEER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
A&z Share capital 33 339,500 339,500
e Reserves (475,078) (351,038)
(135,578) (11,538)
IR Non-controlling interests 144,376 262,707
ERBE Total equity 8,798 251,169
REESFZ On behalf of the Board
ERA BN
Qiu Dongfang Chui Kwong Kau
HITEF IERTTESE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE—_T-=F=A=1+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2023

ARRRE AL
Attributable to owners of the Company
Gl EX  Hft Es/ (B4)
k& RHEE R BE 6 ZitER gt FiERER L
Share Share  Merger Exchange  Other Accumulated Non-controlling  Total equity/
capital premium reserve’ reserve* reserve* losses  Sub-total interests (deficits)
Thr  Tir AT Thr TEr Thr TiEn T Thr
HK$'000  HK$'000 ’ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-—FMA-A As at 1 April 2021 339500 1,353246 10000 63460 26517  (1,327,107) 465,616 487,407 953,023
ERER Loss for the year = = = = = (517,798) (517,798) (237,937) (755,735)
ERAtEENE Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - 40644 - - 40,644 904 41,548
Eaklesrctd Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 40,644 - (b17,798)  (477,154) (237,033) (114,187)
FERERTE Capital injection from non-
controlling interests - - - - - - - 12,338 12,338
HREFEANRS Transactions with equity
holders - - - - - - - 12,333 12,333

RZE-"F=A=+-HR  Asat 31 March 2022 and

“S-"#mA-A 1 April 2022 339,500 1,353,246 10,000" 104,104 26,517 (1,844,905 (11,538) 262,707 251,169
ERER Loss for the year - - - - - (428.255) (428,255) (99,3200 (527,575
EREM2ENE Other comprehensive

income for the year - - - (29,222 - - (29,222) (19,011) (48,233)
ERZENRLE Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - (29222 - (428,255)  (457,477) (118,331) (575,808)
REZEREMTEC Capital contribution from
Substantial shereholcer ® - - - - 333437 - 333437 - 333,437
R_E-=F=fA=1-H As at 31 March 2023 339,500 1,353,246 10,000+ 74,882 359,954  (2,273,160)* (135,578) 144,376 8,798
i hWEREREEKEMBRARAZEKERKE * The reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$444,836,000
444,836,000 % ;t( = & = = 4 : 140,621,000 & (2022: HK$140,621,000) and accumulated losses of HK$2,273,160,000 (2022:
JL) B 25T E5182,273,160,000/8 T( Z T - =4 : HK$1,844,905,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
1,844,905,000% 7T ) ° A5 B A ZAX R 2 4 &5 substantial shareholder of the Group provided a waiver of amounts due from
THRETITE TS ) 74 %2 8 W S 55 [ 1) ;X IH 333,437,000/ the Group of HK$333,437,000 under uncongitédﬁél\rig[j&
TS = =
4 AEHBERRRARR-Z—=FLAZEMETR ¢ The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal.value of
HEEEMANENBARRANRERZEZE the shares issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal value of-the
share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the reorganisation in Septembé‘r‘\.
2013. |
o BE-ZT-=F=-A=+—HLLFE AEEHHLE o Deeds of balance waiver were made between the Group and its substantial
ERFEHEHREZLN - Bt - TERREEH shareholder for the year ended 81 March 2023, pursuant to which,
0 7N 52 3 FE < B0 (B 75 49333,437,000/8 7T © AL » B the substantial shareholder agreed to waive the debt of approximately
RENFBEERAREEZRRAEE © HK$333,437,000 due by the Group. As such, the waived payable was

regarded as a capital contribution from the substantial shareholder.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE_ZT-=F=A=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2023

—E-=F —F-_—
2023 2022
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(/==75)
(RENEIED))
RETHASHESRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
KERESEEBNBRFAER  Loss before tax from continuing operations (224,636) (2,391)
BT SIEAE - Adjustments for:
nE Depreciation 10 949 2,667
BEWMEZ A ERE Fair value gain on investment properties 17 (6,516) (3,357)
HE—RHB AR ZEE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 42 - 1,413
HEME  BELREE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
B1EFE equipment, net 8 - 3
B FEEEMEN A& Provision for loss on net realisable values of
R EBERE completed properties held for sales 20 53,598 =
BEPYENEE Provision for loss on net realisable values of
FEBERE properties under development 21 105,484 =
i3 gl kNIl 5t~ Share of loss from an associate - 17,721
FSWA Interest income 8 (46) (254)
BB Finance costs 9 43,470 48,083
BARBEEBERIRZ Unrealised loss on equity instruments at fair
BATE 7 REHEE value through profit or loss (319) 1,850
BEESEHA L LEHEEME  Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital (28,016) 65,735
BRBEERD Decrease in contract costs 279 =
BEER 2 FHEHEDE (Increase)/decrease in completed properties
(Bm),m held for sale (40,171) 334,314
BRAMERD, (M) Decrease/(increase) in properties under
development 138,176 (307,782)
B Z N IEE N Increase in trade receivables (8,399) =
BREERD Decrease in contract assets 510 91
BNFUE RS RHEMEWRIE  (Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits
(gm),/wd and other receivables (6,873) 207,317
ZREFELHA,(38m) Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash 8,929 (28,505)
25 MEAMENRIE (Decrease)/increase in trade and other
CRL),/ 42 payables (5,771) 165,129
ARBEEM/ Chd) Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 7,354 (596,534)
mEmME/(FA)AE Cash generated from/(used in) operations 66,018 (160,235)
BB £ S AT PRC land appreciation tax paid - (4,441)
66,018 (164,676)
EESIF T Discontinued operation 42 2,149 51,157
KRETHFE(FTA)EEKE  Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
] operating activities 68,167 (118,519)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE_Z_="F=A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant and

—E-=F

For the year ended 31 March 2023

—E-—
2023 2022
TET FHET
HK$’000

HK$’'000
(&=75)
(RENEIED))

equipment - (50)
HEWRB AR (BRHERIRSE K  Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and cash
ReFED) equivalents disposed of) 42 - 2,266
TEREEYEMNTBAZERA Prepaid construction costs for investment
properties under construction (178,061) (569,643)
BYH Interest received 46 254
(178,015) (567,173)
ERIEREER Discontinued operation 42 586,526 (8,393)
BEEBMRE/(FA) Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
BEeREFH investing activities 408,511 (575,566)
METHRBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
\ ACTIVITIES
AIBIRITE R New bank loans 36 154,351 683,206
g EME N New other loans 36 - 55,496
EEBITREMER Repayment of bank and other loans 36 - (36,795)
FIRBE R A& Repayments to related companies 36 (19,098) (900)
EBEEEBE ASH S Repayment of principal portion of the lease
liabilities 36 (768) (812)
EARFLE Interest paid 36 (29,529) (43,579)
44,025 656,616
BRI T Discontinued operation 42 (586,873) (54,524)
METH(FTA), FBEEKE  Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
BE financing activities (481,917) 602,092
ReRBEEEYRDFH NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (5,239) (86,993)
FHReRALEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year 46,516 131,344
HNESTE R B 5 BT R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (639) 2,165
FREERASEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
URTESRRESIIR OF THE YEAR, represented by bank £
balance and cash 40,638 46,516
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GENERAL

Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
address of the Company is located at Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Room 2101, 21/F, Wing On Centre,
No. 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2023, to the Company’s best knowledge,
Boill International is the Company’s largest shareholder,
and owned approximately 33.18% of the issued shares of
the Company. Boill International is wholly-owned by Boill
Holding (please refer to this Directors’ Report under the
heading entitled “Interests of Substantial Shareholders and
Other Persons in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company”). Liyao Investment Limited and Mr. Cai Weijie
owned approximately 19.15% and 6.13% of the issued
shares of the Company, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 38.

During the year, the Group disposed of all properties for
healthcare holiday resort development and operation as
discontinued operation and the results of the discontinued
operation were presented separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The comparative information relating to the discontinued
operation has been re-presented to conform to the current
year presentation.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 20283 were approved and authorised for issue by
the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) on 28
June 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on
1 April 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new or amended HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA to the Group’s financial statements
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April
2022:

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

o Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

o Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract '

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements. The
Group has not early applied any new or amended
HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current
accounting year.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially

relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have

been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s
current intention is to apply these changes on the

date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

Disclosure of Accounting Polcies'

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting estimates'

Amendments fo HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabiltes arising from a Single
Transaction’

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liabilty in a Sale and Leaseback (amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classiication of Ligbilties as Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments'*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabifties with Covenants (the ‘2022 Amendments'f

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contrioution of Assets between an Investor and fts

and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

No mandatory effective date determined yet but available
for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition,
as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The HKICPA amended HKAS 1 to require entities
to disclose their material rather than their significant
accounting policies. The amendments define what is
“material accounting policy information” and explain
how to identify when accounting policy information
is material. They further clarify that immaterial
accounting policy information does not need to be
it should not obscure

disclosed, if it is disclosed,

material accounting information.

To support this amendment, the HKICPA also
amended HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements to provide guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to aocountmg
policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is
important, because changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively to future transactions
and other future events, but changes in accounting
policies are generally applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events as well as the
current period.

{REEfEBEZERY AR A 7 Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 115



FeMBERRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. BEPNEARAMEREERN(ESBY
iR 2R ) (@)

(b)

EHEME N RER T KE
I BRI R E 2R (F)

BB ERFE125 (15572 ) -
BEEAXGELWEEREEMEH
B

ZIEFT AR ER R AR 5 HERIE
A - VIR EELN
FRERN LA MR ERE
o ERAETEARAEANS
ErBREEBER S KT ER
BIMELERREENAE ©

ZIEFT AEE RN RKF 257
BRHMRRERARAEENR
Z o R BRERZFALE
R R AR - SLARRRAT A AR
05 e A B 1 = R R AR
EMEEE(ERAREER) RE
FERIAAE ¢

. EREEEREEAE
K

. wE - ERELUAE
DA Je 1 e <& R AR /S AH R
BEKAN—FD -

116  Annual Report 2023 F#

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments require companies to recognise
deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible
temporary differences. They will typically apply
to transactions such as leases of lessees and
decommissioning obligations and will require the
recognition of additional deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

The amendment should be applied to transactions
that occurs on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, entities
should recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent
that it is probable that they can be utilised) and
deferred tax liabilities at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with:

o right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and

o decommissioning, restoration and similar
liabilities, and the corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (continued)

The cumulative effect of recognising these
adjustments is recognised in retained earnings/
accumulated losses, or another component of equity,
as appropriate.

HKAS 12 did not previously address how to account
for the tax effects of on-balance sheet leases and
similar transactions and various approaches were
considered acceptable. Some entities may have
already accounted for such transactions consistent
with the new requirements. These entities will not be
affected by the amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a
Sale and Leaseback '
The Amendments provide a requirement for the
seller-lessee to determine “lease payments” or “revised
lease payments” in a way that the seller-lessee
would not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-
lessee.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify the requirements on
determining if a liability is current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity
has the right to defer §_ett|'e'iﬁéﬁt~qf the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporti-hg period. The
amendments:

g
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of

Liabilities as Current or Non-current (continued)

o specify that an entity’s right to defer settlement
must exist at the end of the reporting period;

o clarify that classification is unaffected by
management’s intentions or expectations
about whether the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement;

o clarify how lending conditions affect
classification; and

o clarify the classification of liabilities that will
or may be settled by issuing an entity’s own
equity instruments.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

The amendments clarify how to treat liabilities that are
subject to covenants to be complied with, at a date
subsequent to the reporting period. The Amendments
improve the information an entity provides when its
right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months is subject to compliance with covenants. The
Amendments clarify that only covenants with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
will affect a liability’s classification as current or non-
current. The Amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application of
the Amendments is permitted. The Amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there
is a sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. When
the transaction with an associate or joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method, any
gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of
a subsidiary that does not contain a business are
recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting
from the remeasurement of retained interest in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective terms inqude"él‘l\ap\plicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”)
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements also includé\"'the\
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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3.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis, except for
investment properties and financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), which is
measured at fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

During the year, the Group has incurred a loss of
approximately HK$226,634,000. Furthermore, as
at 31 March 2023 the Group had current liabilities
of approximately HK$1,599,745,000 including
amount due to related companies of approximately
HK$329,235,000 (note 29) and bank and other
borrowings of approximately HK$341,858,000
(note 31) that are repayable on demand or due for
repayment within one year from 31 March 2023,
while the Group only had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$40,638,000 as at 31 March 2023. These
events or conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and, therefore, that the Group may be unable to
realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due in the foreseeable future, based on the cash flow
projections of the Group covering a period up to 30
June 2024 (the “Forecasted Period”) after taking
into the following considerations:
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (continued)

(i) Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, the Group further received proceeds of
RMB129,676,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$148,090,000) from the disposal of
the healthcare holiday resort in Shanghai
according to the payment terms. The
management expected that the remaining
proceeds would also be received on time;

(if) In June 2021 a revised loan credit facility (the
“Facility”), which was originally entered into
in June 2019, with its controlling shareholder
(a related party) and its beneficial owner
regarding the provision of a loan facility
amounting to RMB900,000,000, under which
the beneficial owner undertakes to provide
an additional source of fund for the purpose
of enhancing his commitment to provide
the credit under the Facility. The Facility is
unsecured, bearing interest at the rate of 5%
per annum and repayable within a period of
twenty-four months from drawdown date. The
Group has not made any drawdown from the
Facility up to the date of approval for issue of
these consolidated financial statements;

(ifi) The related companies to whom the Group
owed HK$298,733,000 as at 31 March 2023
undertook not to demand repayment until the
Group is in position to repay it; and

(iv)  The Group conti‘_r]_ue'd"ié\éel\lxthe completed
properties held for sale and b}operties under
development ready for pre-sale in ord\gr to
boost the liquidity of the Group.
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3.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

Previously, the Directors regarded Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$") as the functional currency of the Company.
Upon completion of the acquisition of Anway Real
Estate Limited (“Anway”) and its subsidiaries in
April 2017, the Directors reassessed the Company’s
functional currency and considered that the functional
currency of the Company should be changed from
HK$ to Renminbi (‘RMB”) as RMB has become the
currency that mainly influences the sales prices of
goods and services and the costs of providing those
goods and services of the Company’s significant
subsidiaries. The change of functional currency of the
Company was applied prospectively from the date of
change in accordance with HKAS 21 “The Effect of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition of a
business and control is transferred to the Group. In
determining whether a particular set of activities and
assets is a business, the Group assesses whether
the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at
a minimum, an input and substantive processes and
whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related
costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred
in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to owners
of the Company. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any accumulated |mpa|rmer1t Josses The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by “the Company on
the basis of dividend received and recewable dunng
the year. N
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at cost
and thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted
for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates (continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the interest in an associate has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes
its purchase price and the costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the reporting period
in ‘which they are incurred.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so

as to write off costs over their estimated useful

lives, using a straight-line basis, at the rates shown

below per annum. The estimated useful lives and

depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of the reporting period. The

useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of
expected useful life and
period of lease or 25%

Plant and machinery 25%

20% to 25%

20% to 50%

25% to 33%

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes or for
both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Investment
property is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the property’s deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for
which the underlying asset is of low-value. The Group
has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on straight-
line basis over the lease terrr_l_,___..--\\_\

=
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

Leasing (continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see below
for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the
Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
For right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property, they are carried at fair value.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated at
rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight
line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

Leasing (continued)

Right-of-use asset (continued)
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of lease or

buildings 40 years

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings

that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose

under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable: (ii)
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iiij amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

=
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

(9)

Leasing (continued)

Lease liability (continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change
in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties
to a number of tenants. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on
the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is only one
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derfe_oo-g'"r'i-it‘i‘()"n\i\g recognised in
profit or loss. g
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election
is made on an investment-by-investment
basis. Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised
in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or
loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
ECLs on trade receivables, contract assets
and financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(9) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9’s simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime
ECLs. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forwand-
looking factors specific to the debtors, current
creditworthiness of the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non-
credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(9) Financial instruments (continued)
(iii)  Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at amortised cost are initially measured at

fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
amounts due to related companies and
a director, borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

(iv)  Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,
or where appropr‘i_ate-;"é“s‘ﬁdr:t@‘r period.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at

the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

determined by an apportionment of the total land and

buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net

realisable value is estimated by the directors based

on the prevailing market prices, on an individual

property basis.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be

held for sale after completion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

)

Properties under development (continued)

Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value and comprise
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable
to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as
current assets unless the construction period of the
relevant property development project is expected
to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.
On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

Revenue recognition (continued)

° provides benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from property development
business

For property development and sales contract
for which the control of the property is
transferred at a point in time and there is
no enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date,
revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains the physical possession or the legal
title of the completed property and the
Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

Property management service income derived
from the provision of property management
services is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered and the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the entity’s performance
as the entity performs. The Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided
and recognises as revenue in the amount
to which the Group has a right to invoice
and corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed.

Revenue from caterlng serwces

Revenue from catermg service is recognised
at a point in time when the food and C-at§r|ng
service have been served, and ousto"r'h'e-r\___
payments are made to the Group upon 3
completion of catering service.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)  Sales of construction materials
Revenue from sales of construction materials
is recognised at a point when the construction
materials are delivered to customers and title
has passed.

(iv)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has
been established.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group
completes the foundation piling contracts under such
services contracts but yet certified by architects,
surveyors or other representatives appointed by
customers, or (ii) the customers retain retention
money to secure the due performance of the
contracts. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at
the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If
the considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises
a contract liability for the difference.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when whose costs meet
all of the following criteria:

o The costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify;

o The costs generate or enhance resources
of the entity that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

° The costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the cost relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
including the customers’ right to return goods,
the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the expected value

method.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Variable consideration (continued)

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate
of variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances
during the reporting period.

Sales with a right of return
For a sale of properties with a right of return, the
Group recognises all of the following:

(@) revenue for the transferred properties in the
amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled (therefore, revenue
would not be recognised for the products
expected to be returned/exchanged);

(b) a refund liability/contract liability; and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to

cost of sales) for its right to recover properties
from customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Except for recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Income tax (continued)

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred
tax amount is when an investment property is carried
at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”.
Unless the presumption is rebutted, the deferred
tax amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s)
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U]

Foreign currency (continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-
term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group was
not entitled to any forfeited contributions to reduce
its future contributions (2022: Nil).

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll____g.ost'éﬂt‘o“"the_‘ central pension
scheme. The contributions are chargéd to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordanee with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

{REEfEBEZE YA R A 7 Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 149



FeMBERRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4.

FESHBEKR @)

(m)

BEER (F)

RARHE =

RETHERT  AEEREHR
REmEMRBBERNERELE
IEEBREMARIBNFEAERESR
T2 B N B 1 B R L AR 7% P iRk
BOREEMNEHE - RPRS
T RAEFEMEREAFE - &
HIRS & A BB ERARTT AR
@mE - WERBBEMNE LK
RADEZERENRBER - &
HA AR5 & T3 T DA BE 3R DA T TE AR
MIRE - WD AR BATEHRR
FEAG T B G B E £ M ERT K
B -RBRENREREBRENEEN T
BRGIREFRAER - BER
BRARFA MR R EREREE
AR  BEERSERBR
IE o

150 Annual Report 2023 F#

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Employee benefits (continued)

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of amounts
payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the employment law of the
respective countries in which the Group operates
is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. Long service payments are
assessed using the projected unit credit method.
The cost of providing the long service payment
liabilities is charged to the income statement so
as to spread the cost over the service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of the
actuaries. Long service payments are discounted
to determine the present value of obligation and
reduced by entitlement accrued under the Group’s
defined contribution plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised over the average remaining
service lives of employees. Past service costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the average period until the benefits become
vested.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair
value is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in the share
option reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at the
end of each reporting period so that, ultimately, the
cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually
vest. Market vesting conditions are factored into the
fair value of the options granted. As long as all non-
market vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge
is made irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense is
not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting
condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately before
and after the modification, is also recognised in profit
or loss over the remaining vesting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

Impairment of non-current assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

right-of-use assets;

interest in an associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

(p)

Impairment of non-current assets (continued)

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outfloW
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs (continued)

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate majbf
line of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It
also occurs if the operation is abandoned.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Discontinued operation (continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,

a single amount is presented on the face of the

statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

the post-tax gain or loss recognised on
the measurement to fair value less costs
to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

(t) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iif) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

t) Related parties (continued)

(it

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group; '

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity,‘_,or--"éﬁy\\me{pber of a group
of which it is a part,-\'provides key
management personnel services-to the
Group or to the Company’s parent,"" ool
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
t) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(if) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis and its validity depends on the
successful implementation of the measures disclosed in note
3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of investment properties

Fair value of investment properties of the Group are quoted
by an independent professional valuer. The valuation
involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including comparable
market transactions, appropriate capitalisation rate, expected
developer’s profit and estimated development cost. In relying
on the valuation, the management has exercised judgement
and is satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of
the current market conditions. As at 31 March 2023, the fair
value of investment properties was HK$766,978,000 (2022:
HK$1,602,793,000).

Provision for write-down in value of completéd
properties held for sale

As explained in note 4, the Group’s completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The Directors make significant judgments in
determining the net realisable value of these properties.

Based on the experience of the Directors and the nature
of the subject properties, the Directors determine the net
realisable value of these properties by reference to the
estimated market prices of the properties, which takes into
account a number of factors including the recent prices
of similar property types in the same project or by similar
properties, and the prevailing and forecasted real estate
market conditions in the PRC. ™

=

If there is a decrease in estimated market prices, this may
result in write-downs for these properties. Such write—da"\'/vns\
require the use of judgment and estimates of the Directors.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables, contract assets
and other receivables

The provision for ECLs on trade receivables, contract
assets and other receivables are based on assumptions
about ECLs. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s historical
experience and forward-looking information at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in these assumptions
and estimates could materially affect the result of the
assessment and it may be necessary to make additional
impairment charge to profit or loss. The carrying amounts of
other receivables are disclosed in note 24, respectively.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting date
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This
requires an estimation of the fair value less cost of disposal
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and
tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or
similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is made based on the experience of
the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Depreciation charge is revised if the estimated useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment are different from thé
previous estimation. Estimated useful lives are reviewed, at
the end of each of the reporting period, based on changes
in circumstances. The carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment is disclosed in note 16.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to taxation in the PRC and Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of the related
payments. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will have impact on the income
tax and/or deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Land appreciation taxes

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”) is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sale of properties less
deductible expenditures including land use rights, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures.

The subsidiary of the Company which is engaged in property
development business in the PRC are subject to land
appreciation taxes, which have been included in income
tax expense in profit or loss. However, the Group has not
finalised its LAT returns with the relevant tax authorities in
respect of the property development project. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management’s best estimates. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax expense and provision for land appreciation taxes in the
period in which such determination is made.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the Directors
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties held
by the Group in the PRC are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
Directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted. As a result, the deferred taxes on change in
fair value of investment properties are recognised taking into
account LAT and enterprise income tax payable upon sales
of those investment properties in the PRC.

6. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to make strategic decisions. The Group reportable
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Continuing operations:

Property development: sale of properties, sales of
construction materials and provision of property
management services;

Foundation piling and securities investment segments are
not considered to be of continuing significance and as
reportable segment for the year ended 31 March 2023, and
prior year was restated to conform to the current year’s
segment presentation. Those income, expenses, assets and

liabilities information are grouped as “unallocated” for the
purpose of consolidated financial statements disclosure.

Discontinued operation:

Healthcare holiday resort development and operation:
sale of properties, rental income, provision of elderly
home care, healthcare and leisure services;

Healthcare holiday resort development and operation
segment were classified as discontinued operation and
the related information has been set out in note 42. The
segment information set out below has been restated
and does not include any amounts nor balances for the
discontinued operation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except
that interest income, share of result of an associate, finance
costs as well as head office and corporate income and
expenses are excluded from such measurement.



2 EBERE ()

WA N2 EZERBREEBR
ERIEEEXBMELN WS ML ER
BREZGMNORIEREEGMELERN
AXEBRARZERBEREEBELDN
EENTEMEANEMAIMARER

SHHE -

2 EPEE N B R W — M BEE 2 A K
B R-HEBERARZESE - AREH
BEREMADEERERREXEE
FRRBZEEETIRERELEER -

DEMBETEBRENBERRFEA - &
B EAKRE - BEHRBAGENREM
AoEERERAREEXAE  FRE/Z
FRENRANEEEE - BE_T—
=F=ZA=1t—BLHEE  HEITER
BFREDBIERRFEERALE
ERRE  CEIBEFRENERFE
BB 2FNRFE—E -

e B ERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
continuing operations and discontinued operation, and
the expenses incurred by those continuing operations and
discontinuing operation or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation of assets attributable to those continuing
operations.

Segment assets exclude due from a related company,
interest in an associate, tax recoverable and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude due to related companies,
borrowings, tax payables, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis. Foundation piling
and securities investment segments are not considered to
be of continuing significance and not separately disclosed for
the year ended 31 March 2023, and prior year was restated
to conform to the current year’s segment presentation.
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6. DIIHE @) 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
BE-E-=f=ZHA=+—HLEE Year ended 31 March 2023

BEKEER CRLEREER
BELEREERR
R

MEBR (Fff=E42) #E
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation
Healthcare
holiday resort
development
Property and operation

development (note 42) Total
FH&xT FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o= Segment revenue
REINPRF 2 W Revenue from external
customers 348,271 7,161 355,432
D EBEEE Segment results (177,951) (301,218) (479,169)
A EUA Interest income 46
IR IDEN Finance costs (43,470)
PEREMASEWAR  Corporate and other
S F R unallocated income and
expenses, net* (3,261)
BB AT 5 18 Loss before tax (525,854)
3 TEREMBRDEBRARFAZFTEQEES * Corporate and other unallocated income and expenses mainly
M EAE EEREEBRULES include Directors’ remuneration, consultancy fee, legal and
BEZRATAR R ERE ° professional fee and fair value gain on equity instruments from

securities investment.
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7o EBER & () 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
H

Lt EE R

Other Segment Information

BE_F-_=-F=-A=1T—-HLHFE

Year ended 31 March 2023

FEREER CRULERSEXER
ELERERR
YRR REEE st
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation
Healthcare
holiday resort
Property development
development and operation Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
e (BEWZE - BEX  Depreciation including
RENEAEEE) properties, plants and
equipment and right of
use asset 949 13,591 14,540
ERIEEMEZ Fair value gain/(loss) on
NRaEWkE S (EBE) investment properties
under construction 6,516 (3,172) 3,344
HEME BMERRZEZ Loss on disposal of
E5i8 5 property, plant and
equipment, net - (150,113) (150,113)
Yz - BB MEE Impairment loss on property,
BEEE plant and equipment - (88,348) (88,348)
BRPVMERDEKZFF  Provision for loss on
TEHE MR A IR)F net realisable value
BREEHE of, properties under
development and
completed properties held
for sales (159,082) - (159,082)
BARF Capital expenditures* 230,732 23,663 254,395
-»’// \\'\.
% BEARZBIERBEYE  BEREEUAREK & Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
B o equipment and investment properties.
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

6. ZEWE @ 6.
H

Lfth 3 EE R ()

BE-_Z-—"F=ZA=+—"HIFEK

E51)

SELEER

M E R
Continuing
operations

Other Segment Information (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2022 (Restated)

BRI EER
BEERRER
Discontinued
operation
Healthcare
holiday resort

Property development
development  and operation Total
T T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(#e=51) € =) (g&=5)
(Restated) (RES ) (Restated)
o EB U= Segment revenue
REINBRE P 2 Wz Revenue from external
customers 1,004,596 11,566 1,016,162
DERELE Segment results 91,828 (686,329) (594,501)
A2 A Interest income 258
DiE—MEE A El2%E  Share of result from an
associate (17,721)
IR IDWN Finance costs (121,889)
PEREMASEWAR  Corporate and other
fr sk 5 RE unallocated income and
expenses, net* (10,928)
MRBLATE B Loss before tax (744,781)
X TEREMRIERARASIZECREES £ Corporate and other unallocated income and expenses mainly

B HAE ERREEBEANRES
REZBATARAERR -

include Directors’ remuneration, consultancy fee, legal and
professional fee and fair value loss on equity instruments from
securities investment.
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2 EBER () 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
Hihp T ER(E]) Other Segment Information (continued)
BE_ S - F=-A=+—HIFEK Year ended 31 March 2022 (Restated)
7))

SELEER

M E R
Continuing
operations

BRI ST
BEERRER
Discontinued
operation
Healthcare
holiday resort

Property development
development  and operation Total
T T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(&&E5) (#eE3) (&%)
(Restated) (RES ) (Restated)
e Depreciation 2,667 19,685 22,352
ERIEEME L ARE Fair value gain/(loss) on
s,/ (Es18) investment properties
under construction 87 (573,762) (5670,405)
L E YN L Impairment loss on property,
REEE plant and equipment = (60,759) (60,759)
B Capital expenditures* 539,804 8,397 548,201
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and —
* EARLOERSYE - BERSENRE equipment and investment properties. =
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Other Segment Information (continued)

31 March 2023

FEREXY CRIEKERER

BELrERERR
MERRE R ECH
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation
Healthcare
holiday resort
Property development
development and operation Total
FET THET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
PEEE Segment assets 1,800,818 600,222 2,401,040
AR Reconciliation:
FEU — 83 A B 5IE Due from a related company 29
AU e F IE Tax recoverable 1,208
EREMRSREE Corporate and other
unallocated assets*® 13,940
BEEHAE Total assets 2,416,217
PEHEE Segment liabilities 694,611 52,718 747,329
HHER - Reconciliation:
FEAS B8 A RI5RIE Due to related companies 329,235
B Borrowings 1,147,116
FES TR Tax payables 123,236
BETIARE Deferred tax liabilities 2,416
PEREMADEEEE*  Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities* 58,087
=Rttt Total liabilities 2,407,419
% GEREMAPBEETZVRIZAAES 2 Corporate and other unallocated assets mainly include the equity

BIESIIRZBATA
ReEEY -

CRESZAER

instruments at fair value through profit and loss, cash and cash

EEREMADELEETEBERDBEAH
FRCFAEREEEE -
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Other Segment Information (continued)

31 March 2022

BERIEREER
FECEER BEEREER
YRR

Continuing

Discontinued
operations operation
Healthcare
holiday resort
Property development
Total
FABT
HK$’000

development
FAT
HK$'000

and operation
FATT
HK$’'000

13,538 =———

THEE Segment assets 1,913,291 1,568,311 3,481,602
AR Reconciliation:
e — R8s A B 5IE Due from a related company 31
B EEE Tax recoverable 776
PEREMASEEE"  Corporate and other
unallocated assets” 12,343
EERE Total assets 3,494,752
DEEME Segment liabilities 665,783 213,090 878,873
HHER - Reconciliation:
JE A B A RIFKIE Due to related companies 783,934 ——
B Borrowings 1,541,006 —
FES TR Tax payables
BIETIAR G Deferred tax liabilities 3,128
PEREMADEEEE*  Corporate and other
unallocated liabilities* 23,104
=Rttt Total liabilities 3,243,583
2 TEREMRIEEEEERFRAAES * Corporate and other unallocated assets mainly include the\equny
BERIRZKRATE  EEEZRER instruments at fair value through profit and loss, cash and cagh
REeLED - equivalents for corporate fund. \:

EEREMADEEBETEBERDBEH

Corporate and other unallocated liabilities mainly include unallocated
EROCXEBEREEARE - i

head office corporate liabilities and lease liabilities.

|
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6. DHWEE 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
WEER : Geographical Information:
WHERUNBFUBEAKE - IERFE The revenue information is based on the location of
EUBEME BKIE - customers. The non-current assets are based on the

location of the assets.

REIBEF 2 Wz FREEE
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets

—E_= —_E_— —E =5 i

2023 2022 2023 2022
FHxT T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(&&&E7)
(Restated)
BHEREEK Continuing operations
B Hong Kong - = 582 585
B 9 3 Mainland China 348,271 1,004,596 771,678 577,670
348,271 1,004,596 772,260 578,255
ERIEREEN Discontinued operation
B Hong Kong - - - _
B i Mainland China 7,161 11,566 - 1,490,753
7,161 11,566 - 1,490,753
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7 BB () 6.
EREEEFNER

BEZZ-_=FR-_FT-_—_F=A=+
—BLFE  SRABRFPHAEERZHZY
HTRI10% ©

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Information About Major Customers

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the largest
customer constitutes less than 10% of the Group’s total
revenue.

W 58 2 A7

Disaggregation of revenue

RFESEER
34

Continuing operations

ERIREER
ELEREREREE
Discontinued operation
Healthcare holiday

Revenue from contracts resort development and

REEFEFEHN2zWzE  with customers Property development operation

T
2022
FHET
HK$’'000
(Fe=5))
(Restated)

—g-=
2023
FTERT
HK$’000

—E-=F Peeaie
2023 2022
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
(#E5)
(RESEWEG))

BEBEBMIEHREXE  Timing of revenue
R 155 s TR recognition under
B RS HKFRS 15
— AR, - At a point in time 348,118 1,002,669 1,551 3,187
—BERERS — Over time - 1,762 1,922 2,684
348,118 1,004,431 3,473 5,871
T
i,
\\
R
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7. Y &= 7. REVENUE
WREFARBEEDE HEEMK Revenue represents gross proceeds, net of business tax,
IEHMEEERT  AREHRERBALE from the sale of properties, sales of construction materials
FERGHFTEFIABRE (R EER) © and provision of properties management services; and

provision of accommodation services of serviced apartments

during the year.

WD AT An analysis of revenue is as follows:
—EC-=F —F-—
2023 2022
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
(#£E5)
(RESEWES))
HEREER Continuing operations
KEEFEHZ Was - Revenue from contract with
customer:
MEIHE Sales of properties 169,481 1,002,669
EMEE Sales of construction materials 178,637 =
IR E B R Provision of properties management
services - 1,762
348,118 1,004,431
KEA MR Z W Revenue from other source:
REENFEEME 2 HE KA Rental income from leasing
properties with fixed payment 153 165
348,271 1,004,596
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS OR (LOSSES),
NET

An analysis of other income and gains or (losses), net, is as
follows:

—E-=F B
2023 2022
FH&ET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000
(#5E51)
(RESEIEE))

BFEREEL Continuing operations
FLE A Interest income 46 254
WsEZE - WE k& Written-off of property, plant and
equipment - (©)
HE—HENEBARZEE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - (1,413)
H B Government grants 96 =
Hith Others 885 638
1,027 (524)
//"’\\‘_‘
| \\\
N
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9. WMBEHA 9. FINANCE COSTS
B AD IR ¢ An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—EB=F T
2023 2022
FTET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(#&E:5)
(RESEE)]
HEREER Continuing operations
BERENAGEZHE Interest on borrowing and
contract liabilities 100,769 190,659
RE—EEEARERZHE Interest on loan from
a related company 1,200 1,200
HEBRZFE Interest on lease liabilities 54 102
W BRAEEEREMENERE  Less: Interest capitalised into
R Z R B investment properties under
construction and properties
under development (58,553) (143,878)

43,470 48,083
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BRB AT 5 18 10. LOSS BEFORE TAX
AEBBRBATBRIAINER, (GEA)T The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/
PIFIRBIZES (crediting):
—B-=F —F-—
2023 2022
FHET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
(g&=75)
(Restated)
BELSEEL Continuing operations
ZE AT & Auditor’s remuneration 1,500 1,600
EEWERAR Cost of properties sold 172,682 895,093
BEEMACAR Cost of construction materials sold 175,479 =
e - Depreciation:
ERAEEE Right of use assets
—HaEE B (HFE19) — Other properties leased for own
use (note 19) 732 764
L/E N e Properties, plant and equipment
—FERERFEEE AR & - Land and buildings with
BF(Ht16) ownership interest held for
own use (note 16) 62 1,182
—HmE - BE&EE — Other property, plant and
(Hizt16) equipment (note 16) 155 721
949 2,667
SN Z= REHRE Foreign exchange differences, net 2,440 8,358 =
HRHEESA A Expense relating to short-term
leases 107 262 -
EEEANRAZ(TRIEESHM Employee benefit expenses
(HfeE11)): (excluding directors’ remuneration
(note 11)):
—I& - ¥a kit — Wages, salaries and bonus 10,853 17,107
— ME R RET B — Contribution to defined
contribution plans 3,773 2,346
B ERRELRER Less: Amount capitalised (4,235) (5,225)

10,391 14,228
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EEFHH
EEHMRENT

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration is disclosed as follows:

e BER mE B
He BYAE A Tl Exd0 Pt
Salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
and benefit Discretionary  contribution Total
Fees in kind bonus plans remuneration
TEx TERT TEx TExT TER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEREEY Continuing operations
ZEC=F: 2023:
HITES . Executive directors:
ZRFEE(MZZ--FA  Mr. Qu Dongfang (appointed
ANREZE) on 9 Sept 2022) - - - - -
E—EZL(RZZ--FN  Ms. Yu Yiing (appointed on
ANREZE) 9 Sept 2022) 67 1,228 - - 1,295
REFEE Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai 120 - - - 120
HRIEEMZT-=FAN  Mr. Dai Dong Xing (retired
ANBEE) on 9 Sept 2022) 221 - - - 221
408 1,228 - - 1,636
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
ERIREE Mr. Chui Kwong Kau 120 - - - 120
PEEE(RZZE==FNA  Mr. Qi Bin (appointed on
NBEZHE) 9 Sept 2022) 67 - - - 67
187 - - - 187
BUFHTEES ! Independent non-
executive directors:
BEmEE Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy 120 - - - 120
FHEEE Mr. Wang Zhe 120 - - - 120
SNBEEM-F-"FA  Mr YiBaxian (appointed on
ANBEZRT) 9 Sept 2022) 67 - - - 67
HRELXE(RZZ--FN  Mr. XuLiang Wei (retired on
ANBERE) 9 Sept 2022) 53 - - - 53
360 - - - 360
@t Total 955 1,228 - - 2,183
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11. EEFHM@E) 11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

e BZHR AR NG
EYNE BEEAL 2t HiMEz

Salaries, Contribution

allowances to defined
and benefitin - Discretionary ~ contribution Total

Fees kind bonus plans  remuneration
TR THT TAT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-CE: 2022:

YITES ! Executive directors:

HRT%AE Mr. Dai Dong Xing 500 - - - 500

REBTAE Mr. Zhang Sheng Hai 120 = - = 120

620 - - - 620

FHTES: Non-executive director:

ERIREE Mr. Chui Kwong Kau 120 = - = 120

BUFHTES ! Independent non-

executive directors:

BEEEE Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Bily 120 = = - 120

TREXE Mr. Xu Liang Wei 120 = = = 120

FHEE Mr. Wang Zhe 120 - - - 120

360 - - - 360

axt Total 1,100 - - - 1,100 —
NEE-TE=—_=4=A=+—HIE=& During the year ended 31 March 2023, no emoluments were
B AEEVERESEZNEAMESE paid by the Group to the Directors as an inducement to join
BIIASKRIIANE B 2 8B s EA or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
BERAE(ZE_F - &) - office (2022: Nil). AN

- ’,// \\\\
{ S
\\
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12. ZEERESHEE

RAFERN  AERRGREERBE—
BEE(ZEZZF: —REF) HF
BB E A L1 - IR (Z T ==
FOB)FEARREBZZREHEEF
N2 FMFBNT -

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
one director (2022: one director), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the four (2022: four) highest
paid employees who are not a director of the Company are

as follows:

—EBo=F
2023
FET
HK$°000

—Eo—F
2022

TAT
HK$’000

BHEREER Continuing operations
e  EMEREDAR Salaries, allowances and benefits in
kind 2,720 2,476
BB TEAL Discretionary bonus 180 262
7] 7€ 28 Lt RET B K Contribution to defined contribution
plans 263 36
3,163 2,774

FHN TR BEZHFEEESFEE
AEIR

—EC-=F
2023

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

—=— —

=

2022

BHEREEK Continuing operations

£ 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 4 3

1,000,001/ T2 1,500,0007 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1
4 4

RAFER  TEEERNEMNRSHE
ENEXAREREEAME( =T ==

During the year, no director or any of the highest paid
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2022:

FE) AKEAUERAAKREEANRD
FEEXNEAMESERIMAKRIMA
AEE 7 SR SRR E
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Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.



13.

FRrEBRAX

REBEE-_TE-_=F=A=+—8H1t#F
B AEEETKECEEB 2 HEEFE
i J93% B 2,000,00078 7T 2 fh 5t FE s B bt
Mz8.25% (ZE__% :8.25%) R FtH
At RSN 216.5% (Z T = —4F :
16.5%):T8 - REIE-_T-_=F=/A=
+—BLFE  AEEETHEMER

BERGERIIREFHERT R 2 16.5%
(ZZE==F 1 16.5% )18 - AEERE
ECE_FREBE__F=ZA=+—
BItFEEAEBEEMABAZBARAESHE
MAERBREF - BRIEHBBFGEH
B o

REBREEZCEMER( PESERR
B D IREFTERTRRN 225% (ZT =
T 25%)FTE c ARBREBEE_T =
—FE =A==t HILEFERBELEAR
B & BT B A R M AR ERBRAM(ZF
1 16,933/87T) °

THRER 2 BB IREEETEHE
EREBOIFE 2 BRMm A5 - E
THREERCREBEZ RERKIONE
BO%IEHBEE(MER)  MEETRR
R - BEIMAR - EEKASRIEH
MEBERFX °

e B ERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 March 2023, Hong Kong Profits
Tax of the selected entity of the Group was calculated at
8.25% (2022: 8.25%) of the first HK$2,000,000 estimated
assessable profits and 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the remaining
estimated assessable profits. Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the remaining entities within the Group was calculated at
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year ended 31 March 2023. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax as the Group did not earn any assessable
income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Enterprise Income Tax (“PRC EIT”) arising from the PRC is
calculated at 25% (2022: 25%) of the estimated assessable
profits. The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising
from the subsidiary operating in the PRC for the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022: HK$16,933).

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. PRC LAT has been provided, as appropriafé',
at ranges of progressive rates from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation value, with certain allowable deductions
including land costs, borrowing costs and the relevant
property development expenditure.

—E_= —E-—F
2023 2022
FET FABT
HK$°000 HK$’000
(#&E5)
(RESEIE)]
BEREEK Continuing operations
BERR 18 — B AEFGH Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
— B FEBEEE — Over-provision in respect of
prior year (127) -
BIEARIE — Fp B (P 2 PR1S B Current tax — PRC EIT
—FRNFHRIE — Tax for the year - 16,933
—BEFEBERE — Over-provision in respect of prior
year - (8,260)
BIERTE — AR B + b 3B (B 7Y Current tax — PRC LAT
—FRNHIA — Tax for the year 2,837 7,911 ¢
ERERLTE Deferred tax :
— T AFEANER — Credit to profit or loss for the year (712) (12,637)
S i Income tax expense 1,998 8,947
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13. FEBimZ (&

BEB(RQAGREETE MR ) A FE M XK
AEEARKREABERERS 2 H
BRGNS ¢

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

is headquartered, is as follows:

—E-=F
2023
THET
HK$’000

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before
tax at the statutory rate of Hong Kong, where the Company

—E - F
2022
FET

HK$’000

(#5E51)
(RESEIES))

BFEREEL Continuing operations
B Ed A e 18 Loss before tax (224,636) (2,391)

BEAERE16.5% (=== Tax credit at the statutory tax rate

16.5% )5t E 2 BiIRE % of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (37,065) (394)
REA RAE R E 2 B AR Effect of different tax rates of
TR = & subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions (20,251) (2,908)
BAERTRA 2 B & Tax effect of incomes not taxable
for tax purpose (932) (401)
NAHBAZ 2 B2 Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose 49,551 7,704
RERZBIBER BB E Tax effect of tax losses not
recognised 7,983 293
HE LI ER 2 BB E Tax effect of PRC LAT 2,837 7,911
L —FERERE Over-provision in respect of
prior year (127) (8,260)
HAth Others 2 2
i3 Income tax expense 1,998 8,947
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BRE 14. DIVIDENDS
BE-_ S -_=—F=-A=+—HILtEEH No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
EY AR ERKTEMBKRE - BREH March 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
RARTERZZRNEMRE(ZE=Z end of the reporting period (2022: Nil).
Fm)o
BRER 15. LOSS PER SHARE
RAGHEEAEBEESRERNREEEE Calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
TOiRIBEA TR & attributable to owners of the Company is based on:
—E=-= T
2023 2022
FExT FABT
HK$’000 HK$’000
RATHEE AEIEFEANBE Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company
— B EER - Continuing operations (223,615) (11,608)
— BRI ST - Discontinued operation (204,640) (506,190)

(428,255) (617,798)

R E

Number of shares

AU ESRERNEE 2R Weighted average number of
BT S BRI T ordinary shares in issue during

the year for the purpose of basic

loss per share 1,358,000 1,358,000
FlREEEEEGIRERNEIEER - R Diluted loss per share is the,samg';st\me\\basic loss per
Aedz—_ S _=#k_ZF__—_F=H1 share because the Group has no dilutive potential ordinary
=+—HIEFEEARNE B I EL R 2T shares outstanding during the years ended 31 March.2023
EIN BT E B o and 2022. I

\n
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16. ¥ - BERRE 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HENZEE  HRREA  GAREE  HOERB fE BELHRET H)
Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Office Leasehold land
ZEIZEZR=t-R 31 March 2023 improvements  machinery fitures  equipment  Motor vehicles  and buildings Total
Thn T Thn T T Thn T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#Z2ZZEMA-R: At 1 Aprl 2022:
12 Cost 4,067 7,652 1,283 1,051 1,643 588,628 604,274
EEEiE Accumulated depreciaton (4,067) (7,659) (489) o) (1443 (124/079) (138,631)
FAgE Net carying amount - - 44 14 200 464,555 465,643
i a1 At 1 Aprl 2022, net of accumulated
MhE:TE Oepreciaion - - 4 14 20 464,555 465,643
ERiR e Depreciation provided during the year - - (165) (59) (113) (13477) (13,808)
~REAEEE - Continuing operatons - - (37 (19 (%) (62 (217)
-PRILEEEE - Discontinued operation - - (128) %4 (14) (13415) (13,591)
il Disposals - - - - - (324,610) (324610)
i Writen of - - m - ) - (12
HEEE Impaimment loss - - - - - (88,348) (88,348)
EiAE Exchange relignment - - (50) (12 (15) (34079) (34,156)
NE-=F=p=t-R" At 31 March 2023, net of accumulated
TR 2 ERAE depreciation and impairment - - 52 7 67 4,041 4709
WB-=E=A=1-R: At 31 March 2023;
A Cost 3574 6,549 1,01 1,008 1471 7,791 21,414
ZERAE Accumuiated depreciaton and
impairment (3,574) (6,549) (499) (929) (1,404) (3,750) (16,705)
FaTE Net camying amount - - 52 7 6 4,04 4,709
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16. Y% > MERRE @) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2022

(continued)

Plant and

Leasehold
improvements machinery
Thn BT

HK§ 000 HK$1000

Fumiture and
fixtures
SR

HK§ 000

Offce
equipment
g

HKS 000

nE e
Leasehold fand
Motor vehicles  and bullings
TR i

HK$1000 HK§100

W-Z--#mA-B: At 1 Aprl 2021:
A Cost 395 7,704 580 1189 174 562,402 577549
2irhE Accumulated depreciaion (3456) (7,704) (403 (097 (1,325) (3,697) (33,584)
FHFE Net carying amount 467 - 79 19 42 522,06 523965
RZZ-£mA-A At 1 Aprl 2021, net of accumulated

MhZiE depreciaion 47 - 179 192 1) 522,706 523,965
FE Addiions - - 01 5 - 2044 3700
Ml nERE Depreciation provided during the year ¢79 - (146) o) 1) (20,656) 21589)

-HERSEE - Continuing operations (479 - 29 (%) (179 (118 (1,90

-ARILESER - Discontinued operation - - (117 (5 (%) (19474 (19,66
HE-RHBARAELZNEZE  Disposals aising fiom disposal of a

subsidiary - - - (16) {19 - (35

ik Writen of - - ] 8] - - (0
HEEE Impaiment oss - - - - - (60,759) (60,759)
EREE Exchange realignment 12 - 13 7 13 20,321 20,366
R-B=Z£ZA=1-H- At 81 Merch 2022, net of accumulted o

TRETERAE depreciaon and impaiment - - T4 1z 2 464,555 TR
R-B-_%=f=1-H: At 31 March 2022: =
WA Cost 4067 7662 1233 1,051 1643 588,628 -
ZHERRA Accumulated depreciaion and

impament (£,067) (7659) (£89) e (1,449 (124,073 (138,631)
KEE Net carmying amount - - 74 144 20 464,555 465,643
| R

|
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16.

W% -~ BERRE @

RZTE-_=F=A=+—H A&£EBFE
HEZBIL(ZF = ZF : 460,126,000
BIT) 2 HE T RIEFE/EER ARG
REBERRITREMER(FIFES) -

RAFE  BRAFELSELEERRE
ZANERERTEE DA KR B A 5 b E
MEERTY®  TEERELEERER
B R AL HBIAE L i RIEF 2 RED
R AEEFEIEEEARCELAS
((REEEEN ) 2HELHMRETF
ZAI W El£E - Bt - REEEIER
ELEEBREERBREREEDH 2ZSE

¥ BEEXBZEEAEMEZ YK
[ 28 47324,610,000/8 7T - Rér A8
REMEERZR AN R IELEER
2 ERTER R (B E18 488,348,000/ 7T °

T bl e ] e o = M O
BEEAERBRZ AGEERERBEUKFR
BEAEEMSNELE TERESR
REELS TEEMRELAEREHR
B R EEHBIAE L i RIEF ZRED
% AEEFGEIRERCEELEMNZ
HELHREF2AKE SR - Bt
BEEEBRERERRECEDH 2ZEY
¥ BERXMEZEEEMEZHZTK
o] < %8 49460,126,000/8 7T - R4 B
wmREAMEERZERANERREEELD
60,759,000/ 7T °
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16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

At 31 March 2023, the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
with a carrying amount of HK$ Nil (2022: HK$460,126,000)
were pledged to secure bank and other loans granted to the
Group (note 31).

During the current year, management identified impairment
indicator of leasehold land and buildings in respect of
healthcare holiday resort development and operation due
to a lower occupancy rate for the healthcare holiday resort
in Shanghai than budgeted and falling the real estate
market price in mainland China during the year. The Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of the leasehold land and
buildings allocated to the respective cash-generating unit
(the “CGU”) and as a result the carrying amount of these
property, plant and equipment was written down to their
recoverable amounts before the Disposal of approximately
HK$324,610,000 in the segment of healthcare holiday
resort development and operation. An impairment loss of
approximately HK$88,348,000 was recognised in the loss
from discontinued operation in consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the comprehensive income.

As at 31 March 2022, management identified impairment
indicator of leasehold land and buildings in respect of
healthcare holiday resort development and operation due
to a lower occupancy rate for the healthcare holiday resort
in Shanghai than budgeted and potential disruptions and
introduction of regulation policies intensively over the real
estate market in mainland China. The Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of the leasehold land and buildings
allocated to the CGU and as a result the carrying amount of
these property, plant and equipment was written down to
their recoverable amounts of approximately HK$460,126,000
in the segment of healthcare holiday resort development
and operation. An impairment loss of approximately
HK$60,759,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.



16.

ME - BMERRE@R)

ERABLEEREZERIEEZREES
Bz mE B RAERLEER
AREREERAEE - AEEBREE
EBUNRIAEFERBEVBRELE
AF1RAAES R=EERNAAE
B - REHRER e o &5
RAZAAERRBRERE=R

FABETELEZLS -

BT A 2 A Es M M E 2 =2 ARE
BEEMR

FEEERZME
BERRE

EERMR
TERAHE

Valuation
technique and
key inputs

Property, plant and
equipment held by
the Group

e B ERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16.

EATIEERASEREERMET9E

Significant unobservable inputs and range or weighted
average

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The recoverable amounts of CGU in relation to healthcare
holiday resort development and operation was determined
based on fair value less costs to disposal using direct
comparison method. The fair value measurement of the
Group’s CGU has been categorised into three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The level in the fair value
hierarchy in arriving at the above recoverable amount at the
end of the reporting period is considered under Level 3.

There was no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key inputs to the valuation:

TABRRAYE
HAEZEE
Relationship of
unobservable
input to fair
value

RZBZZFAA=+ EHEXRE UTRFMEEZRAEREETR  BERESEMERNER - SFAHRME
BEBRLEENE FEGAEEAR Estimated market prices below have been taking into account 5 DAE
EERE(E—HR BEHR(E location and other individual factors such as building age, 3=
F_H) HR]) building facilities. The higher the

Healthcare holiday e market price
resort (phase | Direct comparison ~ BEE(AB)MEME « &F 5 KN F28,0008L£37,00087T per m?, the
and Il) of Shanghai method (ZZ==F : 112,000/ L 237,000 L) higher the fair
Sheshan Project as The key input For residential (apartment) properties: Ranging from HK$28,000 value
at 30 September is estimated to HK$37,000 (2022: Ranging from HK$12,000 to HK$37,000)

2022 market price per m?
per square
meter (‘m?’) REEGIE)MEMS : F 5 KN T28,00087L2120,0008 7T

(ZZZ=F : 137,000 £62,000 )

For residential (vila) properties: Ranging from HK$28,000 to
HK$120,000 (2022: Ranging from HK$37,000 to HK$62,000)
per m?

HEENMEMS - FFHRNT23,0008LE33,00087T(ZF=
Z& : 1 962,000/ 72 185,00047T)

For commercial properties: Ranging from HK$23,000 to
HK$33,000 (2022: Ranging from HK$62,000 to HK$185,000)
per m?
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16. ¥1% - BERRE @ 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
AEFECESRPREERA R HERE The Group has obtained the right to use a parcel of land in
RigasrEREHEAE - HEHR the PRC for its healthcare holiday resort development and
BA0F - THHEMNE I RIEDIEL — operation. The lease term is 40 years. Lump sum payments
RS - BREBE LB ENER - & were made upfront to lease the land, and there are no
TEREINEARE RZZTE=_=F ongoing payments to be made under the terms of land
“AZ+NH  ARRLEFRAELEE lease. On 28 February 2023, the Company disposed of the
REZHEREED IR T i RAYER) - right to use a parcel of land in its healthcare holiday resort

development and operation segment.

EHEAEERNE S 2 FREEERT The analysis of carrying amount of right-of-use assets by
BAFAT : class of underlying asset is as follows:
—E-=F S =
=A=+—H MmA—H
31 March 1 April
2023 2022
FET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000

RIFEERHELRIEF ZF  Ownership interests in leasehold

AR - RITERARTER land and buildings held for own
use, carried at the depreciated
cost 4,041 464,555
BIEEAzEtbBEYE  IFE  Other properties leased for own
B BR (HfaE19) use, carried at the depreciated
cost (note 19) 573 572
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17. REWE 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2% T T st
Under
Completed construction Total
F#&T FET F#ET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-E-—_FmWA—H At 1 April 2022 687,044 915,749 1,602,793
EREERPYE Transfer from properties
under development - 76,334 76,334
VIN=% Additions 23,663 154,398 178,061
k== Disposals (648,480) (326,925) (975,405)
AEEM k) Increase/(decrease) in fair
value 6,902 (3,558) 3,344
— FH B AR SRS — Continuing operations - 6,516 6,516
— EAR AT E T — Discontinued operation 6,902 (10,074) (3,172)
T o 552 Exchange realignment (50,503) (67,646) (118,149)
RZZE—=F At 31 March 2023
=A=+—H 18,626 748,352 766,978
i it
Under
Completed construction Total
BT FHET AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RZZEZ—FWMA—H At 1 April 2021 815,830 748,564 1,564,394
NE Additions 4,747 539,754 544,501
RN ERD Decrease in fair value (164,654) (405,751) (570,405)
R Exchange realignment 31,121 33,182 64,303
i — At 31 March 2022
—A=+—H 687,044 915,749 1,602,793
| \\
e
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17.

REWE &)

BE-_ZE-_=-F=ZA=1+—BIFE
EASEENEEREIA R
EEZARBSWA - TEHABE B
SEEZEVMERAZ TR 28R
76,334,000 T2 ERAP Y EEHEE
BIREME -

R-ZE-_=F=A=+—H  x£EE
H1E &748,352,0008 TL( ZE = = :
1,582,690,0008 70 ) 2 R E ¥ ¥ B 1F K
RUMGEAEEREENRITREMER
(H$3E31) °

AEEREYEBRFERERERRA
SHEERIGERRSE -

RER  RAEBRERERETEEBILE
XEERBEMBEASEY XN
HE - R REREMSENE  BE -
BUMPESHFBERERE - A8EE
BEEMNETHEREGBEMIRER
R -
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the properties
under development in the amount of HK$76,334,000 were
transferred to investment properties under construction
at the point when the Group changed its business plan
that reflected the future rental income generated by
the properties with a permit obtained from the relevant
authorities to change the use of the properties.

At 31 March 2023, the Group’s investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$748,352,000 (2022:
HK$1,582,690,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
loans granted to the Group (note 31).

The Group’s investment properties planned to hold under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes.

During the year, the Group’s management decides, to
appoint which independent professional qualified valuer
to be responsible for the external valuation of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s management has
discussion with the valuer on the assumptions and result
when the valuation is performed.
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REW=(#) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
RIE-_=ZF=ZA=+—HAEBE & Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
BEYEFBNAT - March 2023 are as follows:
vE AEBEELER
Attributable interest
Location of the Group
PEEEESTESEERARRE(EHBEE]) HES
Nanhu Scenic Zone, Yueyanglou District, Yueyang City, Commercial 100%
Hunan Province, PRC (“Yueyang Project”)
Bl T B R SRR AR AN —1Y88/13[& [EES
([EEEBREHEA])
88/13 Qiu, 2 Jiefang, Wugiao Town, Fengxian District, Commercial 95%
Shanghai City, PRC (“Shanghai Fengxian Boill
e-Pharmaceutical Valley”)
AREEBR Fair value hierarchy
AREBREYEZ AR BT EHRE B The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
BHRELERNFIFARED R=(AER properties has been categorised into the three-level fair
HAREBERER - value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.
=
= S
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17. REVHE (@) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AREER(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
TRETAEB 2 REWME L AR BER The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
EER hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

R-B-=F=A=+-H
ERATIEE 2 A EE
Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2023 using

EXTBEE EBEAFTHE
EETERE BABE BAHE
(5—4%) (=) (E=#) @t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TET TERT THERT TET
HK$’°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
LEEDAEFE Recurring fair value
measurement for:
REWE Investment properties - - 18,626 18,626
EERENE Investment properties under
construction - - 748,352 748,352

Recurring fair value
measurement for:

ERATMIER 2 AR E
Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2022 using
BAUBE EATIER
BARE BAHE
(B=8) (EF=8)
Significant Significant
unobservable

M5 R{E

(%)
Quoted prices
in active observable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
T THT THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Total
Fib
HK$'000

REME Investment properties = = 687,044 687,044
EEBEENE Investment properties under
construction - - 915,749 915,749
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REW=(#) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AREER(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
REAFERE—FERN - WEARER There were no transfers of fair value measurements between
ERNFE—FEEFE-_HEER - EE Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
ASEHE=F - during the year and in prior year.
REYEGBEMBGEAERMEEZHA Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
HEHMENT : the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
THREG A\ YR
AEEMBERENE HERNRIEHAZE EXTABEGAERAEEIMELHE QAAEZBR
Investment Relationship of
properties held by Valuation technique and Significant unobservable inputs and unobservable input to
the Group key inputs range or weighted average fair value
RZE-—FAA=1+ EEEEX WTMEFmEEZERUEREEFR - BE BIAAMELS
B EEKILEBHE  Direct comparison method FEEEMERNRE o AREES
EEBREREERE Estimated market prices below have been The higher the market price
(5=8) FERABBARMGTELTE taking into account location and other per m?, the higher the
Healthcare holiday The key input is estimated individual factors such as building age, fair value
Resort and unit market price building facilities.
Residential
Apartment (phase Il) HEZ(ABMENS : BEAIRNT
of Shanghai Sheshan 32,000/ 7L 243,000 T (=S =% :
Project as at 30 912,000/ L 237,000 7T)
September 2022 For residential (apartment) properties:

Ranging from HK$32,000 to HK$43,000
(2022: Ranging from HK$12,000 to
HK$37,000) per m?

REE(RIE)NEME - BLAANTF
32,000/ L £138,0008 T (=T 2F :
37,0007 7L 562,000 7T )

For residential (villa) properties: Ranging
from HK$32,000 to HK$138,000 (2022:
Ranging from HK$37,000 to HK$62,000)
per m?

B E - BEGELN 12500087
178,000/ 7T (ZF =24 : 11762,000
#TLE185,000/87T)

For car parking spaces: Ranging from
HK$125,000 to HK$178,000 (2022:
Ranging from HK$62,000 to HK$185,000)
per car parking space.

|
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17. REWE@)
AREBR(E)

AEBEERENRE
Investment
properties held by
the Group

RZZEZZFAA=ZT
B EBRILERR%
BREE(E=H)

Residential under
development (phase
[Il) of Shanghai
Sheshan Project as
at 30 September
2022
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17.

HEXTRIRBARE

Valuation technique and
key inputs

NEEENEH TR HE

Discount/Premium on quality
and characteristics of
properties

BREEE

Direct comparison method

IBHAREAR
The key input is

(1) BY AR ER
(1) Estimated price per m? of
the land

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

EXFIEERABBREENMETIE

Significant unobservable inputs and
range or weighted average

REZ(RB)DEME - -20%Z0%
(ZBZZF : -20%F20%)

For residential (apartment) properties:
-20% 1o 0% (2022: -20% to 20%)

HEEGRIZ)NEMS : -60%Z-10%
(ZZFZZF : -60%Z10%)

For residential (villa) properties:
-60% to -10% (2022: -60% to 10%)

REBMME : -10%Z-5%
(ZB==F 1 10%Z0%)

For car parking spaces: -10% to -5%
(2022: -10% to 0%)

FEFANT1,000/7TE23,00087T(=
ZZ% : 1 79,0005 16,000/ 7T)

Ranging from HK$1,000 to HK$23,000
(2022: Ranging from HK$9,000 to
HK$16,000) per m?

S

FABRRAHEE
AREZBE
Relationship of
unobservable input to
fair value

NEEEREBITEY

B RAEEE:

The higher the discount on
quality and characteristics
of properties, the lower

the fair value;

NEEEREBREHR
B AREES

The higher the premium on
quality and characteristics
of properties, the higher
the fair value

BFHATEES -
AREBS

The higher the market price
per m?, the higher the
fair value
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ZEHANRERH
[RAZRIEFGE
BREER(LS
FERRHR)

“Dongfang Meigu”
Industrial Complex
Development
Construction under
development of
Fengxian Project
(Shanghai
Fengxian Boill
e-Pharmaceutical
Valley)

() s
(2) Reversion yield

HiBARAEREL R
Direct comparison method
for land portion

FEHABBRET KM
BMIE :

The key inputs is estimated
unit market price per m?:

BREDHRBEENNE
Replacement cost method
for building portion

FERAHBAREAN
BEHAR

The key input is replacement
costs adopted

4% (ZF==F : 4%)
4% (2022; 4%)

UTMaEtmEE B EARER - 8
RETERESEEMENRR

Estimated market prices below have been
taking into account location and other
individual factors such as time, location,
development density and quantum

BFAARNT,2008LE1,9008 (=5 =
—4F  1,00078 522,000/ 7T)

Ranging from HK$1,200 to HK$1,900 (2022:
Ranging from HK$1,000 to HK$2,000)
per m?

1,022,827,0007% 7T
(ZZ2= =% : 879,431,000/ T)
HK$1,022,827,000 (2022: HK$879,431,000)

17. BEYE @) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
DARERER(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
AUBERH AR
FEEEERENE MHERMREIEGARE EXTABEGAHEREEIMETLHE AAEZBE
Investment Relationship of
properties held by Valuation technique and Significant unobservable inputs and unobservable input to
the Group key inputs range or weighted average fair value
ERBEEEMNNTE W&k
([=HRER]) Income method
Basement of clubhouse
of Yueyang Project  EEHAHES
(“Yueyang Project’)  The key inputs are:
(1) FHilas 35%(ZE=—%F :35%) FHNREEE - ARBEEE
(1) Term yield 3.5% (2022: 3.5%) The higher the term yield,

the lower the fair value

&

BT

RS -

A EBIE

The higher the reversion
yield, the lower the fair
value

B
ajo

BYRATERS - AAE

The higher market price per
m?, the higher the fair
value

BEERAHS  ANEES

The higher the replacement
costs, the higher the fair
value

HRESEEREIZ AR 2 7 Boil Healthcare Holdings Limited 195
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18. N—EHE QAT 2ERE 18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

—EB-=F
2023
FET
HK$°000

—E-—F
2022

TAT
HK$’000

R—REEE R a2 HE KA Cost of investment in an associate 52,682 52,682
AR EE Share of post-acquisition losses (48,163) (48,163)
HE 5, AR Exchange realignment (4,519) (4,519)

RIPEEIR - REFBE AT 21BN Particulars of the Group’s associate at the end of the

S reporting period are as follows:
FEEESL
BEERZEIL ETEEE

Place of

Percentage of ownership
interest attributable to
the Group

registration

and business Principal activities

EEABENLIRBEERGRLE  FEH 44%(Z B F 1 44%) MEER MERERIE
([H&EEE ) AR RS
Tengchong Zongheng Volcanic ~ PRC 44% (2022: 44%) Property development,

Tourism Development
Company Limited
(“Tengchong Project”)
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property investment and
provision of healthcare
services
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18.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the material
associate is set out below. The associate is accounted

for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements.

—E=-= —_F_—

&EE Tengchong Project 2023 2022

FTET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

MENEE Current assets 866,308 1,044,303

ERBNE E Non-current assets 327 470

nRBEE Current liabilities (918,479) (1,095,547)

FEE Net liabilities (51,844) (50,774)

RER [ P A RELL Proportion of the Group’s ownership 44% 44%

AEEEGE—HEEARNFAMER  Group’s share of net liabilities

HEREE from an associate and carrying

amount of the investment (22,811) (22,341)

e Revenue 351,007 113,845

FAEIE Loss for the year (4,807) (103,383)

Hith 2 HE e Other comprehensive income 3,737 (36)
FRNEHEWZREE Total comprehensive income for

the year (1,070) (103,419)

/"/’\\
o T
] \\\
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19. HERAREERBEEAE 19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES
AEBERBEEA The Group as lessee
TXHINFACHRERAEEEZKREA Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use
BERES : assets recognised and the movements during the year:
—E-=F B F
T RIEF Land and building 2023 2022
FET FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&%)
(RESEIES))
F1) At the beginning of the year 572 1,336
NE Additions 733 =
e Depreciation (732) (764)
FR At the end of the year 573 572
TXHIIFRNEEGEZRAENED) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities

and the movements during the year:

—FE=-= T

2023 2022

FET FABT

HK$’000 HK$’000

F4 At the beginning of the year 673 1,485

NE Additions 733 =

MERAXZ Interest expense 54 102

(NEN Payments (822) (914)

FR At the end of the year 638 673
DA Analysed into:

mENRE Current liabilities 638 673

FRBEE Non-current liabilities - -

198 Annual Report 2023 F#
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ERAREERHEESE @ 19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)
REBEERABA(E) The Group as lessee (continued)
ERERERNEE The amounts recognised in profit or loss:
—E_=F T
2023 2022
FTHET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
(g E5)
(RESEIES))
FRAEEEZITERY Depreciation expense of
right-of-use assets 732 764
HEAE 2 ERAET Interest expense on lease liabilities 54 102
EAAEMRX Expense relating to short-term
leases 107 262
EENZFEHEWSE 20. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
REBEEXNZFIEHEMELRNF The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located
o FTA B &N 2 F1EHE MR A in the PRC. All completed properties held for sale are stated
EAR] B IR FE RIEET R - at the lower of costs and net realisable value.
HEmm s e B=r—FIcEEE There were HK$53,598,000 of provision for loss on net
RABEERK 2 EHEEMENREE realisable value of the carrying values for the year ended 31
A 8435 B B 18 B {5 558,598,000/ 7T March 2023 in respect of completed properties held for sale
T F | in the PRC. (2022: Nil)

1R BB 3% (R 22 7 Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 199
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21.

22.

EELEYES

R E z BRFYE

—FR

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
—E2=-= = =
2023 2022
THET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Properties under development,
expected to be recovered:
Within one year 831,919 1,122,003

REBERPYEAN P B LKA E
AR EME ZRIEEDIR -

RAFE - & E IRHE 418 765,023,000
BIL(ZZF = =4 : 536,888,000/ 7T ) #J
ETERETMEBECERECEN 2T
TESHEMZE -

RBE_T-_=F=A=+—HBL#F
B FRAZERIDMENREBENZRF
{EE 1855 5105,484,000 BL(=ZT =
—F |

85 BWRIR

B 5 WA

22.

Trade receivables

The Group’s properties under development is located in the
PRC and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

During the year, certain items of the Group’s properties
under development with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$65,023,000 (2022: HK$536,888,000) were transferred
to completed properties held for sale.

There were HK$105,484,000 of provision for loss on net
realisable value of the carrying value for the year ended 31
March 2023 in respect of property under development (2022:
Nil)

TRADE RECEIVABLES

—E== =
2023 2022
THET AT

HK$’000 HK$’000

8,384 -

BHRYRRREYHENEERED
BREMMZFIA - LB S ERWFKEAM
EORTEFZEEH-—KRARE—EA
(RN EEMBHE R QTR Z R
R) - B8 F 5 REERE KT IR 3R
HAGEY - BHRUBHATER -

200 Annual Report 2023 R

Trade receivables represent receivables from sales of
construction materials for property development business.
Trade receivables are past due when a counterparty has
failed to make a payment when contractually due and the
credit period granted to customers is generally for a period
of one month or otherwise the payment terms in the sales of
construction materials contract. Trade receivables are non-
interest bearing.



fRE MR RMNE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22, B EWRIE@E) 22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
BIRWFERNREHARENEZAH An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
2R OTIAT of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

—E-=F B
2023 2022
FBT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BNEASk 1@ A R Current or within 1 month 8,384
23. BHWE 23. CONTRACT COSTS

—EC-=H —E__4F
2023 2022
FET FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’'000

REMGENMEENKAZEM  Assets recognised from costs

REE incurred to obtain a contract 3,518 3,797
BERICBHRAEE N ERIE(EEE Contract costs capitalised relate to the incremental sales
EHS R P AE BN RS AR IR commission paid to property agents whose selling activities
BRRYEIINEEH ) 2 HER resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase
SH# - agreements for the Group’s properties which are still under

development as at the end of reporting period.
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24, FENFIE - ZEREMEWTIE 24,

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

—E-=F —E=-
2023 2022
FET AT
HK$°000 HK$’000
SEUNE Q] Prepayments 73,210 63,420
e RE M EUGRIE (K Z) Deposits and other receivables (note) 597,154 78,683
670,364 142,103

AEEBE RS ER S B EAET R
HHEMIZE  WE2EERANEARM
BRI AR KR E R Z IR EE

BERAASEEERRUARZES R EME
WHIEMSIBNEERR ZE—FFE
FRMIEEA ©

MEE

(@) MR-B-_=F=-A=+—BZ&EBHEESE
BLEFENEEEBRREERREENY
¥ 2 KRR B ARY213,300,00070 (105
R #9243,737,0007% 7t ) + K 5t K 5 31(a)
FritM R EEEREN—BBLE=71
ERZE AR #301,390,000 7T (FBER K
344,397,000/ 7T) °

25. RAREEBEHZIIKRZRAT 25
A

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over the loan receivable and have assessed
the recoverability of the loan receivable with reference to the
personal wealth and income sources of the borrower.

Further details on the Group’s details on the Group’s
credit policy and credit risk arising from deposits and other
receivables are set out in note 41.

Note:

(@) The balances as at 31 March 2023 include the consideration
receivable of RMB213,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$243,737,000) in relation to the disposal of properties from
healthcare holiday resort development and operation in the PRC,
and the guarantee deposits paid to an independent third party
in the amount of RMB301,390,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$344,397,000) for the outstanding loans as mentioned in note
31(a).

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

—E=F =
2023 2022
THET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHRATA - EmE Listed equity instruments, at market
value 647 328

AEER T _=FR-_ZF_—_F=A
T+ —HHNBRATESBAFIEEE -
WR VI ERFEAEEEEREAN
BEFEBEDNIIREREE o

202 Annual Report 2023 R

The Group’s equity instruments as at 31 March 2023 and
2022 were classified as held for trading and were, upon
initial recognition, designated by the Group as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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26. BERBESEEYURTSR4HE 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

€ RESTRICTED CASH
—E=F T
2023 2022
THET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Re RIRITHEH Cash and bank balances 78,409 93,218
B ZBRFIRE (K@) Less: Restricted cash (note (a)) (37,771) (46,702)
RERBSFEY Cash and cash equivalents 40,638 46,516
LAAREEHE (M3 (b)) Denominated in RMB (note (b)) 65,562 82,160
AZETTEHE Denominated in USD 12,031 9,719
B TTEHE Denominated in HK$ 816 1,339
78,409 93,218
Bt E Notes:
(a) BIETEEEER  NEBEETNTYEEED (a) Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, the properti'éé
RIBBE TEREERBRBERNRIETER development company of the Group are required to place certain
TP - fEAMBYERRZERIERS - amounts of pre-sale proceeds received at designated bank accounts

as guarantee deposits for the construction of the related properties.

(b) AREART AR B ARMER - ERES (b) The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
B Ayt 2 HINGEE 5 2 R 01 A S 4B~ 5 0B I A under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
ESIRIAT - ANE (B 45 B IE RS T Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
[EXK VRITIARK S A MERK o Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for others

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

RITHEESESRBITERNERAE 2% Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on daily

BRI ERBEELF B o $RIT4EEL R R 438 bank deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted cash

S hFEATHY EE R LB 2RI are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history

ZERIT ° of default.

- /""\\
5 \\\
\\‘\.
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27. EZENRE 27.
B RENZIETT R R —RN30E60H
NEE - KEBBZEFAH - E5EMAZRIE
RIMEBRZBREROTAOT -

TRADE PAYABLES

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 30-60 days terms. An aged analysis of
the trade payables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the invoice date, is as follows:

—E_=HF —=E-=
2023 2022
FE T FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BNHASL 1@ A X Current or within 1 month 226,925 271,419
1&2218 A 1 to 2 months 144 4
HBiE2(E A =31E A Over 2 to 3 months 136 13,489
BiE3ME A Over 3 months 23,021 7,478
250,226 292,390

28. HMENRERETER 28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—E_-=F -z
2023 2022
T FH&TT
HK$’000 HK$’000
fEsrE R Accruals 59,075 45,430
BlIES Deposits received 673 851
H b OB (At (@) Other payables (note (a)) 146,171 258,041
205,919 304,322

i@ : R=TE-_—F=A=+—8 ' 27 BEEHE
BARREEREBEGRARREAEE LT
#)#7130,293,000/8 7T KRR KA © ZKIH
AEER B RARENREE -

204 Annual Report 2023 F R

Note (a): The amount as at 31 March 2022 included construction costs
paid by a related company, fR&EZEREBEBR2AF], on behalf of
the Group of approximately HK$130,293,000. The amount due is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.



29.

IR

(@)

W EABEELAR —SES

#_EZ_EZHE—?—*EI '
& 15 B8 3 A ) 5k 18 8 $E Excellent
Speed Limited ([Excellent
Speed ) # 1 2 323,998,000
T (—F = — £ : 23,998,000
& T ) & & FI B 4,504,000 %
(= F = = £ : 3,304,000 %
JC) © K Excellent Speed# 15 2
] € 2,000,000 (===
£ : 2,000,000 7T ) ° Excellent
SpeedB = ABLE([EBL )
EmEE50%Em - WHMNER
FHE(MREE ) ESHEHS50%HE
WmoRZE=ZFR-IZT-F
=A=+—8 =8Bt Ek#EE
ABAEE—HHBRARIZES -
Excellent Speed® i 2 B 7 &
R - RFEFESEFBREBRE
KEE -

RAEE: XN&E B EH
Excellent SpeedzX I8 M % i 2 Bf
A 7N 51,200,000 T( — & =
—4F 1 1,200,000/7T) °

FFABNBEEAR(ARREER
RERESEERTAE(REE]D
R AESKIERKE) ZRE
298,783,000 (= F ==
754,632,000/ 70 ) JH KR - B
BREBEREREE -

HE=E = =N = S
iﬁ'$ﬁlﬁ$“ﬂ$£%$
EKEEFED 2 BREIEL & RE
REY - Bt AAREERRE
EKEEMEG 2ERBRERRAR
S EERTEETS #9333,437,00078
TC o At - FREN FRIBHER B
REEEREMEE ©

e B ERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29.

DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/A

DIRECTOR

(@)

Due to related companies included a loan advanced
from Excellent Speed Limited (“Excellent Speed”) of
HK$23,998,000 (2022: HK$23,998,000) and interest
payables of HK$4,504,000 (2022: HK$3,304,000) as
at 31 March 2023; and cash advanced from Excellent
Speed of HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000).
Excellent Speed is beneficially owned as to 50% by
Dr. Wong Sai Chung, Albert (“Dr. Albert Wong”) and
as to 50% by Mr. Lam Wing Sum (“Mr. WS Lam”).
Dr. Albert Wong and Mr. WS Lam are directors of
a subsidiary of the Group as at 31 March 2023 and
2022. The loan advanced from Excellent Speed is
unsecured, bears interest at 5% per annum and
repayable on demand.

During the year, the finance costs charged to the
Group for the amount due to Excellent Speed is
HK$1,200,000 (2022: HK$1,200,000).

Included in the amounts due to related companies, in
which Mr. Qiu Dongfang (“Mr. Qiu”), the substantial
shareholder and a director of the Company, is
the ultimate controlling shareholder in common,
of HK$298,733,000 (2022: HK$754,632,000) are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

Deeds of balance waiver were made between the
Group and the entity controlled by Mr. Qiu, the
substantial shareholderof the Coth‘any for the year
ended 31 March 2023, pursuant to which, thg entity
controlled by Mr. Qiu, the substantial shareﬁbld__e_r
of the Company agreed to waive the debt of ™
approximately HK$333,437,000 due by the Group.
As such, the waived payable was regarded as a
capital contribution from the substantial shareholder.
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20. FEW ENBEEAT—HKEZE 29. DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/A

FRIE () DIRECTOR (continued)
(c) el —REIfE AR KA (KRARE (©) Amount due from a related company, in which Mr.
ERFREERRASEFKETR Qiu, the substantial shareholder of the Company, is
f% 2R ) 29,0008 L(=ZF = —F : the ultimate controlling shareholder in common, of
31,000 7T) R EER - BRI HK$29,000 (2022: HK$31,000) is unsecured, interest
ZREE - fee and repayable on demand.
(d) BN —REBFFELAEERR & (d) Amount due to a director is unsecured, interest free
B RIZREREE - and repayable on demand.
30. EHNEERAE 30. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
—E-=F —=E=2-
2023 2022
FH& T TET
HK$°000 HK$’000
THEERNERNEE : Contract assets arising from:
HEITE Foundation piling - 510
THEERNERHEE - Contract liabilities arising from:

MEHE Sales of properties 348,369 304,307
BRAWSEE  RMEPRELEEFER The timing of revenue recognition, progress billings to
BRWZEENR B ENRE BARE customers and payments received from customers would
RZEBZEWHIE - BHNEERENE affect the amount of trade receivables, contract assets and
BE5 o contract liabilities recognised as at the end of the reporting

period.
AR ELNEESENEEEAERE Typical progress billings which impact on the amount of
R contract assets are as follows:

206 Annual Report 2023 &R



30.

e EITHE

BHEEREASERNRESRRERTT
BREARAZRP#HHREN TRKERNKE
FIRER -

REREMROEABEERETRE
A UEFEEHREESE - ARA
HNEELEZEKGRIATIZRBHRR P
SRR EENRHEEEENR
BEDERBEZRRREBENEREEE
BREENBEXRNREE HER
/TAIEHZ?EEMEETE@TKE #8928 B B
HErE o ZATERE TR NERS
EBKHEEERN RS AR ESHNAE
RBAEEIE - &AL RARREL AR
BRI EERAIEER ©

B -

BESEL

AYEANABERNMERAT

YIS
A%’]ﬁ&#ﬁﬂﬂ%%fﬁ B - REP
REHBEHHER  ASEBAERIEH

BEN—FEBED ttf@ﬁ%ﬁ? & ol AN
BEFNAEAZEMFERNFHHMAR
% - REKZESNABHEE o

e B ERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)
Foundation piling

Contract assets represent the Group’s right to consideration
for work completed but not yet billed to customers at the
end of the reporting period.

An impairment analysis is performed at the each of the
reporting period using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates for the
measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the same
customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are
based on days past due of trade receivables appropriately
grouped by similar loss pattern. The calculation reflects the
probability weighted outcome, the time value of money, and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the end of the reporting period about past events, current
conditions and forecast of future economic conditions.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities are as follows: '

Sales of properties

Contract liabilities represent the receipt in advance from
the property sales. The Group normally receives certain
percentage of the contract value as deposits from customers
when they sign the sale and purchase agreement. The
Group expects to deliver the properties to satisfy the
obligations of these contract liabilities within average period
six months to two years.
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30. SHEEREGEM@®

BREEZZBNT

30. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)

The movements in contract liabilities are as follows:

—B-=F
2023
FET
HK$’000

—=— —

=

2022

TAT
HK$’000

FUEERR Balance as at the beginning of the
year 304,307 899,801
AFAERY = (BEREFEITAEH  Decrease in contract liabilities as
BRE)EHENEERD a result of recognising revenue
during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year
—REJIETAGHNABENSEE — the amount was included in
the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (148,764) (920,765)
—REABFAEGHNBENSE — the amount was included in the
contract liabilities during the
year (20,415) (80,667)
EHeRTFHERE (TRIERAFEE  Increase in contract liabilities as
BRAERZEE ) EHENBEEE N a result of billing in advance,
excluding those recognised as
revenue in the current year 210,513 246,637
BRNFRIBEAFNEHAZIERENE Increase in contract liabilities as
&I a result of accruing interest
expense on advances 25,190 135,426
T 5 352 Exchange realignment (22,462) 23,875
FREEH Balance as at the end of the year 348,369 304,307
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1,541,006 — i

31. 88 31. BORROWINGS
—E-cE
2023
BBAI=(%) HHA T IR
Effective Effective
interest rate interest
(%)  Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) HK$'000
b Current
EfEZ-EHR  Other loans - secured notes g, b & o) 12545 BER; ZB-=E+ 341,858 12515 KBk 783,022
(Wita  bkd) ZA=t+-A On demand
On demand,
31 December 2023
341,858 783,022
() Non-current
RAEH-EHE  Bank loan - secured (note ¢) 380-415 —E-MEARE 805258 410415 —E=-FtAtNHE 702488
(Hite) ZE=-f18 19 October 2031
June 2024 - October
2031
EHEN-BEE  Other loan - secured (note d) TEANA TEH - 15 —Z-Z% 55,496
(Wita) N/A +-B=t-R
31 December 2023
805,258 757,984
1,147,116

AREBEEHUTNEEERH : The Group’s borrowings are secured by:

i) EHEAZEST(ZE=-= i) Leasehold land and buildings with carrying value of
460,126,000/ T ) 2 FHE +H# & HK$ Nil (2022: HK$460,126,000) (note 16);
BF(HEE16): Vi

',/ \'\.

ii) AR A A&748,352,000/8 (=& if) Investment properties with carrying value of
= =4 :1,582,690,000% 7T ) 2 HK$748,352,000 (2022: HK$1 ,582,690,000M9te
wEYZ(HF17): i) 2

iii) 8% T (B /& 4 486,655,00078 jt( = 1D) Properties under development with carrying value of

T = — 4 #9548,652,0008 7T )
ZERPYE

approximately HK$486,655,000 (2022: approximately' |
HK$548,652,000);
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31. BEw@m) 31. BORROWINGS (continued)

iv) ErAERERBERLTEAE iv) Personal guarantee given by each of Mr. Qiu and his

HZ EARRRBEEAR(AERSE
)R R RIER

spouse, Ms. Huang Jian, and corporate guarantees
provided by the related companies controlled by Mr.
Qiu;

V) AEBREz —HBEARNLSE V) Share of an associate and interest in certain
FHEAR 2R & subsidiaries held by the Group; and
vi) KELEEHOBEERR M vi) Pledge of 710,600,000 ordinary share of the
710,600,000 & A& A 7] & B R E Company held by the related companies controlled
e by Mr. Qiu.
RERERR - EREBHEETEW At the end of each reporting period, total borrowings were
S 3 scheduled to repay as follows:
—E-=F —F-—
2023 2022
FHEx FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000

Pak i I Analysed into:

—FARIET Within one year or on demand 341,858 783,022

BB —FEMFA Over one year, but within two years 25,140 55,496

BERFEEAFA Over two years, but within five years 234,252 145,523

FFEMNE Over five years 545,866 556,965
1,147,116 1,541,006

FisE - Notes:

(a) R=ZZE_==A=RH ' A5EMAF (a) On 3 March 2023, the Group placed RMB301,390,276 (equivalent
MN—ZBUE=FNRITERPERARK to approximately HK$344,397,000) to a bank account of an
301,390,276 7t ( 48 55 1 %9 344,397,000 % independent third party in the PRC as the guarantee deposits for
L) EBEBERAEGRR_ZE_=F= repayment of loan principal and accrued interests in the amount of
A =+—HE:F2343,827,000/% ST HY & HK$343,827,000 as at 31 March 2023.

RIE® -
(o) R-ZZE_ZTFE=F  AXEEE—RBBILF (o) In March 2020, the Group obtained a credit facility of RMB600,000,000

=5 BS—2EE/E AR600,000,000
L R-_TBE_—F=fA=+—H "H5H
) Bt E A R % 400,000,000 T (HHER L
493,300,000/ 7T) ° FTAREEAE RFIE
BER-_T-_=F= A/ NBAIESES -

210 Annual Report 2023 R

from an independent third party. The Group utilised the facility of
RMB400,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$493,300,000) as at
31 March 2021. All outstanding principal and interests were fully repaid
by 6 March 2023.
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B & (@) 31.
fisE  (48)

©) RZZEZ—F+TAH AEBH KBTI
JERITRLE #) A R % 780,000,000 7T.( 48
£ MW #891,303,0008 L) R=ZF ==
F=ZA=1+—"B AEEFHEREAR
#704,700,000 7t ( 18 & 7 £7805,258,000
BIL) e RZEHRAM BRI BT ETHE
B AEEABACEEREAARE
75,300,0007T ©

(d) RZT=Z—F-A AEEE—EBIE
=B —EEHRE ARE200,000,000
T o RBZHHE - REERART_=
F+_ARHBEE R-T-_=F=A=
+—HB - REEHRTE AR 45,000,0007T
(FER 451,421,000/ 7T ) ED S ARENE

f& o

EERIEAE 32.
FNELHBEEESHMOT

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) In October 2021, the Group obtained a credit facility of approximately
of RMB780,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$891,303,000)
from a bank. The Group utilised the facility of RMB704,700,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$805,258,000) as at 31 March
2023. The Group has unutilised credit facility of RMB75,300,000 at
the date of authorisation for issue of these consolidated financial
statements.

(d) In June 2021, the Group entered into a loan facility of RMB200,000,000
from an independent third party. Under the agreement, the loan
shall be fully repaid in December 2023. The outstanding balance of
RMB45,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$51,421,000) as at 31
March 20283 shall be classified as current liabilities.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are
as follows:

WM A ]
Figke RENEFEE
DNAERE ZDAERE

Fair value Fair value
adjustments adjustment
arising from arising from
acquisition of investment
subsidiaries properties Total
THET THET THET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZEZ—4WA—H At 1 April 2021 15,765 - 15,765 &
M E,/ (T A)ER(H:#13)  Charged/(credited) in profit or loss (note 13) (13,490) 853 (12,637)
R-ZF-—#=A=+—HK  At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022
“T-_#WA—A 2,275 853 3,128
kB, (Gt A\)1B%(#:E13)  Charged/(credited) in profit or loss (note 13) (2,275) 1,563 (712)
R-E-=4#=A=+—H At 31 March 2023 — 2,416 2,416
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32, EZEHEEFE @) 32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)
RMERR XEBRBBELEZTIE At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
E518 4928,570,0008 t( =2 = = arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$28,570,000
27,100,000 7T ) Al sk A R R 88 & £ (2022: HK$27,100,000) that are available indefinitely for
BEERARZRRKERBEF o AEE IR offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
A B AR R IE B5 18 4925,179,000% 7T in which the losses arose. The Group also had tax losses
(ZZ = —4% : 234,975,000 L) * #HR arising in the PRC of approximately HK$25,179,000 (2022:
AEARE - T AREERRER & HK$234,975,000) that will expire in five years for offsetting
F o FPATE AT R AR R FH I8 B 48 1 Al B against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
RILEERTEF - WA EHBIAEE been recognised in respect of the tax losses, including the
(BREREABRTENBAREEZFBIEA tax losses arising from the subsidiaries in Hong Kong and
EiE) MRIELERIBEE - the PRC, as it is not probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.
33. B=X 33. SHARE CAPITAL
—EC-=E —E_C
2023 2022
gk ! TEx A8 E TER
Number of Number of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$’000
ERE Authorised:
FhZ0.25F THE B Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each 4,800,000,000 1,200,000 1,600,000,000 400,000
BREITRMR Issued and fully paid:
FR0.25 LA E@AR  Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each 1,358,000,000 339,500 1,358,000,000 339,500

RZBE_—_FhLANHE X2 EREE
FRELAB—HLBERER  UHE
i 3@ 18 3% 3,200,000,000 f% & I& 0.25
TLRIAR BTG + AR RAERAKE
400,000,000/ 7t (% A1,600,000,000 %
FhR0.25/ T HIRR 15 )1 21,200,000,000
7 70 ( 9 A4,800,000,000 % & A% 0.25 78
TCHIRR R ) °
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On 9 September 2022, an ordinary resolution was passed
at the annual general meeting of the Company to approve
the increase in authorised share capital of the Company
from HK$400,000,000 divided into 1,600,000,000 shares
of HK$0.25 each to HK$1,200,000,000 divided into
4,800,000,000 shares of HK$0.25 each by the creation of
an additional 3,200,000,000 unissued shares of HK$0.25
each.
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 22 September
2013 to attract and retain the best available personnel and
to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants
under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the directors may at their absolute
discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, grant
options to any employees (full-time or part-time), directors,
consultants or advisor of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider
of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
eligibility of any participants to the grant of any options shall
be determined by the directors from time to time on the
basis of the directors’ opinion as to their contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Under the Scheme, the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue upon the date of which the shares are
listed and permitted to be dealt in the Stock Exchange. The
10% limit may be refreshed at any time by approval of the
Company’s shareholders provided that the total number of
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit. Subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders, the aggregate number of the
Company’s shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other schemes-0f.the Company must
not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares inissue from time
to time. No options may be granted under the Scheme or
any other share options schemes of the Company if t'HTs Wi_ll

result in the limit being exceeded.
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34.

R RER 8 ()

HERL A EEMI2EAHEA -
BREZTEARTRE2EEZBRE(R
FREATE R m RTTRE B A HE ) T T2 1 3%
TR TFHERTZBRNDER  FEBHAX
NAEREERITRANZ1% © fHRA %S
SEEE-IREIBRESEHEEZ
E-PERLBH(EEZB) L12EAH
MR- AEETRERTRAELEEL
FrAERBERERREDITE - EEHEEFER
TR ) BT R MBET RS TRITZ
Bfn - EHEEREBTRMI%NUE -
QBT - PRABAKARFBRRR
BRRRG EZTHE  MZE2EER
HER AN BARERRKE

AARAESE  ZRITRABXREER
BRREBESEE ZEMBEARLBER
- BARARRBIUIFNTER(TRE
FRARAZBILIFATES LK -
WEARREERRABILIFATES
FWER B ZEABEARDERNBER
B 28REHEREAR(BEZA)
IEE12E A BER - BiREZE R
AR AR E AR AR &I 2\ Bt A
ITRBZMEBERE(BEETE B
AR R R AT R B ) BITEM BT R
BTFRTZENDERELXBEARFE
BITRHN 201% - BREBEBSAEE
7T RIASEARANR AR -
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Scheme
in any 12-month period up to date of grant must not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being. Where any further grant of options to a participant
under the Scheme would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant representing
in aggregate over 1% of the shares in issue, such further
grant must be separately approved by shareholders of the
Company in general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of
their respective associates must be approval by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
(excluding independent non-executive director who is the
grantee). Where any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates would result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to
such person in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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34.

35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted in
writing within 7 days from the date of the offer. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the directors may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option with a remittance in favour of the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 7 days from the date of the
offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined by
the directors and notified to a participant and shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the option; (i) the average
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s share on the
date of grant of the option.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on 22 September 2013, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Scheme during the year nor outstanding at
the end of the reporting period.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of chan___ges*iﬁ ed’ui-ty_l
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36.

RERERERMETE 36.

METDELEZEERY
R-B-=%=A=+-—H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Change in liabilities arising financing activities

At 31 March 2023

ARABHARES LFELEERENENRE
78,0008 0( —Z = — 4 : 4,843,000/

JT) ' EHEE

216  Annual Report 2023 F R

NRIMEE e

PE{tRAE FFRBTR
DERE Hitifg & HESE
Interest-
Due to bearing bank
related and other Lease
companies borrowings liabilities Total
BT THET FHET FET
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RZZE-—FMA—H At1 April 2022 783,934 1,541,006 673 2,325,613
FIBRITER New bank loans - 154,351 - 154,351
EEEMER Repayment of other loans = (472,392) = (472,392)
— BRI R - Discontinued operation - (472,392) - (472,392
REE A BRER Repayment to related
companies (119,083) - (119,083)
— RS - Continuing operations (19,098) - - (19,098)
—ER RS EE - Discontinued operation (99,985) - - (99,985)
ERFE Interest paid - (43,971) (54) (44,025)
= %ﬁé"ﬁm E 4 - Continuing operations - (29,475) (54) (29,529)
— BRI T - Discontinued operation - (14,496) - (14,496)
EEMEBEAR2HS Repayment of principal
portion of the lease
liabilities - - (768) (768)
BMERSMAEEBE  Total change from financing
cash flow (119,083) (362,012) (822) (481,917)
Hih& s : Other change:
FMEFZ Interest expense 1,200 84,997 54 86,251
— R K - Continuing operations 1,200 42,216 54 43,470
— FAR AR T - Discontinued operation - 42,781 - 42,781
ERHHEE New lease capitalised = = 733 733
B 5 SR Exchange realignment (3,379) (116,875) - (120,254)
KEETEWRRAES®  Waiver from substantial
shareholder (333,437) - - (333,437)
RZZE-=F=A=+ At 31 March 2023
—H 329,235 1,147,116 638 1,476,989
e i s e e e e Sl [ Note:  During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had payables

of HK$78,000 (2022: HK$4,843,000) in relation to the construction
of healthcare holiday resort in Shanghai, which were settled by the
related company.
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mERTRBRME @ 36.
RMEFHEL 2 AEBEH (M)

R_F-_—_f=A=+—H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Change in liabilities arising financing activities
(continued)

At 31 March 2022

FEf R
NGRS

FERITR
HipfeE

Interest-

bearing bank

(73,806) s -

81—

Due to related and other
companies borrowings Lease liabilities Total
FHET FHET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

RZZE-—FMA—H At1 April 2021 783,634 800,217 1,485 1,685,336

HIEIRITE N New bank loans - 702,488 - 702,488
— RS R - Continuing operations - 683,206 - 683,206
— BRI HAREEE — Discontinued operation - 19,282 - 19,282

HrEE M & New other loans - 55,496 - 55,496

BERTREMBER Repayment of bank and

other loans - (36,795) - (36,795)

RIFE A B & Repayment to related

companies (900) - - (900)

ERFE Interest paid - (117,2893) (102) (117,385)
— B E R - Continuing operations = (43,477) (102) (43,579)
— BAR AR R - Discontinued operation - (73,806) -

EEHEREBEASEHS Repayment of principal

portion of the lease

liabilities - - (812)
BMELRSRMEELETE  Total change from

financing cash flow (900) 603,906 914) 602,092

Hoh g Other change:

FMEFRX Interest expense 1,200 120,587 102 121,889
— AR R - Continuing operations 1,200 46,781 102 48,083
— B AR SR - Discontinued operation - 73,806 - 73,806

b 5 2 Exchange realignment = 16,296 — 16,206

i — At 31 March 2022
=A=+—H 783,934 1,541,006 673 2,325,613
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37. BEEAIXRS 37.

BEZ-_=FR-_FT-__F=ZA=+
—BHIEFE  AEEWEEWIFANED
RERRIMBEE A TMEARS °

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has not entered into any significant transactions
with related parties who is not members of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

38. MiIEBATA 38. SUBSIDIARIES

AR EEMBAR ZFIBAT : Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

AAL /R
NREREEHE

BRfTEER/
il

ARARERERD Y

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ attributable to the Company

Issued ordinary/

registration and principal

registered share

place of operation

capital

Principal activities

REERTEARAT (5 10,000,000%70 51% 51%  WERBAIR
Ngai Shun Construction & Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 Foundation piling in Hong Kong
Driling Company Limited
HeeaREDERAN hEARHAE AERH652,575,07870 68% 68% RPEELERRERREEER
(&) BR-E-=FHERABATEN
AERBRILAERH
Shanghai Jinshenglong Land Peaple’s Republic of China - RMB652,575,078 Healthcare holiday resort development
Company Limited? (‘PRC") and operation business in PRC which
investment project were disposed and
re-classified as discontinued operation
in 2023
HE(BE)ARAR B 18T 100% 100% REERERK
Turbo Leader (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Investment holding in Hong Kong
EREAEEESARAFA Gl ARE500,0007 100% 100%  PPENFER
Yueyang Nanhu Meishu Properties Limited®  PRC RMB500,000 Property development in PRC
BIRGERARAAN hEl 99,000,007 99% 9% RhENEER
Zhenjiang Baoyang Real Estate PRC RMB29,000,000 Property management in PRC
Company Limited?
LEREEZARAT il ARE200,000,0007 95% %% RPENEER
Shanghai Baoxian Industrial PRC RMB200,000,000 Property management in PRC
Co., LtdA
A BIEPBERFMR L RINGBERE © A registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the PRC law.
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38.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company,
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

All the subsidiaries of the Company listed above (including
those established in the PRC) are registered as limited

liability companies under the relevant laws and regulations.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company has issued any
debt securities.
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39. ¢RI ADE 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
EReRITANREHRZETENT - The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
R-ZB-_=F=A=+-—H At 31 March 2023
BRANEEBER REHEAYIERZ
JIlRz e MEE SREE @t
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit ~ Financial assets
Financial assets or loss at amortised cost Total
THT TERT THT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FElk—REE N AFE Due from a related company - 29 29
SATENFUE & RE  Financial assets included in
tRKHIE S REE prepayments, deposits and other
receivables - 597,154 597,154
BARBEEBERIR Equity instruments at fair value through
RATA profit or loss 647 - 647
XREHRS Restricted cash - 37,171 37,77
Re KEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents - 40,638 40,638
g 5 WA Trade receivables - 8,384 8,384
647 683,976 684,623
TR 88 A A S BR
ZeRBEE st
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
Financial liabilities cost Total
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B ZRENIE Trade payables 250,226 250,226
STAEMENZKIELEAER 2 Financial liabilities included in other
TREE payables and accruals 205,246 205,246
FES & R RIRIA Due to related companies 329,235 329,235
B —REEHIE Due to a director 264 264
BE Borrowings 1,147,116 1,147,116
HERE Lease liabilities 638 638
1,932,725 1,932,725
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39. &RIASE®@E 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

R=-ZZB-=—F=H=+-—H

(continued)
At 31 March 2022

RAREERER

SR e BB E
Financial assets at
fair value through

RH BRI 2

TREE

Financial assets at

SMEE Financial assets profit or loss amortised cost Total
THT THT THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
M —EE LN EFE Due from a related company = 31 31
STATENFUE C BE&KE  Financial assets included in
tRKHIE, SREE prepayments, deposits and other
receivables - 78,683 78,683
RAAEEBESIEZ  Equity instruments at fair value through
BATA profit or loss 328 - 328
XRHHEE Restricted cash - 46,702 46,702
ReLREEEY Cash and cash equivalents = 46,516 46,516
328 171,932 172,260
TR SR AN 5 BR
ZEEAatE
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost Total
FAT TET ==
HK$’000 HK$'000 EE===
B 5 3R Trade payables 292,390 292,390
SEAEMBEMNRERETEAZ  Financial liabilities included in other
ERBE payables and accruals 303,471 303,471
JE <R3 A R RO Due to related companies 783,934 783,934
EN—BEEFIR Due to a director 285 285
BE Borrowings 1,541,006 1,541,006
HEBE Lease liabilities 673 673
2,921,759

2,921,759

o
ﬁ' o |=

[ 5 )
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40.

ERMTIACZAAREBERDAEBEER

AEBzHGHMAaBER EFESRHTA
AREZBREERF - MBHEERE
EREZREERSE  -RNEHRERH
BBEE MR TAZEBEES  AUE
EHEMAZEEHAE - HERES
EMRAE  BFEBEZZBEEHMMAE
BENMERETRRT®R - KEFRER
FEMBHREZM -

TREEMBBEZAARENZTANA
BEREES(RARBRHEERINEE
ARXPHRGEZEBARK

ARE[FERBATHERBR :

BRATAZ ARETRETSRENE -

DARERBR
TREEAEEAEEEEERAAE
HEZEMT A BEZAAENERE
A

As at 31 March 2023

BRREE SRR
HBEATA

Equity instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
directors. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:
The fair value of equity instruments are based on quoted
market price.
Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: Assets
measured at fair value on recurring basis:
EATIRENEZARE
Fair value measurement using
ERNEHRE EATERRARE BEXATUERBAHE
(£-#) (E=&) (B=4) @t
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TET THT TET TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
647 - - 647
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41.

EMIEZARBERAABER 40.

(%)
D[AEER(HE)

As at 31 March 2022

BALEFEBERS  Equity instruments at fair value

e B ERME
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

RATHERH B2 ARME

Fair value measurement using

ERTHHRE EXUBRAABE EXTUBERBAZE
(5-8) (5-8)
Quoted prices

(8=4)
Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets
(Level 1)

TR

inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total

TEL TEL TEL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZRATIA through profit or loss 328 = = 328
=B =EE A Er—E s The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
F=A=1+—8 ' X&EEITEEMAIERRD fair value as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
REFEZERARE -

RNEBE—_S_=—FR-_FT_—_—F=f= During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, there were
+—BHUEFE  F—REF_HZEH no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
mEBNLETSE  TEEASREESE and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

_,ﬁ‘(& )

EEENARBERAIRZEREE
ketBBBEzARE  ARSEKREE
BEAAERE  TE2REASRETA
RAEHAREE -

BEEBEERERBE

AEEFESRIABERe RS
FEY XREIBSUMGFERITRE
fiEE  ZEEMIACTIEENRA
RRAEEZEERKREEEES - K
SEREEZRERRALEZEMLER

BENAE  PIWEZEWFIR - B
BERBIFIA - e R E M EWGIR A

KBS REAMERNFOR -

41.

Management has assessed that the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
and considered their carrying amounts approximate their

fair values largely due to the short term maturities of these : -
instruments. .

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES,\

The Group’s principal financial |n§ruments comprlse cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash and‘|nterest—bear|ng\bank
and other borrowings. The main purpose of these finaﬁcial\
instruments is used to raise finance for the Group’s operations
and investments. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables, amounts due to
related companies, deposits and other receivables, trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

1%%@%15&2% %&£ A 8 Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited 223



FeMBERRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41.

B E T H A R BUCK (#)
AEBMEBMTAELEZ TERRAFIE
AR - BRABRER  INERER - EE
S RRBESRAR - EEQEMILH
TERSBAERRYKE - BtmT o
AR AR
AEBMBLRENEAREERLT

BRITEBRAREEFRITEEAMA -
SN - AN ER 18 7 B £ B E A R A E Al
&8 - ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬂﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ@ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ
ETEFRERZARENERAR

BREDH

TXZBERESMNHDEREEZ TR
ﬁEﬁ%ﬁﬁ?&ﬁE TR E A1 E B F R b
MEE o DT ERER RS HAAR MK E
ENHRITAKRETREMEERZTF
MAEEMRE - BITHEHERM EF10
BEEE(ZE-—F : 10AEY) RIRT
EERALEFARTRI100ERLE (=T =
ZF100EEE)  RREBEHHEX
BIRATREE Y 2 3T o

RFBRITERME - WAELF10ME

EE(ZZT=-=F - 10@EH) " MHA
HBHEFTTE  AFRNZBRFATE
B #78,0008T( T ==

93,000/87L) - HNEERA @ RITHEH

ZHANEBKERERRLFAE » HEf
BREWREKR W EETHERTRE
ZBEEDHT ©

HZEAERITREMEEMS @
AR EFTEBEIOEESE (T ==
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to its
variable-rate bank balances and unsecured bank borrowings.
In addition, the Group also expose to fair value interest rate
risk relates to fixed interest rate other borrowings, secured
bank loan and certain loan advanced from related parties.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
balances and bank and other borrowings. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of bank balances and
bank and other borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 10
basis points (2022: 10 basis points) increase is used for
bank balances and a 100 basis points (2022: 100 basis
points) increase or decrease is used for bank borrowings,
which represents management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in interest rates.

For variable-rate bank balances, if the interest rate increase
by 10 basis points (2022: 10 basis points) and all other
variables were held constant, the pre-tax loss for the
year will decrease by approximately HK$78,000 (2022:
HK$93,000). No sensitivity for the decrease in interest rate
is performed as the directors considered the existing interest
rate level for bank balances is so low that close to zero and
the financial impact would not be material.

For variable interest bearing bank and other borrowings, if
interest rate increases/decreases by 100 basis points (2022:
100 basis points) and all other variables were held constant;
the pre-tax loss for the year will increase/decrease by
approximately HK$8,053,000 (2022: HK$15,410,000).
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as equity instruments at fair
value through profit and loss (note 25) as at 31 March 2023
and 2022. The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
5% (2022: 5%) increase in the fair values of the equity
instruments at fair value through profit and loss, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting

period.
BRAEATARZ MR BB &S
BREME g O0RS)  #8m0RD)
Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease) Increase/
of equity in loss (decrease)
instruments before tax in equity
FHET FHET THERT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—g=-= 2023
RAREBBBYIRZ  Equity instruments at fair —
AT A value through profit or loss 647 (32) -

—E-C 2022
BRAREFEBEBERIIRZ
AT A

Bk
5890, GR)

RATAZ

PR A E 18
g, CrA)
Increase/
(decrease)

in loss
before tax
FATT
HK$’'000

ARE(E

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity
FAT
HK$’000

Carrying
amount of equity

instruments
T
HK$’000

Equity instruments at fair
value through profit or loss

328
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41.

Liabilities
United States Dollars

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Substantially all the transactions of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong are carried out in HK$. The
expenses or expenditures incurred in the operations of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of significant
monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are as follows:

—E-—F
2022

—EBo=F
2023
FET
HK$°000

TAT
HK$’000

290,437 289,722

TRADHBAINETHERIZES % (=F
TF 5% ) MABRMESER TR
BURE - FTRZ5%BREERERELHIE
KA HBR 2 BB 2 h - FHREDT
ERRABEZINEIERERE - X
R E R RFLINEE R 2 5%
F 5% )EHRHEBLE - THER(AZ)
RAEDREEEERLINETESN(—F
ToFE %) ZERAT EARRKRER
WMA(GEM) - MEEREERZMEERR
HNEBIES% (ZT==F : 5%) * Algy
FARBEKBSEMER 2FE

= o e
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The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% (2022: 5%)
increase and decrease in the relevant foreign currency and
all other variables were held constant. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in foreign exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2022: 5%) change
in foreign currency rate. A positive (negative) number below
indicates a decrease (increase) in post-tax loss for the year
where functional currency entities strengthen 5% (2022: 5%)
against foreign currency. For a 5% (2022: 5%) weakening
of functional currency of respective group entities against
foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the result for the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

ShiE B (48) Foreign currency risk (continued)
—E-=F B
2023 2022
F& T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
=TT usD 14,522 14,486
EERER Credit risk

R—_E_=F=ZA=+—H A&EH
REFHREBITEERANEEMREM
M B EERMERAE BT REEME
HramEBRRARE TSR REKT
JIEEEHRACHEEZRME -

AEEREERREERANLR 5 E
WHOE  BHEE © RE REMEKK
B ERHRS  BERRLSEY -
R 6 B RN BT 2 510 % B R0
EEBRARE  YhAEETEELR
B AR B T S O AT AR S A
1T o

AEE-EREEEABERS NE P
BRRERA WA ERREEDEBE
EFR - RS AENENERERNE
MABEESENRBEBTETER
s

HREMEFREREE  ASEFEN
EBEREBGHESN12EARBEEEE @ &K
FENRERREERRBEREN - K
SERATENRBEEEE - B4R
BRFERAEAREEBERENFEDER
BVaHER AR EEEN Z A REIE A
BEVEREIEN

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables, contract assets, deposits and other receivables,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalent. The amounts
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
are net of allowances for credit losses, estimated by the
Group’s management based on prior experience and their
assessment of the current economic environment.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECLs for trade
receivables and contract assets without significant financing
component. The ECLs on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For the other debt financial assets, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-menth“ECLs, unless when
| I ,’.'/’ ; \\ f 5 .

there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECLQ. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECLs should be recogﬁ‘l'seg\
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a i3
default occurring since initial recognition.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable,
forward-looking information that is available without undue

including historical experience and

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default and credit impaired financial assets
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the debtor, for economic or contractual

reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the debtor a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

o it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptey or other financial reorganization.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Definition of default and credit impaired financial assets
(continued)

Contract assets and trade receivables

In respect of contract assets and trade receivables from
property development, these evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customers operate.
Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial
condition of the customers. The Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

Given (i) the customers of the Group including sales
construction materials are mainly well-known constructors
and there was no history of default in prior years, the
directors of the Company considered the default rate
of financial assets is minimal, (i) no adverse change in
the business environment is anticipated, management
considered that ECLs rates of constructors for the amounts
past due over 1 months and 3 months are immaterial,
respectively. Therefore, no impairment for trade receivables
is provided as the amount of additional impairment
measured under the ECLs model is immaterial as at 1 April
2022 and 31 March 2023. The expected loss rate applied is
approximately 0.1% (2022: 0.1%).

Deposits and other receivables

The management assessed the ECLs for deposits and other
receivables are not material when they do not have default
history and the debtors has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

Restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents

In respect of cash deposited with banks and financial
institutions, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. There has
been no recent history of default in relation to these financial
institutions. The ECLs of bank balances and cash is close to
zero.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Definition of default and credit impaired financial assets
(continued)

Maximum exposure

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprised of deposit, trade and other receivables, restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalents, arises from default of
the counterparties were with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these financial instruments as
detailed in the respective notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure it has adequate financial resources in meeting its
financial obligations. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping committed credit lines available
and sufficient bank deposits to meet its short-term cash
requirements. The Group’s liquidity risk managemeh{
includes diversifying the funding sources.

At 31 March 2023, the Group had net current assets
of HK$44,212,000 (2022: net current liabilities of
HK$1,056,727,000). Having taken into account measures
disclosed in note 3(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are satisfied that
the Group will have sufficient working capital for its present
requirements.
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41. BBEREREBZERBEKR@E 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REEEERE(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
AEBZENRGBRERIEE D 2EHE The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at
BRMEAR BB RNAT - the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

—FRH —FULE WEULHE BREH
RER  ORBE SREFE  BFENUL k] BREE
More than More than

Within 1 year but 2 years but Total
R-B-= 1yearor lessthan lessthan More than contractual  Carrying
=A=+-H At 31 March 2023 on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years amount amount

TR TR TEL TR TR TR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000

B SR Trade payables 250,226 - - - 250,226 250,226
HiEMNFIE Other payables 205,246 - - - 205246 205,246
[EfTBEDAHIE  Due to related companies 329,235 - - - 329,235 329,235
EN—ZZESFE  Due to a director 264 - - - 264 264
EE Borrowings 380,671 55,365 313,009 593,377 1,342,422 1,147,116
HEEE Lease liabilities 665 - - - 665 638

1,166,307 55,365 313,009 593,377 2,128,058 1,932,725

B#{T2BIERSR  Financial guarantees issued
NER(Hz43) maximum amount (note 43) 731 - - - 731 -

731 - - - 731 -

232 Annual Report 2023 &R



41.

e B ERME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E b B B A R BUR (E)

REBE SRR ()

A—E——

N—=——

=H=1—H At 31 March 2022

B SN Trade payables

HA B0 Other payables

[E BB D RZIE  Due to related companies
[Eff—%=Z7E  Due to a director

£ Borrowings

HEAR Lease liabilities

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

—ERNY —FAEE WEULE
BEXK  PRWE  SRLF

More than ~ More than
Within -~ 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or on less than less than ~ More than  contractual Carrying

demand 2 years 5 years 5 years amount amount
THEL THET THET THET THET THET
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000

292,390 = = = 292,390 292,390
303,471 = = = 303,471 303,471
783,934 = = = 783,934 783,934
285 = = = 285 285
905,586 99,279 231,175 620,917 1,856,957 1,541,006
685 = = = 685 673

2,286,351 99,279 231,175 620,917 3,237,722 2,921,759

BETEMERS  Financial guarantees issued
REB(Mit43) maximum amount (note 43)

71,443 = = = 71,443 =

71,443 = = = 71,443 =

EXEmEE

AEBEREAZ BN AEAAKEE
TERREAKELE  ANEBEILE
BREEERBTERSRR2OH - &
KB BBRRERTE o

REB AR OIE GRS RS
th o BB BITEE U RENEE
ATHIE - A EBOERATES A
FEfE R (BB BT RER) -

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in thé'f 5
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation' :
of the debt and equity balance. The Group'’s overall strategy
remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Gro&geﬁ%@s\t\s\ of debt balance
and equity balance. Debt balance consists™ of borrowings
and amounts due to related compa,nies. Equity ba\lance
consists of equity attributable to owners of the Company&
comprising issued capital and reserves.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital risk management (continued)

The directors review the capital structure on an on-going
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure and take
appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure.

The Group monitor capital on the basis of Debt over
EBITDA. Debt is calculated as total borrowings including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. EBITDA is
determined as loss before income tax from continuing
operations before finance income, finance cost and
depreciation, depletion and amortization.

The Debt to equity ratios as at 31 March 2023 and 2022
were as follows:

—E-=F —E-—F

2023 2022

FET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

&% (KT723) Debt (Note (i) 1,476,351 2,324,940
ReKReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 40,638 46,516
FHETS Net debt 1,435,713 2,278,424
Wz (Kt ) Equity (Note (i) (135,578) (11,538)
FEM L = Net debt-to-equity ratio (10.59) (197.47)

(i) B BHED B R Y 531 R i 7E29 < f&
EREMNBIERRIA

(i) BEBEEARREE NEHEREEARR
& o
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(i) Debt comprised borrowings and due to related companies as
detailed in Note 31 and 29 respectively.

(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Discontinued operation

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
disposed of all properties for healthcare holiday resort
development and operation as discontinued operation
and the results of the discontinued operation were
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The
comparative information relating to the discontinued
operation has been re-presented to conform to the
current year presentation.

On 25 November 2022, Shanghai Jinshenglong
LEeRESMARAR)
(“Shanghai Jinshenglong”) an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Sunshine Life

Land Company Limited (

Insurance Corporation Limited (the “Purchaser”), an
independent third party, pursuant to which Shanghai
Jinshenglong conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase, the
healthcare holiday resort in Shanghai (the “Property”)
at the consideration of RMB1,185,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,356,519,000) in cash (the
“Disposal”).
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BRILEKEXE HENBAR 42,

(#8)
(a)

BRIEEE ()

BREZMENEEZI0T

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF

(a) Discontinued operation (continued)

The results relating to the Property were presented

below:

BE-Z-=F pEESecimlaics
—A-t+NAL EEa=lE
+—@A +=1@A
11 months 12 months
ended ended
28 February 31 March
2023 2022
FHET FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Weas REVENUE 7,161 11,566
SHE KA Cost of sales (8,550) (12,647)
£18 Gross loss (1,389) (1,081)
H At A R Mz sk Other income and gains or
(B8R)F8R (losses), net 3,951 (967)
HERDHEALZ Selling and distribution expenses (970) (4,788)
T R E AR Administrative and other expenses (18,396) (27,227)
M - BERZEZ Impairment loss on property, plant
WIEEE and equipment (88,348) (60,759)
WEWEZ A EEIEFEE  Fair value loss on investment
properties, net (3,172) (56783,762)
LEMH 2 EE Loss on disposal of the properties (150,113) -
SR AN Finance costs (42,781) (73,806)
REDKILEEEBORE  LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM THE
A& 18 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (301,218) (742,390)
FisfiEe, (FAX) Income tax credit/(expense) 277 (2,007)
RECKRILLLEEEKNE -~  LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/
FREE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATION (300,941) (744,397)
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42.
(&)

(@) CRLEEERE)
() HEZYRHERFEN

BERLREXRLE HEWBLR 42

DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Discontinued operation (continued)

(i) The details of loss on disposal of the

T Property are as follow:
BE-ZT-=fF
—H=+tNHBL
+—1{EA
11 months
ended
28 February
2023
FET
HK$°000
BR(E Total consideration 1,356,519
EEREMENREE Carrying amount of investment property sold (975,405)
DEYE  MENKZENEE  Carrying amount of property, plant and
A& equipment sold (324,610)
EEHESEEAR Settlement of PRC taxes arising from the
PRI Disposal (195,190)
HELESEEEAN Settlement of professional expenses arising
HEEH from the Disposal (7,733)
HEOHEERPRAGEE Settlement of compensation to settled
EEREE customer and unresolved customer (3,694)
HEYIZERFEE Net loss on disposal of properties (150,113)
(ii) EEZYENEELE S (i) The net cash flows incurred relating to the
TEEENT Property are as follow:

RETHNRNSRAFE

REEBHRERA
Ot )88
BEEBIR DML FEE

BE-E=-= BE—_ZT—_—
=Rl VNN — 5=+ —H |-
+—{@A +=f@A
11 months 12 months
ended ended
28 February 31 March
2023 2022
FHET BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Net cash inflow from
operating activities 2,149 51,157
Net cash inflow/(outflow)
from investing activities 586,526 (8,393)

Net cash outflow from e
financing activities (586,873) (54,524)

BenrA/ (Rt F8

Net cash inflow/(outflow) 1,802 (11,760)
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42.

(#&)
(a) CERIEKEXKEE)

(i) FHZYWEHWEELRZ
TEFHEUT ()

BRI EBHERE
AEESEENGEEE
K

KEEREREXBOER
A E MBS A ARIGE

B

ERLREXRLE HEWBLR 42

DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@)

Discontinued operation (continued)

(i)

The net cash flows incurred relating to the
Property are as follow: (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per
share from the discontinued operation are

based on:
BE-Z-=F BEEdeiaiatcs
ey Zht VIN=NT — 5= F—HIE
+—1{&A T=EA
11 months 12 months
ended ended
28 February 31 March
2023 2022
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Loss attributable to
ordinary equity holders
of the parent from the
discontinued operation (204,640) (506,190)

AR ESRER R EEE
BHHADETERRK
AR IEB(HAE15)

Adjusted weighted average
number of ordinary
shares in issue during
the period used in the
basic and diluted loss
per share calculation
(note 15)

1,358,000,000 1,358,000,000

BhER

15.07781l
HK15.07 cents

37.277%41l

Loss per share HK37.27 cents
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HENEAFE

RBZE_Z_=F=A=+—8H
LHEFE - WEREEAKBEAR -

REBEE-_ZT-_—_F=A=+—H
WEEE - AEBEFTZEE N
HEHEMSEGMmEYXE R
RIS EBR AR HI100%HE © %A
AREARAERENRAEMEES -
HEMNEMNAEERSANER
AEEHEMER - HEERZT
——f+—HAZt+hABZK '+ &K
SERZBAREHEGMMEY
XEERBER AT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no subsidiary
is disposed.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
entered into a sales agreement to dispose of its
100% equity interest in Yueyang Fenglan Property
Management Service Co., Ltd. that carried out of
the Group’s development property operations. The
purpose of the disposal is to generate cash for the
expansion of the Group’s other businesses. The
disposal was completed on 29 November 2021,
on which date the Group lost control of Yueyang
Fenglan Property Management Service Co., Ltd.

The results of the operations for the current year was

as follow:

—F-—

2022

FAT

HK$’000

Yeas REVENUE 1,761

SHER A Cost of sales (1,542)

EH Gross profit 219
E MU KWz sk (518 ) ) F 58 Other income and gains or (losses), net 30 -

TR EARR S Administrative and other expenses (459)

BB RIE A Loss before tax (210)

Frig®if Income tax expense =

FAEE Loss for the year (210)
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42. BRILKRE%2K HENB AT 42. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF

(%) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

b) HEMBARGE) (b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)
REEBRBWBARIZAEESE The net assets disposed of subsidiary at the date of
EFENT disposal were as follow:

=B _F
2022
FAT
HK$’000
EEFE Net assets 2,019
HEEE Loss on disposal (1,413)
RBE@EE Total consideration 606
ATSHEAZA - Satisfied by:

RE Cash 606

HEEEZ RS ML Net cash outflow arising on disposal
BUER R EETE Total cash consideration received 606
FTHERITHEH IR S Bank balance and cash disposed of 1,660
2,266

43. AREE 43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

NR-ZZTE_=F=HA=+—H ' "&E5 As at 31 March 20283, the Group provided financial

MASERNFENE TYFEEREHRT guarantees to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities

EBEERS THRITRESBHER - K provided for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties in

XA EEIN REBR-_ZE_=4F the PRC. Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have

A=+ —RYEEMHAEEBR(ZEZ any contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

ZEFEE) e
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44. A TIEEARR K 44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
RRABRMERAR 2 BHEAMR AR ER A Information about the statement of financial position of the
S 8 Company at the end of reporting period is as follows:
—EBC-=F
2023
THT
HK$’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
mE - BE K& Property, plant and equipment 5 7
REEE Right-of-use assets 573 572
FRBEELE Total non-current assets 578 579
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
BRFE -« ke MERIFIE Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables 491 492
BAREEBERIRZBARTAE Equity instruments at fair value through
profit or loss 647 328
ReMReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,815 1,905
REEELE Total current assets 4,953 2,725
wEAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
Hibh A RIBREE A Other payables and accruals 56,308 22,120
e —RIBE R RIFUA Due to a related company 130,964 220,548
e Borrowing 290,437 289,722
MEGE Lease liabilities 638 673
mEE EEE Total current liabilities 478,347 533,063
REBEEFE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (473,394) (530,338)
EEAERRBAR TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES (472,816) (529,759)
BEFHE NET LIABILITIES (472,816) (529,759)
s EQUITY
BA Share capital 339,500 339,500
R (HEE) Reserves (note) (812,316) (869,259)
EARE Capital Deficiency (472,816) (629,759)
\\\
BRSPS BN
Qiu Dongfang Chui Kwong Kau
HITEE FHITESE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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44. ERQTHMBARRR @ 44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)
Bt Note:
ARNRZFHEESREWLT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
B RE 45 Bl o Hit#E HERBHEE 2itER
Exchange
Share Special Other fluctuation Accumulated
premium reserves* reserve# reserve losses
FHT FAT FHT FATT FHT
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
R-ZT——F/N At 1 April 2021
A—H 1,358,246 93,267 - 75,052 (1,431,926) 89,639
FAEBERER Loss and total
vt comprehensive
income for the year - - - - (958,898) (958,898)
WZE-— At 31 March 2022
=A=+-R 1,353,246 93,267 - 75,052 (2,390,824 (869,259)
FABEREE Loss and total
Was 8RR comprehensive
income for the year - - - - (36,494) (36,494)
REEERRH Capital contribution
AE from substantial
shareholder - - 93,437 - - 93,437
RZT—= At 31 March 2023
=A=+—8H 1,353,246 93,267 93,437 75,052 (2,427,318) (812,316)
* BRFERERER-ZS—=FNLALETZE g The special reserve represents the difference between the fair
HEEZ P AR ARRN A2 EEALR value of the shares of Pearl Swirls Limited acquired pursuant to the
RMFETZ AR RROEER 2 =5 - reorganisation in September 2013 over the nominal value of the
Company’s share issued in exchange therefore.
4 BE-_T-_—F-A=+—HLEFE XK i Deed of balance waiver was made between the Company and
AAHEEFERFEHERRRZLY - & the substantial shareholder of the Company for the year ended 31
It ARREERRRAZHNEANEEESD March 20283, pursuant to which, the substantial shareholder of the
&5 #798,437,000/% 7T - E it - #A % ENR Company agreed to waive the debt of approximately HK$93,437,000
HIERRAREBRRNEE - due by the Group. As such, the waived payable was regarded as a
capital contribution from the substantial shareholder.
H P
45. REHEEE 45. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

BE_S_=F=A=+—HULHE
% UBMBELAZEAKEMATHE E’\J
EXFHE -

After the reporting period ended 31 March 2023, there
was no significant event affecting the Group required to be
disclosed.
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1986 =

HE=A=1t-HLEE
For the year ended 31 March
It St 2 —ToCF E S 33 —TNEF
RESULTS 2023 2022 2020 2019
TERT TAT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(& =5)
Restated
BFESEER Continuing operations
L6 Revenue 348,271 1,004,596 216,710 106,352 419,762
HERA Cost of sales (348,161) (895,093) (197,739) (95,563) (430,208)
£,/ (8) Gross profit/(loss) 110 109,503 18,971 10,789 (10,446)
EfR ARz /(BB)  Other income and gains/(losses),
et net 1,027 (524) 9,854 (839) 12,119
HERAHRX Selling and distribution expenses (7,747) (14,634) (15,693) (7,068) (12,718)
THREMES Administrative and other
expenses (22,309) (32,439) (69,702) (49,912) (80,006)
BER 2 B EHEMER  Provision for loss on net
2R FEEERE realisable values of completed
properties held for sales (53,598) - - - -
BERPMENAZRFE  Provision for loss on net
BEREE realisable values of properties
under development (105,484) = = = =
NE  BERREZHE  Reversal of impairment loss/
EiEER/(RESR) (impairment loss) on property,
plant and equipment - - 4,556 (12,779) -
BREMEZNLEWE,/  Fair value gain/(oss) on
(BR)FE investment properties, net 6,516 3,357 (3,990) (52,875) (27,331)
BAZE 2 AREKE/  Fair value gain/(loss) on equity
(BR)FE investments, net 319 (1,850) (1,074) (2,960) (8,725)
EfE—FBE D REE Share of result from an associate - (17,721) (940) (3,599) (14,661)
B Finance costs (43,470) (48,083) (122,611) (83,676) (84,085)
BHRAERE Loss before tax (224,636) (2,391) (180,629) (202,919) (225,853)
FERiEe/ (Fx) Income tax credit/(expense) (1,998) (8,947) 5,139 (20,875)
BREEXBZER Loss for the year from :
BE continuing operations (226,634) (11,338) (175,490) (223,794) (223,867)
BRIMHEEEE 7 ER Loss for the year from
B discontinued operation (300,041) (744,397) = = =
Palieda Non-controlling interests 99,320 237,937 33,004 34,362 23,753
PAYNGIE ZoUNG A Loss attributable to owners
of the Company (428,255) (517,798) (142,486) (189,432) (200,114)
’ B
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R=A=1t-8
As at 31 March
“E-=F “E--F “E-%F “ENE
RESULTS 2023 2021 2020 2019
THx TEL TEL TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEXE Total assets 2,416,217 3,494,752 3,768,359 2,183,677 2,572,154
BESE Total liabilties (2,407,419) (3,243,583) (2,815,336) (1,289,868) (1,380,598)
(BR)EEFE Net (liabilities) assets 8,798 251,169 953,023 893,309 1,191,556
RATEE AR Equity attributable to owners of
the Company (135,578) (11,538) 465,616 407,207 637,300
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